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Business Model

An individual with care
requirements requires a home.

The local authority designs a care
package, identifying a care provider
and property for the individual.

The care provider is paid the full
amount for the care package and
pays rent to the Approved Provider,
or the Approved Provider is paid
the rent directly.

The Approved Provider pays Civitas
amounts due under the lease.

What We Do

Social Housing Pioneers

CS5+ 18 a leading provider of care-hased commurnty
housing in the UL

CSE beheves that access 10 a decent hame 18 & basic

human righ: from which so much more can be achieved,

particularly for people who are living with a hfe-long
disalbihzy. Wrirth milliong of people stuck on housing
wating hsts across the UK, ortrapped 1in long stay
hospitals, C8E became the first public company o bring
large scale equity investment .o the secior

The Company has the dual obiecuves of achieving both
posive financial returns and large scale measurable
social '/mpact

2202 SLNNGHIVY NV LYOdTY
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CIVITAS SOCTAL HOUSING

Our Portfolio
as at 31 March 2023

Company Overview
as at 31 March 2023

# Altermanve Peilormancs Measures Terms are delined in the Glossary



Financial Highlights
as at 31 March 2023

How We Performed

Basic and

Diluted EPS: -42.0%

Pence
2023

oAz
7.23

21
5.80

Profit Before Tax
£25.5m -43.1%

Tl ion
2023

44.8
noil
36.1

EPRA EPS*
4.43p -8.1%

Ponoe

2023

20

4.82

= w0

AN

4.93

NAV per share*
109.16p -1.0%
Penoe

NAV
£661.9m -2.0%

NAV increase since
IPO* -9.5%

fraon Poroen”
2023 2023 2023
[ 6619 |
110.30 V 6755 12.6
wea EIVE et
108.30 673.5 10.6
Investment Dividends declared Total Shareholder

property?
£978.1m +1.0%

Tl owon

2023

(Ordinary shares)
5.70p +2.7%

Ponae

2023

978.1

968.8
[
915.6

5.55
il
5.40

# Atternative Pertormance Measures Teiins are dehined in the Glossary
1 on an Ordinary share held since launch {percentage not annualised)
Zinvesiment praperty independently valued See note 15 0 of the Consondated Finanaal Statements lot details ol the valuanon

Return#
-16.5%

Poreon
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LIVITAS SUHIAL DOUSING
REPORT ANL ACCOUNTS 2023

Key Achievements

Operational Highlights

697 pronerties £835 million 4,594 tenants nased on sunported py across 178 local
accjulred- Cvvesteds win dependaby'e Long-term 131 care authority partners
acconmmodation leases s:;gned with providers
19 Approved
Providers

The Good Economy, the social impact advisory firm, in its serni annual independent
Social Impact Report in November 2022 on Civitas, has classified Civitas’ assets

as ‘Contributes to Solutions” according to the internaticnally recognised Impact
Management Project IMP) dimensions of impact. TGE also notes that Civitas'
funding contributes to increasing the supply of specialist housing, easing the
burden on residential or inpatient facilities.

1 over the hfe of the Company as at 31 March 2023

Levered IRR* since IPO

Past pertormance 1s not a rehable indicator of tulure petiormance
* Alternative Perfurmance Measuie Sec Appendix { tor The calrulatsan

Share price performance (pence)
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This is our sixth Annual Report, covering the year to

31 March 2023, [ am pleased to report that. desplie a
difficult economic backdrop in the U our porifolio has
continued to perform grrongly, delivering on average a
5% mcrease in renzal income derived from our inflation
adjusted leases,

Qur pves:ment Adviser. Civitas nvestmean: Managemean:
amted UCOVTY has contnided 1o work closely with our
Approved Providers to enhance further *he qualhty of the
porfoho and o assist where needed in the process of
ensdrnng our rental Income 18 recarved on a umely basis.

The net asset value of the Company at 3" March 2824 was
1(09.76 pence, a small decrease of 1.03% from "10.50 pence
per share asar 37 March 2022,

The Board declared a final dividend of © 425p, bringing
che full year dividend o 5.7Cp, in ine with "he minimam
stated intenuon,

A cdifficalr challenge dunng the vear was The sharp
Increase 1N nceres: rates. . am pleased thatin “ebkrdary
2023 the Company entered into a new deb: faciiy for
£70.9m, which was partly used o repay the loan facility
with Llovds in addinon, we also fixed our interes? raze
exposire 1o provide greater ceramy —owever, the
overall re-financing was achieved aT a maenal increase
N ongolng areres: costs. “ull details are wncluded i “he
nvesrmen: Advisers Repor:

Our share price has been digappoiniing over “he year
dander review, reflecting in part “he broad deraiing of
real estare iInvestmensts, higher interes: rates and mvesTor
concern abaus our sector. The 3oard has been reviawing
a number of possible achions o address this position.
The Company has continied to bay back shares — over
“he pas: 22 monihs it has acaquired 6 850 000 shares az an
average of /6 39 pence per share for a toal inves men:
of £4.65 rmilhon, This has enhanced the NAV by §.30% and
benefired the =234 earnings.

Continuation Vote

AT *he annual general meetng on 5 September 2027
938.85% of those shareholders who vored have vored in
favour of the conunaanon of The Company.

Offer for the Company

“ollowing the year end, on 9 May 2023 the 3oard
announced a recommended offer for the Company at 80p
per share in cash, from a subsidiary of CX Asset Holdings
Limited (CKA)L

Whilst the Board beheves that the Offer undervalues the
long-term prospects of Civiias as expressed by net asser
value, we also recognise “hat Civrzas, and s gector as a
whole, faces a number of challenges in senimen: which
-he pablic markets are unitkely *o overcome in the shor o
medium term.

The Offer provides hagudity *o shareholders with the
opporuntty o exitn full and in cash at a sigrufican:
premidm to the current share price. in a nime of
MACTOeCONOMIC UNCeT:alnTy.

Voreover, CKA, as a current invegior in the social housing
sactorn has a desalled understanding of the atracuave
fundamenzals of the real estate and he experuse of the
managemen: ieam CXA does not expect there 1o be

any disraphion o tenans as a resul of the Offer and wiall
ke focused on *he conunuation of relajonships with
Approved “roviders, care providers and the Regalator

of Socal Fousing following the complenion of the Offer
The 3oard thetefore considers the terms of the Offer "o be
fair and reasonable and we have recommended 17 o our
shareholders,

Outloock

Demand for he type of properiaes within the Company’s
porfoho remats strong with independen: forecas:s
rrediciing that there wall be connnued growsh for

many vears 0 come n the need for addimonal uni-s

of adaped accommodanon. The 3oard remains
confiden: 1in the sireng-h of “he porfolio and 112 poenial
revende generasion.

Michael Wrobel

Chairman

28 Junie 2025
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Our Portfolio
By UK Region as at 31 March 2023

I

g 2

= Z5 ‘

Logs

£ 2L
South West 120 15.5 143
Lendon 26 128 138

n3

‘West Midlandas 101 116

9 10.8 10.7

Yor¥shire and the Humber

Wales 34 no 106
" North West 191 101 101
South East 65 10.1 9.8
lESst Midiands 58 36 8.3
Norm East 64 58 6.4
ljast gggngland o 32 4.0 3.9

Market Value (%)

West Midlands

£978.1m S

Yurkshire and the
Humber

South West

Londoen

Notth West

south East

East Midlands

North East
l East ut England

697 properties

Tenancies

i South Wesi

Yorkshire and the
Humber

Nornth West

Londuon

st ol Tngland



Our Portfolio

By Approved Provider as at 31 March 2023

Annualised Contracted Rent Roll (%)
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Investment Adviser’s Report

In the year to March 2023, CIM continued to Woﬁféfbsely with the Board to mana_ig?
a high-performing portfolio.

' :140% of residents ltv!ng in Chntas pmpemes recawe
High acuity portfolio
# Provide homes to those who need Iong-term qualitv e
- Largest portfolio of S5H tn England &Wales :
" Premium Fitch rating retained at *A” smred and A
Average rental growth of 8% :

Social Impact
e  4.5%94 high-quality I>ed spaces
e £127.0 mullion savings 10 the pablic purse

e 5 charrrable relationships

Phase two work with EON
Continued work across identified properties

Targeting 25% reduction in carbon emissions
Continued access to goveriiment grant funding sources
Targeting minimum EPC "A-C" by 2030

Highly Experienced Team

The asset management team set up to work with and assist our Approved Providers have
specialisms from:

Local authority commissioning of specialist supported housing

Senior level rents and housing benefit advisers

Housing management and compliance

Propetty asset management

Commussioning of care

SIVITAS SOCTAL HOUSING PLC

1 Somrce The Good Economy Civitas Soenal Flousing PLC Annual Impact Report 2041 hune 2021



Introduction

Crvitas Investment Managemen: amiated (‘CIM" s the nvestment Adwviser to Civitas Social “ousing PLC {"CSH and i3

the leading provider of care-based housing 1n the UK. ¢V comprises a team of 33 mdividuals with a range of expertise
1 spectalist supporied housing, real egrate managemen: and complex care needs CIM has the capaciy and specialis:
knowledge to manage the CS5 porifoho at a granular level and has culuvated strong professional relauonships across

the secior over the last decade.

Overview of Results

In the UK pnor to the launch of the Company, equaity

and private capiral played a very small part in the social
housing sector. Over ame. UK demographics changed and
-he number of ad:l s with long-term, complex care needs
has been steadily increasing.

This 1s reflected 1n a number of instizuional inves:ors
mcluding aspects of social housing withun their
nvestmens: strateqies.

Results Highlights

« Six vears of consisten: rental growsh and progressive
dividend payments tha: have increased from an mnal
2.00p per share o 5 70p per share for *he year ended
31 March 2023

e Areramed hugh-gualty investment credit rating from
T1zch Ranings of A secured and A- unsecured since
“arch 2027, which CS= was the first to secure in
“his sector

e Anacuvely managed por:folio of operasional real
estate with a sector-leading ream of professionals
assisung and enabling high quality and longevity of
homes and income

e rofessional support to enable Approved Providers o
enhance the gqualry of therr delivery and demons raze
long-erm financial and operational independence.

e Targeung investmen:s and homesg which enable
“he daelhivery of higher end care as thisi1s where “he
grearest need exists and where the applicabihty of
exemp: rens 1s clearly demonstrated

e Anaciave and conunuing programme working
with S.ON to permanen:ly reduce carbon emissions
across “he portfolio, leading o lower energy cos:s for
residents and a more carbon neutral portfolio.

o Sector-leading parmnerships with national and local
charnnes dehivenng real change and coniinaing o
enhance CSH's repuraieon as the most experienced
mvestor in soclal infrasmmucture 1m the LK

e CIM has a highly expenenced asse: managemen:
zeam which has overseen some £25 mulhon of physical
improvernents 1o the poriffolic since incepion. largely
paid for by the vendors of the properues.

Sector-Leading Social Qutcomes
ESG

Qur =5G Policy 18 located at www.eviassociathousing.com.

provides an overview of the Company's invesimen:
procedures and ses ous the Board's commitmen: 10 a
COTNNMNUOUS IMProvemen: process In 1ts approach o
LG Inregration.

ESG Rating Providers

PR

C.V engages with the leading FSG rating providers o
set out the activinies thar are undertaken by CS= and

¢ ensure these are profiled and evaluated correctly.
Notably, acuve parncipaton in the 2022 GR283 Publhc
Disclosure Assessmen: has resulted in C5H retaiming

an A score previously atained in 2027, whilst the peer
group average score has moved up to 8. C5H 15 ap

o second postion within s Companson Group (LY
Residenuall. Meanwhile, the Risk Raung Score for T3 by
Sustalnalyties remains a: '4.9 {Low Risk) as was reported
in Tebruaary 2043

FE0Z SLNNODDY NV LE0ddd
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Investment Adviser’s Report
Continued

The latest independen: repor: by The Good ~conomy
on C5+= wasg pubhshed in November 2022 and notes
Cs="s conunyed progress in delivering measurable
social impac:. Social value analysis by The Good
Sconomy, carned out in March 2027, found thas averall,
“he por:foho generated £127 mithon of social value

per year, inclhuding fiscal savings 0 pubklic hudgets of
£75.9 million per year.

Of partucular note with respec: ‘o the porfolho:

e 4% of CSH's 697 properties have been brough: into
‘he speclalist housing sector for the first ime

« CSF conninues regular engagemen: with its Approved
rroviders to monizor the guality of 178 stock

e mprovemen: works have enhanced the energy
efficiency of homes

e 8/% of respondents to the survey of residents carned
out by CVan March 2027 reported *hat they were
sansfied with “he qualiy of their home

e CS5- Approved 2rovider pariners have reported 997
statatary comphance — considerably betzer than the
wider affordakle housing sector.

Environmental: Carbon Reduction/
Energy Cost Savings

C .V coniinues to wotk with 5 ON (a leading UK energy
and solanons company! under a national framework
agreamentin parmership with C5= tenanss, o improve
~he environmen:al performance of -he porfolio The
fabric firs?’ approach 1o reducing the porfolo’s
carbon footpring includes the installation of caviry wall
insalation. iofs insulatton. external wall insulation, atr
source heat pumps and solar 2V and batery storage o
idenified properzies within the portfolio The installation
of these energy efficient measures. ailising available
governmen: gran:s and other funding sources, will
opinmise value for the Company. oJr counterparies
and our shareholders. The collaboration with = ON s
delivenng sigmfican: environmen-al enhancements
without any cost o our Approved Jroviders

The Phase 2 retrofls surveys will help 1o refine the
implemeanianon programme and idenafy the Les:
me:hod for reducing the total carkon dioxide

emissions iand fael cos st associated wih iindradaal
properies over the medium or long erm The overall
ernergy performance of the parfolio, ag idenahed

on Znvironmensal Performance Certtficazes {("52C7
reporss data haz improved over the last "2 months The
proporion of properaes with 2C Raung A-Cis curren-ly
ch5% and the carbon foorprninT iesimated from propary
characiensucs! has reduced by 2% per Civiras “enancy
ifrom 265 ronnes of CO frenancy i Varch 2622 <o

26 tonnes of CO /fenancy’. The whole social housing

sector, and indeed the whole housing sector, continues
o require significant public investment 1f 1t 1s 10 mee” the
current government guidehnes on achieving ne: zero
carbon ermissions by 2050,

Government Policy and Regulation
Reforming the Mental Health Act

Cuarren: mental health legislation results in many people

vith mental heal:h issues or learning disability needs bemmg
desained in large mstitunions thas are ofien inappropnae
for the indraduals. 771 esimarted by NS Digiral that there
was a rise in annual mental health detentions from 45864 1n
2076/72077 1o over 83239 1n 2020/202%

Once people are secnoned into an ingmuion i becomes
very cifficulr and costly 1o move them o a supporied
VINgG community $emng.

As a result of These concerns, the Governimen: commissioned
an iIndependen: body chaired by Professor Sir Simorn:
Wessley 1in 2077, Currently in draft form in the “ouses

af Parhament, the VMental Fealth 2eform Act seeks to

raise the shreshold for deraming people wath a learning
disabilizy and/or aunsm unless ‘hey have a coexisting
paychianc disorder

We believe that thus Act will dnve even more demand for
commuamty housing and care seings which are already in
short supply, furher gecunng the value and importance of
~he 8= porrfoho

The CSH pordfolio will further benefir from the follownng
hroader marke: dynamics

Social Housing Regulation Bill 2023

The overall requlation of somal housing s under review
with the main objecnive of dehvenng transformasional
change for social housing residents and fulfilling the
Governmenss 2079 manifesto pledge 10 "empuower residenTs,
provide grea-er redress. besrer regulanon and improve the
qualiyy of socal housing™

The implicanoen of thig revnew for C8—"s porfoha s
expeced to be posiave as 1t aims "o brnng landlords closer
w0 therr enants and more focused on addressaing ~hewr
neads quickly Qur Approved 2roviders are very close 7o
‘heir residen:s’ needs and work in parmership wth care
providers 1o ensure good quality service owicomes. all
suppored by the granular asset managemen: provided by
C every day.




Investment Adviser’s Report
Continued

Supported Housing (Regulatory Oversight) Bill

This bill. which 15 under review, seeks to improve

the regulanon and ouicomes of supported exempt
accommadauon. This follows reported cases, parmcularly
of temporary hausing, that sheuld not qualify as

exempt accommodaion.

Financial Review

As at 31 March 2023 the Net Asse: Value of the Company was
£661.9 mithon, being "£9.16 pence por share, a 1034 dedlcase
on the 11030 pence per share at 87 March 2022, A nes

fair value gaih on investment properies of £2.6 million

12022 72253 mullion! was recorded in the vear.

Operational cash flows increased modceratcly o

£49.5 milhion (2022: £39.1 milhon). Ongomng rental collections
throughour the year suppoeried the Company's heal:hy
operaung cash flows despite further increases to the cost of
debt as all facihues were put onto a fixed hass.

Rental Growth and Dividend

The porffoho generated rental income {excluding
any insurancs and service charge rechargeak:les)
of £53.1 milhon, represenung c8% increase over the
corregponding perniod tast year.

The contracted rent roll now ncreages -hrough mdexaton
only as no new equity has been raised and “herefore no
new investimens have been made n the penod.

Junng the vear, “he Company declared and paid four
drndend disinbutions including one dindend of 1.3875p
and three instalmenss of 4250p.

Debt Fixing and Reducing Risk

CiV arranged the following deb: facilines which fixes deb:
on the porifolio ar an average rate of 3.92% unul Augus: 2024
as s prudentin the current Interest rate environment.

Remainng

Term at Loan
31Mar 23 Prncipal
Lendets _Facility _lycars} £ogu _ Allinrate
Scotish Widows Fixed 4.59 52.500 2.99%
Deurzcoe Bang Fixed 4 85 7C.875 5.09%
AG. London
Rranch
HSBC Fixed by 2.67 100.0CC 1.6C%
[nterest
raie cap
NatWest Fixed by 1.38 60.000 2.60%
[nterest
ratc swap
MEG Fixed 49 84550 314%
3.67 367925

3.92%

We have recerved terms from lenders (o refinance the
NatWes: facihzy which s due 1o expire in Augus: 2024,

Governance

C M continues 10 engage aciavely with the Company's
approved Provider pariners and care providers, offering
advice and shared learming.

The Board, compnsed of ive independan: non-executlve
Mrectorg, carnes ous an annual Board performance
evaluation exercise and hos:s penodic strategy sessions
in addition o regular planned 3nard meeungs.

Summary

CIM conzinues o ¢logely and proacuvely asset manage
‘he largest por:folio of specialist care-based housing in
the UK.

There 15 demonsirable demand in excesgs of supply
and sigmficant further legislanion that s likely o
coninue o increase demand for the properies in the
Company's porzfoho.

We corntitiue 10 undertake our work with a view w boh
enhancing the value of the portfoho and proectung the
nterest of cur underlying renants.

Civitas Investment Management Limited

nvestmeant Adwviser

28 June 2023
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Asset Management Initiatives

The Asset Management Team understand the value of a good home With nearly 100 years' experience betweean them
working in the housing field, there 1s a lo7 of knowledge we can share.

As part of our acuve asset management of the CSH portfoho. we work with and suppor: our parners tackling wgsues and
finding solutons ¢ help sustain the tenancies of the most vulnerable pecople iving 1n our homes.

A recen: example of this was with Cole Strees and Hampden Road. These properues are managed by Trinty Housing
Association and are popular propersies with long standing residents =owever. Trimity had struggled to meet s housing
enefit porennal. Officers from the team worked clossly with 'Tnimty and supporied thern o puat the informanon and
evidence together for :mbunal Trinity won the tnibunal and the mater was resolved with a full backdate and ren:
agreed. This was a grea: resul: for the team and for the senan:s a: ‘he schemes.

Case Study

York Mews, Clacton-on-Sea

A detached two siorey block of seven self-conramed flats Before After
consirdcred around the "1950s. Some external works were

idennfied as beng regquited and a review was underaken Jar’
at the agset Assessmen: reporns obiammed suggested
+hat replacing ~he heaters within the flats and other
minor works would improve the energy efficiency and. Slar s
111 mos: cases, improve the -2C raungs as the same Jime.
We Therefore “endered a programme of works over wwo
irhases — the firs: phase just before the previous Winter “lath
penod o replace The existing heaters with high hea:
retention sworage heaters — the second phase dunng the
follownng Spring/Summer peniod was 10 undertake The Tlat 7
external works to remove the exisung render, replace and
decorate 1o mprove the exienior of ‘he bulding.

=
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report

Sustainability

The business model of the Company is 1o provide long-
+erm suitable homes for imdividuals with care needs;
acting in a sus:ainable manner is key to achieving

*hig aim. Properiies tha: are owned by the Company
are tallored to meet the futdre needs of the tenants
and. where required, are actively asset managed

-0 provide long-term funcuonality and value to the
wider comimanity.

Environment

Durning the nvestment dile diligence phase, the Company
looks closely at the environmens:al impac: of each
polenial acquisiuon, and encourages a susiainable
approach for maintenance and upgrading proper:es.
Through collaborating with specialist developers and
vendors, the high standards the Company expects from
each investment 1n the care-based housing sector1s
adopted by other companies in the secior

Once within the porifolio, the proper:les of the Company
are acuvely managed, and the ‘nvesimen: Adviser
assesses whether there are opportunities 1o 1mprove the
environmens:al efficiency of the properues. in addinion o
other asset managemen: inraatnves. The Company has an
snvironment, Social and Governance “olicy which can be
found on the Company's website This goes into further
derail abou: the Company's 323G approach and how it
Integrates with investmens: siraseqgy. —urther details on the
Company's ESG approach can also be found on pages 37
o 46.

The 3oard has considered the requirements o disclose
‘he annual guanaty of emissions; further detaill on this 1
mnchided in the Report of the Directors on page 52

Diversity

The Company does not have any employees or office
space and. ag such. the Company does not operae a
dwversity policy with regards o any adrminisiranive and
managemen* funcions.

‘Whils: recogmising the imporance of diversity in the
boardroom, the Company does no: consider 1770 be

n the nreras: of -he Groupr and s shareholders 1o se:
prescripuve diversity crizeria or rargets The 3oard has
adopred a diversity pohoy in respec: of appoinimen:s

o ke made 0 the 3oard and will continueg "o monmor
diversity, taking such steps as 17 conglders appropriate
T Malntain 1:s posion as a mertocralilc and diverse
kusiness. The 3oard's oljecuve 1s 10 mam:awmn effeciive
decision making. mcluding “he impac: of succession
planning. All 3oard appoinmen:s will be made on mer:
and have regard o diversity regarding faciors such as
gender, ethnicry, skills, background and expenence.
This includes Director appoinimenss ‘o <he Audit and
Managemen: sngagemen: Committee and Mominaion
and Remuneranon Commisee See Corporate Governanoe
Sratemen: on page 56.

The 3oard comprises three male and two

female non-executive Direc:ors. Throughout the year,
the Company complied with the Hampron-Alexander
Review's Target of a mimmaurm 33% representauon of
women on “TSE 350 boards.

The Board i1s aware of the recommendations of the
Parker Review. which will be aken into consideraton as
par: of the Board's succession planning. See Corpora:e
Governance Statemen: on page 56

The Board of Directors of the Company's subsidianes,
which are non-operasional, each compnse one female
and up ro four male Directors.

Human Rights

Given the Company's turnover for the year under review,
12 now falls within the scope of the Modern Slavery

Act 2025, The Company published 1is modern slavery
statement on 22 Sepiember 2021

The 3oard 1s gsatisfied that to the best of its knowledge,
the Company’s prnncipal advisers. which are listed in
the Company Information section, comply with the
provisions of the UX Modern Slavery Act 205

The Company's business i1s solely in the U< and therefore
15 considerad o be low nisk with regards to human
nghts abuses

Community and Employees

The Company's properies enatle the provision of care

w0 some of the mos: wialnerable people in the commumity.
enguring safe and secure accommodation, satlored to
mee: ndividual care needs. The Company has increased
‘he provision of care-based housing. bringing new
supply 0 the sector and providing homes o over 4,500
peaple. All of the Company's properies enable the
provision of high levels of care, generating local jobs and
helping o suppor: local economies.

The Company has no employees and accordingly no
requiiremenst to geparaely repor: on this area.

The nwvesimen: Adviserig an equal opporianities
employar who respects and seeks 10 empower each
mdindual and the diverse culures, perspeciuves, skills
and experiences within 1-s workfarce



Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Overview

The Directors’ overarching duty i1s 1o act in geod faith and
in a way that 1s most Lhikely to promote the success of the
Company as se! oat in section 172 of the Companies Act
2006. In doing sa, Directors must take into constderation
the interests of the various stakeholders of the Company.
the impact the Company has on the community and the
cuvuutilie, take d luiy-enn view ol Consequences

of the decisions they make, as well as aim to maintain a
reputation for high standards of business conduc: and
fair treatment beiweeh the members of the Company.

Fulfilling this duty naturally sappor:s the Company

In achieving 135 investment objective and helps to
ensure that all decisions are made in a responsible and
gustainable way. ‘n accordance with the requirements
of tha Compames (Miscellaneous Reporting} Regulanons
2018. the Company explains how “he Directors have
discharged their duties under section “72 below.

To ensure tha: the Mrecrors are aware of, and
undarstand, their dutles, they are provided with the
perunent information when they firs: join the 3oard

as well as receving regular and ongoing updates and
rraining on the relevant maters. induction and access
o traiming s provided for new Directors. They also
have continued access ;0 the advice and services of
‘he Company Secreiary and, when deemed necessary,
*he Directors can seek independent professional advice
at the Company's expense. The Schedule of Matrers
Regserved for the Board, as well as the Terms of Reference
of 1ts commuitees, are reviewed regularly and further
describe Directors' responsibilities and obligauons and
wnclude any statutery and requlazory dunes, The Audn
and Management “ngagement Commitiee has the
responsibility for the ongoing review of the Company’s
risk managemen: systems and internal controls and,

0 the extent that they are apphcable, nisks related o
the matters set out in saction 172 areincluded n the
Company's risk reqisier and are subject to peniodic and
reqular reviews and monitoring.

Long-term Success

The sirategy of the Company can he found on pages

26 10 28. Any deviation from, or amendment to. that
strategy 1s subject to Board and. if necessary, shareholder
approval The Company's business madel, which can be
found on page 26, provides that the dcard considers the
leng-term conseguences of its invesiment decisions.

The Company grants long-term leases, generally 20 years
In length, to 1ts tenants. The Company seeks 10 main:ain
lasting relationships with 15§ tenants and suppor:s 15s
cenants 1n adapting propertias 1o meet their needs,
particularly improving and enhancing proper:ies. “urther
detalls can ke found on pages 37 10 16,

Stakeholders

A company's stakeholders are normally considered to
comprise 1ts shareholders, 175 employees, I's cusiomers
and 118 suppliers as well as the wider commurnity in
which the company operates and impacts The Company
18 differens in that ag an invesiment st 1t has no
employees and, 1n terms of supphers, the Company
recewves professional services from a number of different
providers, principal among them being the Investmen:
Adviser.

Through regular engagemen: with 1°s grakehaoiders,

-he 3card aims to gain a rounded and balanced
unders:anding of the impac: of 1:s decisions. feedback
from stakeholders 1s gathered by the investmen: Adviser
In the first instance and communicated to the Board in 1°s
regular quarterly meetings and otherwise as required.

The impor:ance of stakeholders 1s taken into account

a: every 3eard meenng, with discussions involving
careful considerazion of the langer-term consequences
of any decisions and thewr impheatons for stakeholders.
The following section explains why these stakeholders
are considered of imporiance to the Company and ~he
actons taken o ensure that thelr interests are taken 1nto
accoun: by the Board as part of its decision making.
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Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement
Continued

Qur stakeholders Key areas of interest How We fngage
Shareholders e Curren: and Tne Board we.comes shareho.ders views and places grea: importance
Continued future financial on communicasion with the shareno.ders ot ne Company. The Board is
shareholder performance on  responsib.e for the conten: of communicanon regarding corpora:e 1Issucs
support and both a NAV and and for commmunicating its views to shareholders. The Board aims o cnsare
engagement are share price basis  tha: sharcholders are provided with sufficient information 1o understand
critical o the e Strategy and the rise/reward balance 10 which they are exposed oy the holding of
existence of the business model shares in (ne Comrpany. Active engagement wit sharehelders is carried our
husiness and the througaoul the year and reguiar communication is undertaken 10 ensiire tha:
Corporare

dehvery of the they understand tne performance of the business. The Board is committed

long-term girategy 0 maintaming open channcls of communication and "o engaging witn

of the business. e ESGperformance  gpareholders in @ manner waich tney find most meaningtul, in crder 1o gain
and sustainabili'y an undersianding of the views of shareholders. These channe s include:

governance

« Climate Change  Apnual General Meeting - Tne Corrpany welcomes and encourages

e Diwnidend atzendance. voing and particivation from sharenoiders a: the AGM. at which
shareno.ders have (ne opporiunily 10 mee: the Direciors and Invesiment
Adviser and to address gquestions o tnem direc:y. The Invesiment Adviser
avends i:ne AGM and provides a presentation on tne Grouap's performance and
Irs future ouuonok. The Company vaiues any feedback and questions it may
rcceive from sharchoiders ahead of and d.ring the AGM and a<es ac:ion.
as appropriaze. The Board was pleased to note that a ! resolutions proposed at
e Companys AGM on 15 Sepiemoer 20272 were approved by saarehoidors

Publications - Tne Annual Revor: and Hall-Year Resui's ate made availaonle

on e Company’s wepsite. These reports provide shareno.ders with a c.ear
understanding of ©ie Croup's porifolic and financial position. In addiien o ine
Annual and Half-Ycar Repor:s regulary spdated informaton is dval.an.e on

the Company websiic inciuding quarter.y tacishee:s, Kkey poiicies. tne investor
re.ations poicy and detaiis of (ne invesimen: oroperty porido.jo. Feedoack and/
or questions the Company receives fromr the sharchaolders ne.p the Company
eVOIVE 18 repor:ing aiming o render e reports and wpdates ransparen: and
Jnderstandaoie.

Shareholder meetings - Sharcholders are anle (0 meet witn the Invesimen:
Adviser and the Comopany's Joint Bragers througnous (ne year and e invesimen:
Adviser provides Informmation on the Company on the Company’s weosie
Fecdoacy from a.. snarenoider meeiinds with (ne Investmen: Adviser and/or the
Joini Bro<ers. and snareno.ders views. arc shared wiin the Board on a reguiar
pasis. Tae Cnairman ahd oer mempers of the Board including the Senior
Indevenden: Direcior and Chair of 1ne Acdit and Managemen: Engagemen:
Commiige, are avalan.e 1o mes. with shareno.ders o undersiand (hielr views on
governance and (ne Cornpany’y performance wnere “ney wisn (0 do so




Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement
Continued

Our stakeholders Kew areas nfintarnen 1one sme s tiguge
Shareholders e Current and Shareholder concerns — The Board gives due consideration to ratters
Continued future financial raised by shareholders. In the event shareholders wish to raise 1ssues or
sharehclder performance on concerns with the 3oard or the Invesiment Adwviser, they are welcome 0
suppor: and boh a NAV and write 1o the Company at the reqistered office address set out on page 131
engagement are share price basis i
critical to the o Strategy and in line with Increasing shareholder focus on Environmental. $ocal and
existence of the Lusiness model Governance ('=5G" mauters, the Board requests regular updates from the
business and -he . invesimen: Adviser, The Board retaing overall responsibility for ESG issues
delivery of the e Corporate and the Company’s operaional performance. implementaion of 73G
governance masters are undertaken by the ‘nvestmen: Adviser on behalf of the Board.

long-term swrategy
of *he business. e I5G performance

and sustamabily Furthermore. £ESG reporiing has been disclosed on pages 37 10 46 1n the

Annual Report and the Board is open to discussion with shareholders on

Climate Che
¢ WIS s sopicif requested.

e Dvidend
Investor relations updates — The 2oard regularly monitors the
shareholder profile of the Company. With the majornty of shareholders
Leing a combination of mstitanonal investers and private chen: brokers,
the 3oard recewes regular updates on invesiors’ views and atiutudes
from the Company's Brokers and the [nvesimen: Adwviser. The resulis of
these meetings are reported 1o the Board as pari of the formal reporting
undertaken by both the Investmen: Adviser and 3rokers.

Included n the Repor: of the rectors on page 51 are detatls of
substanual shareholdings in the Company.

On a regular kasig (somenmes weekly) and at Board meenngs, the
Directors receive updates from the Company's Brokers on the share
rading activity, share price performance and any shareholders feedback,
as well as an dpdare from the Company's Investor Relanons adviser,
Buchanan, and the nvestmen: Adviser on any publications or commern:s
by the press. To gain a deeper understanding of the views of 11s
shareholders and potenual investors, the Invesimen: Adviser maintaimns
regular contaci with them and alse undenakes invesior roadshows.

Any relevant feedback 1s taken into account when Directors discuss any
possible fundraising or the future dividend pohcy.

Following the year end, the 3card recommended an offer 1o shareholders
of 80 pence for each share held in the Company from Wellness Unity
Laimrted (a wholly owned subsidiary of CK Asser doldings Limited). During
-he Takeover Offer process. the Board engaged with shareholders and
recelved their views on the Takeover Offer which 1z teok 1Into accoun:
dunng 1ts discussions. Furcher tnformation on the Board’s decision i
relation 10 the Takeowver Offer can be found on pages 25 and 52




Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement
Continued

O slakeholders Key ateas of interest How we Fngane

Investment s Curren: and The asse: managemen: of the Company’s portfolio 1s delegated o
Adviser future financial the invesiment Adviser, which manages the agse:s in accordance
=olding “he performance with *he Company's objectives and policies. At each Board meeng.
Company's shares 4  ghared representatives from the [nvesimens Adviser are in attendance o present
offers investors commercial reporss 1o the Directors covenng *he Company's cutrent and furure

an 1nvesiment objectives with acuvities, portfolio of assets and 1ts investmen: performance over the
vehicle through he Company preceding period.

which they can
obtain exposare
<0 the Company’s

e Operaucnal

Vamnaining a close and constructuve working relatiionship with the
excellence

Inves:men: Adviser (s crucial as the 3oard and the [nves:ment Adviser

porifolio of s Long-term both aim o continue to achieve consistent long-term returns in line
properaes, The developmenr of  with the Company's invesiment objeciive Important compenents of the
nvestmen: s business and  ¢ultare of both the Company and the invesinen: Adviser are:

Advisers resoUrCes

performance e 35G performance aperating m a fully supporave, co-operauve and open anvironmen:
is crimeal for and sustanabiliy and mamntaming ongoing communicanon with the Board between
the Company formal meetings:

o successfally ¢ encouraging open discussion with the invesiment Adwviser, allowing
dehver 1ts ame and space for onginal and innovaive thinking:

nvesiment e recognising tha* the interests of stakeholders and the ‘nvestimen:
sirateqgy and Adwizer are for the mos: par: well aligned, adopting a one of

meer its objective consiructive challenge,

“;pm;l?g ¢ drawing on 3oard members individual experience and knowledge o
shareholders

suppaor: the Investment Adviser in s monizoring of and engagemen:

with an avraciive with other szakeholders; and

level of iIncome,
rogerher with
the potenual for
capnital growth.

+ willingness 1o make the 3oard members experience available 10
suppor: the nvesimen: Adviser in the sound long-term developmen:
of 118 business and resources, recognising “hat the long-term health
of the nvestmen® Adviser 1s 1n the interests of shareholders in the

company

Other service « Currens and The Company's main funcuens are delegated to a number of service
praviders furure financial providers including the Admuusirator, *he Company Secretary. the AFM.
in order o performance the Registrar the Corporate Brokers and the Depositiary. each engaged
funcuon as a =T shared Junder separate contrac:s. The Scard maintains regular contact with 17s
with a premium commercial key external providers and recewes regular reporiung from them. both
listing on the obiecaves wich ‘hrough he Board and Commizee meelinds, as well as ouiside of the
“ondon Siock :he Comparry regular meenang cycle Their advice as well as their needs and views,
sxchange, the are rounnely taken into account Through 1z Audrr and ¥Yanagemen:

Operational

Company relies on “ngagemen: Cormmities, the 3oard formally assesses their performance,
a diverse range of excellence fees and contminaing appoimtmens a: leas: annually o ensure that the
reputable advisers ®  ODg-EMM key service providers contnie o funcion at an acceptable level and
for suprpor: developmen: are appropriately remunerated o deliver the expecied level of service.
n meeitng of the service The Auadi: and Yanagemen: zngagemen: Commiee also reviews and
all relevan providers’ evaluazes the control environmen: 1n place aT each key service provider.

obliganons businesses
o  Sustamalbiiny




Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Continued
rolﬁ!ﬂkf'hnlrimq ¥ey arasy of intoroer
Care provid_e_rs « Curren:
and funire
performance
e Welfare of
tenants
e [ease obligations
e Voud
management
Tenal;tisiiiir e Gréat;
Independence
e Maintaining high
level of care
e« ‘mproved
personal
QuiCcomes

The Cchpany's proﬁemesgfe adapted for the use of individuals with

Tlon o Caguye

At the outset, 1t 18 1mporant to note that the Company does not have
any legal or operational responsikihty for the delivery of care i the
properties within the portfoilo. Fowever. the Board and the [nvesmen:
Adviser have taken the view tha: they wish o have a detailed
understanding of the delivery of care and the interaction with the major
care providers who deiwver this care. Accordingly, the ‘nvestment Adviser
main:amns an acuve dialogue with many of the care providers to build
constructive and informed relationships.

At the sarme time, as par: of transaction due diligence a: the time of
acquisition of properues, the ‘nvestment Adviser undertakes due
diligence with respec: to the operational and financial performance of
all care providers who are propesed to deliver care in:o the particular
properties. Thus includes ‘he financial standing of the care provider, 1ts
CQC rating and the nawure of the S[L.A agreemen: covering voids beiwesn
the care provider and the Approved Provider

The (nves:ment Adwiser 1s noted as having demonsirazed considerable
expertise and undersranding of the care taking place within its
Properies,

long-term care needs within a communtty serung with the specific
ammn of achieving better personal ouscomes and independence for the
indwviduals.

The sector In which the Company operates 1s regarded ag having
achieved significant success in dehvernng these positive cutcomes
compared w0 long-term older style remote Insatutional care.

On a regular basis. members of the nvesiment Adviser visit properies
accompanied by Approved Provider and care provider pariners ‘o see
firs: hand the nature of the houging and care provision that is being
delivered. Whilst this process has slowed as a result of the pandemic.
‘he Investmen: Adviser has coniinued o engage with its tenants. This
1$ suppor.ed by the regular Approved Provider seminars a: which the
wellbeing of tenans is discussed i detail.

In addinon, the Company undertakes resident case studies and surveys
-hrough careful and considered interacuon via the care provider o
assess the posinive 1mpact our properues and associated specialised care
have had on the individual and their wellbeing.
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Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Continued

Our stakeholders

Approved
Providers

Reg’uleTtdr of
Social Housing
{RSH)

Key areas of iInterest

Currenr

and furure
performance
Sustainability
Comphance
and property
managemenst
Welfare of
tenants

~ease obhganons

Jnancial and
operaional
viabiliry
Governance
Compliance with
health and safey,
and reglazory
srandards

Safewy and
wellbeing of
anderlying
tenants

How we engage

The Company's Approved frovider parmners are an imporant par: of the

mnvesimen: model as the responsibility for collection of housing benefis

and subsequen: payment of ren:. the mamsenance of the proper:ies

Jnder the full repairing and insuring leases and, maos: unportantly. the !
safeqguarding of the underlying tenants through the above means, lies

with the Approved Providers.

The Tnvestment Adviser works closely with the Company's Approved
Provider parmers to improve standards and governance and to introduce
pracuces and procedures that make the Company's investmen: processes
ever more rolbust.

The Inves'ment Adwviser has a regular open dialogue with the Approved

Provider partners, Halsing monthly on comphance. health and safety,

mam:enance and future-prooiing schemes, as well ag hosung quarserly

serninars to discuss current themes/tirends affecting the secior and to !
sroubleshoor. This serves as an opporiunity o buald relationships and

share besT prachice.

The nvestmen: Adviser i1s supporied by the establishmen: of The Social
-iousing ramily C.C, a not-for-profit communty interes: comparny
operated independertly of the Company whose s7ated aim 1s 10 enable
Approved Providers holding the Company's leages to increase skills and
axperience and 1o provide fundmg to promote enhanced performance
Membership 1s open to any Approved Provider that holds Civitas leases
and the effect of membership 15 0 ‘ransfer ownership of ‘he Approved
Provider “o the social housing family Auckland “omes Salunions was the
first Approved Provider to join and has now recruied a very experienced
and senior executve :eam and board of management Qualizas
communy benefit soctery has also joined the C.C.

The Company s no: 1self regulated by the 28, bur 17 1s important o
main:ain open and regualar chalogue 1o ensure that the Company and he
=55 dre working together o umprove the gecior

The nvesimen: Adviser has a reqular and ongomng dialogue with the R5= J
and with the Approved Provider pariners requlated by The RS=.

The Company also publishes responses 1o the requlartory judgemensts of

che 8= regarding the Approved Providers working with the Company as

par: of the R§='s general review of Approved 2roviders engaged in the

provizion of property services for vulneralzle pecople as announced

n May 2028, Thig demonsirates the Company's desire 0 marn:ain a

dialogue with he R5= and 17s desire -0 see that the posimions improve
vhere needed.



Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Continued

aur stakeholdenm

Other reg'ul'ato:'-y' .

authorities

The Company can

only operaze with
the approval of

s regralators who

have a legimate
interes: in how
the Caompany
operates in the
market and ‘rea:s
1ts shareholders.

Local authorities

Lenders
Avallabihity of
funding and
haquidity are
crdacial to the

Company's ability
to 1ake advantage

of investment
OppOrunIiies as
they anse.

2SN TS QTR

Comphance
with statutory
and regulatory
requiremeants

Governance
based on best

practice guidance

3etter reporing
to shareholders
and other
s:akeholders

Provision of
safe and secure
properies of a
high quality
Sustainabihty
for long-term
placemen:s

Currenrt and
future financial
performance of
she business

Openness and
rangparency
Jroacuve
approach 10
COMMUnICation
Operazional
excellence

Tl s crguge

The Company regularly considers how 1t meets varnous regulatory and
stanitory obhigations and follows voluntary and best practice guidance,
and how any governance decisions It makes can have an impac: on

1*s shareholders and wider stakeholders, both in the shorter and in the
longer-tarm.

The Board receives quarterly regualatory compliance monzonng updaes
from the nvestment Adviser.

The Board receives quarterty compliance updates from the AIPM regarding
-he Company's comphance with its invesimen: policy and the Investmen:
Adwviser's compliance with the Investmen: Management Agreemern:.

The Board also has access 1o the advice of the Company Secre:ary who
prrovides updates and advice on regalatory, srannory and governance
masters for considerazion by the Board at its quarterly meetings and as
and when required.

[tis important for the Company 1o baild and maintain relationships with
local authorizies as they have an imporan: role 1n idenufying areas

of high demand, agreeing rents and referrals to the Company's asse:
management miatives.

The Company will engage with the local authority cormmissioner either
direc:ly, or through gpeciahst consultants, Approved Provider and care

provider parners as part of the Company's due diligence to ensure tha:
each property being acqguired has been commissioned by the relevant

local authonty and tha: rent levels have been discussed and agreed

The Company has arranged deb: facilinies from a wide range of lenders
and engages with these on a regular basis through regular meeungs and
preseniations o ensure they are inforred on all relevant areas of the
business. The continual dialegue helps to support the credit relationships.

The Company has reaffirmed 1ts Invesiment Grade Figh Crediz Quahty
Raung from Fuch Ranngs Limited of “A” {senicr secured) and a ong-Term
"D3R {{szuer Defaul: Fanng) of ‘A-"with a Stable Outlook.

This will enable the Company to pursue its siraegy in relanon to deb:
funding, in addinan o conanuing ta work with the Company's exisiing
lenders, with whom *he Company has bul: strong relationships.

Juring the year. the 3oard considered and closed a five year term dels
facihicy with Deutsche Bank AG. Jurther information can be found on
page 25.
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Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement
Continued

Out stakenoiders Key areas of intetest How we enqgage o o o o

Communities e Acceptance A key component of the Company’'s portfolio 1s that the properties within
The Company’s of care 1n the 17 are set within community environments so that individaals are able as
assemsrelyona COMMUNIY part of their care plan to 1nterac: with the local community rather than
strong, posituve o Avalability of beingsolated.

connecuon
with the local

local facihties for . ;
This 15 achieved i consultation with local authorities in determining

communites in enants that the inrtial setiings are appropnately diversified within the respecuve
which 1°s business commuruy and are not clustered i a way that would lead o 1olation
OPETa-Es. This assis:s the individuals and also ensures appropriate integraton
within the community. On a day-:o-day basis, care providers and
Approved Providers operate policies to ensiudre positive relatonships
with neighbours and surrounding dwellings. The activities within the
Company's properties create employmen: within the local community for
both housing and care workers
Charity partners o Delivering The Company supports a number of organisations whose objecuves
neaded suppor:  are 1o provide improved outcomes for vulnerable adults affected by
o vilneralbla homelessness and other care needs.
adults

The Company commits targeted financial suppor: ‘¢ fund specific
pragrammes which help those affecied by homelessness by teaching
-herm skills and offenng suppor: o preven: them from being in that

) POSIZION again.
e ESG performance

and sustammabilty The Company ensures regular calls and meeungs with our chary
partners "o update on progress and projects being underzaken, as well as
atending even:iz in suppar: of their work,

e mproved
wellbeaing of
vialnerable adulis




Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Continued

Principal Decisions

Principal decisions have been defined as those that have
a matenal impact o *he Group and vs key stakeholders.

In saking these decisions, the Jirectors considered their
duties under section 172 of the Act Principal decisions
made dunng the year were as follows:

New Regulatory Clause Initiative

in 2022, the 3oard considered and agreed a new
approach o the Company's lease model with the goal
of supporting addutional regulatory compliance and
addressing percepnions of nsk. The new requlazory
clause enables Approved Prowviders —o achieve grearer
alignmen: between income recalp:s and lease habihnies,
set achievable capiial solvency requirements agains:
lease obligations and demons:rate a further degree of
risk sharnng.

The new lease clause has, following detalled negotiation
including leqgal inpur, received approval from the boards
of two iniial housing associauons with whem 1t had
been discussed. The Company had previously sough?
and ob:amed formal wrien confirmaton from 12s
valuers that the mclusion of a clauge of ‘g ype withun
the Company’s new and exignng lgases will not of 1self
cause a diminuion in the valae of those leases orin the
underlying asse's.

Takeover Ofter

Ag announced on 9 May 2023, the 3oard made the
decision -0 recommend o shareholders an all-cash offer
of 8¢ pence far each share of the Company by Wellness
Ly Tamited (@ wholly owned subsidiary of CK Asset
Holdings Limitted).

Although the Board belhieves the offer undervalues

the long-term prospec:s of the Company, ~he 3oard
racogrises "hat the Company and the secior in which

1t opetates faces a number of challenges in hght of the
currens macro environmen: and ouzlook. This imclhudes
“he considerable neganve senamens in the public
markers wowards the Company and the socal housing
sector which the Board belhieves are unhkely 1o be
overcome mn the shor w0 mediam erm and will coninue
‘o have a matenal impac: on the Company's chare price
prospects. in addiion, despire delivenng on reven.e,
NAY and dividend growh since 20O, the Company's
shares have raded for some 1me a: an en-renched
discount 1o NAY

[ATa)

On 23 [une 4023, “he Offer became ancondinonai

Updates to Debt Arrangements

Juaning the year, the 3oard congidered and clesed a new
five year “erm debt faciluy of ¢ £71 rmilhion with a majer
~uropean bank lender

The facihty was deployed in full 1o redeem the
Company's exisung facihity with Lloyds Bank of
£60 million as well as providing adduional hquidity. As a

result, all of the Company's deb: facilinies are at 100% fixed

or capped rates.

Buyback Programme

Turing the year. the Soard moniiored the decline in the

Company's share price and tn response, the soard agreed

‘he implementation of a share buyback programme

under cerramn paramesers, which 1s being operated by the

Company's Joint 3rokers

“urzher informauon on the Company's buyback
programme can be found on page S0




Strategic Overview

Purpose of the Company

The Company was egtabhished 1 2016 with the parpose
of dehvening long-term responsible, stable retarms o
mvestors and achieving positive measurable social
impact and 286G benefits on a large scale. It should
achieve this as a resul: of introducing long-term eqity
capital into the social housing sec:or with a paracualar
focus on care-based community housing. 3v doing so,
“his would form a bridge berween equity investors and
~he social housing sector and bring together aspects of
healthcare with social housing.

The Company has since developed he larges: porfolio
of care-based communuty housing in the U< tha: provides
long-erm homes for more than 4.500 individaals across
half the local authonnes in england and Wales,

Ag a regult of This success, the Company exernded s
mandaze “0 be able to enter o transacuons directly
with “he NHS and waith leading charinies with an interest
in The provision of specialis: housing thar has a strong
care or support element, 15 consistent with pubhc pohey
and whose cos's are me: by the public parse for which 17
offers value for money.

Investment Objective

The Company's iInves:iment objective 1s “o provide
shareholders with an avracuve level of income, together
with the potenual for capial growth from mvesiingin a
porfolio of Sooal Fomes, which benefizg from inflation
adjusied long-term leases or oCcupancy agreements with
Approved Providers and to delver, on a fully invesiad
and geared Lasis, a jargeted dividend yield of 5% per
annum ., which the Company expec:s 1o increase broadly
n line with inflanon.

Investment Policy

The Company's invesimen: policy 15 1o INves: In a
diversified por:foho of Social “omes throughou®

‘he United <ingdom. The Company inTends 1o mea:

the Companys investmen: objecuve by acaqunng.
rpwcalty indirectly via Special Qurpass Vehicles.
sorsffolins of Social “ames and =nzermgainto long-erim
mflasion adiusted leases or occupancy agreements

faor terms primanidy ranging from 0 vears "o 40 years
with Approved 2roviders. where gll managemen-

and mamtenance obliganons will be serviced by “he
Approved Providers. The Company will not underake
any developmens acivity or assume any developmen: or
congmiction ngk. ~“owever, the Company may engages in
renovaling or CUEinmising ex1sting homes, as necessary

The Company may make praden: use of leverage o
finance “he acgaiinon of Socal “omes and -0 presery
caplral on a real Basig

The Company s focugsed on delivering capial grow:h
and expects to hold 115 Porzfolio over the long serm and
sherefore 1715 unhkely thar the Company will dispose
of any par: of the 2ortfolio, In the unhkely event that a
par: of the Por:foho s disposed of, the Directors intend
w0 remnves: proceeds from such disposalsin asse= in
accordance with the Company's invesimen: pohcy |

Investment Restrictions

The Company inves:s and manages he foriffohio with the
objecave of delivering a high-guality, diversifred Dorfolio
through the following immvesimer: resiriclions:

e ‘he Company only invests 1n Social Homes locared in
“he Unred <ingdom:

e he Company only iInves:s in Socal ~omes where the
counerparty 1o the lease Or cocupancy agreementis
an Approved Jrovider,

e np lease or occupancy agreemen: shall be for an
unexpired penod of less than 16 years. unless the
shorter leases or 0CCuUpancy agreemeants reprasen:
par; of an acquistion of a porifohs which the
nvesimen: Adviser intends o reorganise such thas
~he average term of lease or occupancy agreement 18
creased o L% years or above;

e he aggregate maximum exposire “o any single
Approved Provider 1s 25% of the Gross Asset Value,
once the capiial of -he Company s fully invested:

e nonvesimen: by the Company in any single
geographical area. in relation ¢ which the houses
and/or aparrmen: blocks owned by the Company are
located on a connguous or largely conntguouas basis,

exceeds 2% of the Gross Asser Value of the Company:

e “he Company only acguaires completed Somal =omes
and will no: forward finance any developmen: of new
Soclal —omes;

+ ‘he Company does notinvestin other alkernatve
mvesimen: funds or closed-end invesimen:
companies: and

e he Company s not engaged in shor: selling.

The invegimen: mre deailed above apply at the nme of
“he acagaistion of the relevant inves:men: in the 2orfolio
once fully invesed. The Company would not be reguired
o dhispose of any inves men: or o rebalance the 2ortfolio
as a resulr of a changes in The respechive valuations of 11s
ASSEs.

Gearing Limit
The Direciors seek o Use ggearnng -0 enhance equlty
rezarns. The level of borrowing 12 se” on a pruden: basis
for “he asse: ¢lass and seeks To achieve a low cos™ of
funds, whils: mam-ainimg “he flexabihoy i -he anderlyineg
gecunTy requirements and “he structare of both the
Porfolio and "he Company

1 The dividdend vield 15 bascd on the olgmal 1PO prce of 100 pance pet (ndinary share The fargetcividends are kirgets onty and do nol1epfesant 4 ptollt forecast
Thera can be no assulance Ihat the 1ATge1s san of Wil be mer and shoukd not b taken as an indizaten ol the Company s expected of acigal ftungre resulty
Accaordingiy potenual invesions should noy place any relidnce on thesae largets 10 deciding whether o oot o mvest i the Company of Assume ial e Com pany
will Make any cusinbuliuns at all and should decide (o themse lves whether or nor the larger dividend yiwelds are 1easonable or achievahle
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The Company may, following a decision of the 3oard.
raise debt from banks and/or the capiral markets and the
aggregata borrowings of the Company 15 always subject
1o an absolute maximum of 40% of Gross Asset Value
calculated a: the ume of drawdown. Curren: gearing 1s
55.61% 12027; 34.43%)

Debtis secured ar asge: level whether over a parucular
propeny or a holding entty for a paricular senes of
propertes, without recourse to the Company and also
potenially at Company level wath or withou: a charge
over the Porifoho {but not against pariicular assets),
depending on the opumal stractare for the Company and
having consideration to key metrics including lender
diversity. cost of debr, debt type and matunty profiles.
Orherwise there will be no cross-financing between
invesimeris in the 2orfolio and the Company will not
operate as a comman rreasdary funchnon besween the
Company and 1is iInvesimen:s.

Use of Derivatives

The Company may choose 0 unlise denvanves for
efficient portffohio managemens. [n parnicalar, the
Directars may engage in fall or pariaal interest raze
hedging ar oherwise seek *o miligate the nsk of interest
rate increases on borrowings mcurred in accordance
with “he dgearing limits as par: of ‘he managemens of the
2arfolio.

Cash Management

The Company inves:s in cash, cash equnvalents, near
cash nsruments and money marke: Insramean:s.

Key Performance Indicators {(“KPIs"”)

REIT Status

The Directors conduc: the affairs of the Company so as to
enable it to remamn gualified as a RRIT for the purposes
of Part 12 of the Corporation Tax Ac: 2070 {and :he
regulations made thereunder).

Culture

The Direcrors agree that establishing and mamntaining

a healthy corporate culure among the 3oard and 1n 138
ineracion with the ‘nvesiment Adviser, shareholders
and other stakehelders wall support the delivery of its
purpese, values and strategy. The 3oard seeks "0 promote
a culwre of openness, debate and inzegry through
ongoing dialogue and engagement with 11s service
providers, principally the .nvesiment Adviser.

As deralled in the Corporate Governance 3:aemens,
“he Company has a number of policies and procedures
in place to assist with mainaining a culure of good
governance, Including those relating to diversry and
Directors conflicts of interest. The 3oard assesses and
monttors comphance with these policies as well as The

general culture of the Board rhrough Board meenngs and,

in paracalar, dunng the annual evaluatnon process which
15 undentaken by each Direcior (for more mformasion, see
rhe performance evaluaton secilon aon pages 56 and 57

The 3oard’s cultare itgelf 15 one of openness,
collaboranon and construcuve debate o ensiure the
effecuve conimbunon of all Directors, paracularly in
respec: of the 3oard’s decision making. Consideranon
of our stakeholders s embedded 1n the 3oard’s decision
making process. Please see our section 272 Statement on
pages 1710 25

Measure

. Exptanation - L
Increase In NAV  Target to achieve capital appreciation whilst
per skhare maintaining & low risk swraiegy from enhancing

Result .

MNAV 1ncrease of "1.2p7 per share 11.4%
[rem 1IPO {2022 12.3p per share 12.6% from 20).

the qualioy of cash flows from invesiments. by

physical improvement of properies and by

creatng a signihicandy diversified, high-quality

poritohio.

I)mden'd;f;er

share targeted & dividend ot 5.70p per share.

Nurmber of lecal  Target nisk rutiganen through & diversified
paortfolic (once fully invested) with no more
chan 25% exposdare o any one local authorlty or
single Approved Provider and no mere than 20%
exposure (o any single geographical area, once
ke capiial of the Company 1s Lully inves:ed.

aukoriies,
Approved
Providers and
care providers

L0an w
Gress Assets
{l.everage)

Jross asses

For ‘he year ended 3] March 2025, the Ca}:ipan:;m Total dividend of ‘w’ﬁp per share declared [or the

year 1o 31 March 202% (2077 5.55p).

As a3 March 2023
e 178 local aulnority parmers (2022: 178 .oca.
auihority parmners)
19 Aporoved Providers (702218 Approved Froviders)
e 13l care oroviders (2022 130 care providers)

The Company's larges. single exposure 15 w0 Falcon
HJousing Assaciaucon CIC and currently stands a: 9%
{2022:19%). Tre larges: geographical conceniraucn 1s
n the 3ou:k West, being 4% (2022: 156%).
“everage as ai 5. March 2073 of $5.0°% of gross
asszels {2022 34.43%).
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Definition

Purpose

Performance

Strategic Overview

Continued

EPRA

The Company 1s a member of the —uropean Public Real Sstate Associanon CZPRAN. 22RA has developed and defined
she follownng performance measures 1o give rransparency, comparabilizy and relevance of financial reporung

across entues which may use different accouning standards. The Company 1s pleased 1o disclose the following
measures which are calculated in accordance with =PRA guidance. These are all Alrernative Performance Measures of

‘he Company.

EPRA Earnings

sarnings from cperanocnal
acuviues.

A key measure of a
company's underiyving
operaiing resalts and an
indicatton of *he exten: o
which current dividend
paymen:s are supporied
by earnings.

EPRA Net Reinstatement
Value (“NRV™)

E2RA NAYV menc which
assumes that enmies never
sell assets and aims 1o
represen: the value required
o rebwuild “he enary

EPRA Net Tangible Assets

(“NTA")
E2RA MNAV meric which

assumes Thar encries buy

and sell asse's. thereby

crystallising certain levels of
dnavoldable deferred tax.

EPRA Net Disposal
Value (“NDV™)

ZURA NAV metric

which represen:s the
shareholders vahie under
a disposal scenario,
where deferred ax,
financial iIngirumensts and
certaln other adjusimen:s
are calculated o the full
extent of thetr habnhty, ne:
of any resuling tax.

The 52RA NAY set of meairice make adjagsimen:s o the NAV per the financial statements 1o
provide stakeholders wath the most relevan: informaon on the fair value of the asse’s and
labilimes of a real estate investimen: company, under differens scenanos

EPRA Earnings EPRA NRV EPRA NTA EPRA NDV
653,780,000 675.645.000

29,810,000 673,416,000 673,416,000 678,191,000

30,630,000 674,042,000 674,042,000 671,476,000
EPRA Earnings per share EPRA NRV per share EPRA NTA per share EPRA NDV per share
Daceand oo ns L SN 1 FR ER SN RS S

as performance 1g not a reliable indicator of fasure performance “or detalled workings reconciling “he above
measiaras <o *he 7R results please see Appendix ” o these financial sarements on pages "272 10 225
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EPRA Net Initial
Yield (“NIY™)

Annualised renzal
Income based on the
cash rents passing
at *he balance
shee: date less
non-recoverable
RYoperty operaing
expenses, divided
by +he marke: value
of the proper:y
with (esiimazed)
pPurchasers' cos:s.

EPRA Topped-up Net
Initial Yield {“NIY™)
This measure
INCOYPOTates an
adjustment w0 the
rPRA NIY 1IN respect
of the expiranon of
ren:-tree penods

{or other uanexpirad
lease incenuves such
as discounzed ren:
perods and stepped
rantsh.

A comparable measure for porifolio
valuasions. These measures should make 12
easier for inves:ors o judge themselves, how
the valuanion of portfolio X comparas with

corfoho v

EPRA Costs Ratio

Admimsirative and
operating costs
unclading and
excluding cos's

of direct vacancy)
divided by gross
rental income.

A key measare ‘o
enable meaningful
measuarement

of the changes

I a3 company's
ORETAIIY COSTS.

EPRA LTV

Deb: Gnclading net
pavables but nes:

of cash balances)
divided by the marker
value of property
anclading net
receivables..

A kevy (shareholder-
geanng: meinc

o derermine the
percentage of deb:
comparing 1o ‘he
apprased value of
the propertes.

EPRA Vacancy Rate
Estimated Market
Rental Value ("ZRV") of
vacan: space divided
by ERV of the whole
porfolo.

A 'pare’ (%) measure of
INVesTMent properry
space tha: 1s vacant,
based on =2V

EPRA NIY

Zag performance 1§ not a rehable indicaror of funire performance. Yor detalled workings reconcihng the above
Measures 10 'he 38 resulis, please see Appendix ' to thege financial g7atements on pages 722 1o 125,

EPRA Topped-up
NIY

EPRA Costis Ratio!

20.33

EPRA LTV

1 The ranos inclusive of vacanoy costs 412 the same as the r4to exclusive of vacancy costs bor 2022 2021 and 2020

EPRA Vacancy
Rate

.
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Principal Risks and Risk Management

The 3oard considers that the nsks detailed below are the pnincipal nsks facing “he Group currently, along with the nsks
detailed in note 3.0 1o the financial statements. These are the nisks that could affect the abiniy of the Company to deliver
128 srateqy The 3oard confirms that the prinaipal nisks of -he Company, including those which would threaten 11s future
performance, solvency or hundity, have been robusly assessed throughou: the year ended $0 March 2023, aking inio
accoun® the emerging nsks such as the longer term, chimate change nisk, cyber securiy nsk and recrunmen: of s:aff a:
coynterparies nsk, and tha: provesses are in place 'o contnue this assessment.

The Audir and Managemen: “ngagemen: Commizee has divided the Company's nsks into the following nsk wype
categones

& Sirategy and Compennveness,
e Operauonal, mcluding Cyber Crime;
¢ nvesimen: V.anagemen:, and

+  Accounung. Legal and Regulazory

zach rigk conzamed in each caagory s reviewed for 175 impac: and probabtiiey by the Audir and Managemen:
“ngagement Commuties at least wice dunng ~he year,

The Audl and Managemen: mngagemen: Commicee takes responsibihity for overseeing the effeciivenass of nsk
managemen: and internal control sysrems on behalf of the 3oard and adwvises the 3vuard on the prinaipal nisks facing
‘he business

carther details of risk managemen: processes thas are in place can be foundan the Corporate Governahce Statemen:
on pages 57 and 58 The principal and emerging nsks and uncertainues relaing o the Group are reqularly reviewed
by ihe 3vard along with the internal controls and ngk managemen: processes that are used 0 mingae these naks.
The 3card acknowledges “hat the Takeover by Wellness Loty Limited may resul in increased nisk both dunng the
cransiiion and subsedquently. Specifically. the Direciors have not had deralled visibihoy of the offeror's post compleicn
funding for vhe group or the detalled plans behind the mrennons staterments included within the announcement.
Oversighr and monzonng during thus penod will zake on cnncal imporiance, The 3oard has idenuafied one new
principal nisk dunng the year {as set out in the hs: of principal nsks and uncerammnes). The nsk assoclated with a
disrupnion o share price due 10 negaave senamens: n the social housing sector was dentihed as having the highes:
impac: and Likelihood. The rigk assoclazed with promoiing the Company 1o generate investor demand was removed
as a prnincipal nsk by the 3oard during “he year as the Takeover Offer by Wellness Lnuy Limited has reduced “he need
for the Company "o generate addinional inves:or demand “urther derails on this and the other principal nisks and “he
managemen: of those nisks are descnbed below:

Very High
High
z
]
o, Medium
= .
Low
Very Low
Very . . : Very
unlikely Unlikely Possible Likely Likely
Probability



Principal Risks and Risk Management

Continued

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

1 _Stateqy dgd Compeutivengess ||!~‘.k___
The Company's share price
1s disrupted due to negative
sentiment towards lhe socia.
housing sec:or fo.lowing a
rargeted attacs by a saort seller
and po:. dlion from: oiner events in
e seclor,

Impact — o
The Company is targeted
by a shor: saller or acuvist
shareno.der leading o
ata.. in ne Company's
share price and a
widening ot ine discount
1o WAV,

Thig rise remained atine same
leve. as the year ended 31 Marcna
2022

Significan: numbers of
s1ares may need o be
repureaased leading o
afa.lin the gize of the
Company and Jquidity
imp.acations

2 Strategy and compentveness risk Tmpact
Any change in tn
Laws. rog.aations and/

or governmen: policy
affceiing e Company

and its operations may
"ave a ma:erial adverse
effect on the apildty of ine
Company 0 successfu. v
oursuc its invesiumen:
po.cy and meet it
nvesiment oo, eotive

and on ine value of (he
Company and ne snares.

&

he Comrpany and iis operalions
are subjec: "o ‘aws and regulaions
enactced by nationai and ‘oca.
JOVErnMen:s and government

policy

This ris< remamed ar the same
‘eve.as the year ended 31 March
A0ZE.

Impacr —_
The rate of capi:a.
demoymen: would drop.
decroasing returns o
snarcho.dors.

3 Strategy and compPettiveness 1isk

Ay a res.iz of competition lrom
other putenasers of 80C1a. Nousing
properies. the Company s aoniiay
noy capial cffociive 'y wiiin
a reagsonap.e lmeframe may ne
resiricied or (e netmniual yie.ds a.
wnich tne Company can acqdire
aropertiss may decline suen tqa:
:argci rClLIng cannot g med

1o de

Thaizrisg remaimed a: e same
.evel as the year onded 31 Marah
2022,

How managed/mitgated _
Tae Board is commiinied o mawlaining
open ciannels of communication with
shareholders and engaging in ways
snarenolders find most meaningfu, n
order 1o gain understanding of sharcholder
views. Further information on the Board's
engagemren: with shareno.ders can be

found on pages 17 10 25.

Impact:
High

Probability:
Likely

The Board seeks 0 provide [l disclosare
on the counteroarties and :he structure of
[ransactions so that a.i siakenolders are
xep! reliably informred on 1ne Company's
nusiness dealings.

The Board regulariy reviews ine
Company's puyback policy Lo ensure this
is in adignment wiin e interesis of the
Company and snhareno.ders. The Board
s also mindiul of 1ne possibiity (o issue
shares and regularily reviews iis policy in
this area o ensure tha: it is consisien: wit
the Company's srategy. I: receives regular
updates from the Company’s bro<ers 1o
help intorm its decisions in tnis regard.

How maaged/miugated Lo
The Company {ocouses on niche eal eslae
seclors wheare it polieves Lne redg.u.amwry
framework and under.ying demand

dynamics 1o be robusl.

‘Impact:
Very high

Prohability:

The Invesiment Adviser | srrong nd sy .
he Inve r has strong y Unlikely

contacts and has good know.acdge on
oodcy apinion and direction.

The Board obiains regular cpdates
from professionai advisers (o monitor
deve.opmenis in reguaialicon and legis’ation.

How managed/uuligated . o
The Company has sirong .ings with vendors
and aroo pipe ine of [Liare acguisitions

Impéct:
High

ust
The Board regu.any reviews ne gipeline
ol polentia. acquisiiions and moniors e
marxe: andscape.

Probability:
Unlikeiy

<

The Board 12 awarc of tho curren
compeitive soclal 2ousing marge: and
recognisas (e imoac: WIS may nave on
e Company's anbity (o depioy caona.
cleciive 'y

NV LA0ddH
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4 Inveslinent management nsk

Tenan: defa. ting under tne lerms
ofa easc.

TAus risk renained at the same

_ove. as tng year ended 31 Marea
2622

5 luyestment Mahagement 1isk

The vaue ol tac investrents made
by the Company may cnange from
Hme to ame according 1o a variely
of factors, incl.ding movemen:s

it incres: rates, int.ation and
genaora! mar<et pricing ol similar
INVesiments.

This risk remrained at ine same
overas ng yoar ended 31 Maren
2022,

& Invesunent mapagement Hsk

e Curren’ M acroeconomic
CnVIIOnman: has increased e
eve. of ris< around e Company’s
finanaing arrangemenis regarding
DOITOWING letms and covenanis

This was identiherd a8 a new ns<
durnng nc year.

7 Ingestnent mart. 15k ..
D.e diigonce may no rcvea. a .
facis and Circamsiances tha may
0 [Sle7ant i connecon Wi an
invegimen: and may no: proven:
an acg.astion oemng maeria y
overva..ed or renia. sUreams geing
arrac

Tals ns<rentarned az ae sare
: year ended 31 Marc

o2 ast

2c

Impact

Impact

Loss of renta income In
the gnor term

e valLation of 1o
Corrpdny’s assets wo.a.d
la .l deoreasing the
NAY and »ncids of @
Company

3

mpact

58 lavo.rahe oorrowing

Erms increase the
financing costs redacing
reoarnsg to SﬁaICIlO_(i(‘:FS_

Jmpacy S
e Comoany
overpay for asse:
Innairing shareno.der
va e redLcing rena

nc and aerctors

reet

How malrlg\qediiml uga tedd

How managed/mitigated

tlow managed/mitigated

How managed/anugated

The porifol1o is mgn.y diversified 0 reduce
e impac: of defaull Fxtensive dinigence is
whderiaxen on a.. assels, whicn s réviewe
and cna.lenged oy the Board

Tae Invesiman AAVISCr wor<d grodactively
with Aoproved Praviders (o address any
pocnial concerng

The Board 18 nrovided wiin regu.ar Lpdates
on e enanis wilt any concerns raised {or
discussion.

Tne Board has noed tnat the Company's
nistoric evel of defailts has oee
mmaeria;

The Company INVes:s in projects wita
stap.c. predetermined. long-em [€ases in
place wiin CPT or CPI p.us 1% indexation
and s siraingy 18 not focused on sae of

e Board rocerves regalar updates on
tactors “hial migat unpac Invesren:
va.Lalons

Tae Tnvesimen: Adviser, AIFM and
Deoosilary monior covenanis in 0.ace wiin

eo. providers and presen: o tac Board on
aq.arery basis.

Tac Invesiment Adviser everages tne
relatonsning it a ready nasin e mar<c:
o form ong erm parinersnips with deon:
oroviders a: rates it a ready nas achicved
on similar oro ecis within 1ae same
macro marse:.

Tac Invesiment Adviser reporis 1000
Board on diszusSsions with 0ands walca wi.
argLignt al e gariest opporiLnny il s
ris< has increassd

The Company underia<es deiaied doc
diigenze on tac gropories. iaeir condiion.
e aropased reftal .eve s penanmarang
agains: comparan.C schemeas sing noi
exiernd. CONs. ants whaere regaired and

ils own oropnieary da.aease - and on e
Aporoved Providers and care prowviders
invaorsed ncacn pronerty (o ensard Tnal iae
QLrenase HNeS 18 ron.Lst

Tre Board eonsiders e dae diagenae
LNACria<on waen aporoving acd Jisiions

Impact:
Medium

Probability:
Likely

Imp—iizt:
High

Prabability:
Possibie

Impact:
Medium

Probability:
Faossible

I;iinacr
High

Probability:
Unlikely



Principal Risks and Risk Management

Continued

8 INVestment management sk _ Impact

Loss of key staft a: the Tnvesimenr
Adviser,

Npg.—niup M et D
seniment eading o a
reduction in gnare price.
Reducrion in anillly 1o
souren off mar<ct and
favouraple deais

This ris< remained a: the same
-eve. as :he year ended 31 March
2022.

9_Suategy and competitiveness
The Company fal's to respond o
1ssues reated (o climate change.
elther direclly as enhancemen:s
W pIoneries or indirectly via its
climate cnange reporting.

dmpact

Decreass In N va.ue of
“he Company’s asscis and
a negative impacton e
Company's snare price

This nsg remained at the same
‘evel ag ne year ended 31 Marca
2022

10_Opelational including cybet crime:
Serious agcident or poor
managemecn: amongs! Approved
Providers due to sialt snorages
and .o0ss of competence.

lnpact o

Reo.iatona damage for
“he Company.

This risk remained at the same
‘evel as e year ended 31 March
022,

Emerging risks

rmerdging risks are considered during the regular

nsk review, and would be specifically discussed and
evaluated as they arse dunng *he vear npua: from the
nwvestmens: Adviser on emerqing risks 1s considered by
‘he Audi and Managemen: Engagemen: Commitiee.

Key emerging nisks identified and considered diunng the
year include,

e _ong-Term Climate Change - the impact of chmaze
change over the longer--erm on the business The
Company 15 committed to underszanding =5G risk.
including he paricular impac: of chimase change
on “he business. Chmate change poseg an indirect
rnsk ra the Company's operations, the environmen?
and society, and the Board 15 aware tha: appropriate
acton g requured to reduce gampac: The 3oard
Jses the updates from the ‘nvestmen: Adviser as “hey
relate 1o the performance of the company and the
mpac: of long-term chimaze change o help manages/
miiggace shis nsk.

HOow managgd/mmqamn

The Board considers v sk ul e tmpact:
Investment Adviser losing key siaff and mie High
succession plang e Investment Adviser

has in place.

- . ) Probability:
Tne Board nas noled the ongomg ’ Unlikely
expansion of the Invesiment Advisear's

$4PPOrT tcam
How maltaged/mitigated _ o
Regular review and consideration ny Impact:

:he Board including @ne input of climate High
change speciaiists at :ne Invesumren: Probability:
Adviser. Unlikely
Advice received from cxicrna! professiona.

advisars

. Vﬂwrmandgecﬂm(lqahﬁd L o o
Reporiing trom Approved Providers and Impact
monitoring of Approved Providers by the High
Investment Adviser. Probability:
Unlikely

e Cyber Security — the impac: of a cyber secury breach
within the Company or its service providers The
Aadis and Managemen: sngagement Commitiee
reviews and monitors the cyber secunty conirols of
he Company's service providers o1l a regular basis o
manage/miuicgare this nsk.

Jlease gee the Company's 25G Report on pages 3/ w0 46
for further details.

The _isung Rules require premiam-hisied commercial
companies o disclose in their annual repor whether
rhey have reported on how chmase change affec:s

shelr business 111 a manner consisten: with the
recommendations of the Task [orce on Chmate-related
“mancial Misclosures (UCoD), and o provide an
explananon and other informanon if they are unable

o doso naddition, the UK Government intends <o
inrredace mandatory chmate-related disclosures o
gupplemen: the requiremen:s under the Tisung Rules. The
Board has chosen not to adop: “he requiremen:s early
and expecs these 10 be applicable o the Company in the
financial year 4024
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Going Concern and Viability Statement

Going Concern

The 3oard reguiary reviews the position of the Company
and 118 abilizy o conunue as a going concarn atiis
mee:ngs. The financial siazements get our the currens:
financial posinon of the Company.

As atd March 2024 “he Company held cash balanges of
£45.6 milhion (net of operating and financing amounis
due). The Board has evaluazed the financial posiaon

of the Company which has mammiamed 1ts premium
mvesimen: grade rasing from T1zch Ratungs Lid — a well
established raung agency with a strong famhanty with
the alernanve healthcare real estate space, which qives
the Company confidence in “he abihizy 1o raise funure
deb: and/or equity capital m order o fund the Company's
invesimenss for *he long term and o facilizae the
paymen: of dividends 1o sharsholders 3ased on These,
the Board believes that the Company 1s in a position o
manage 175 financial nsks

Varnous forms of sensiiviny analysis have been
performed, in paricalar the financial performance

of tenan:s and a reduction 1n passing rent As at

37 March 2023, the passing rent woilld have -o drop by
approximasely "% before any of the Company’s ineres:
cover covenants are breached. The propery values
would need To fall by arouand " 3% before breaching ~he
loan -o value covenan:,

The Company's performance in the even: of severe
b plausible dovmnside scenanos used for vralnley
are ecraally apphcable for going concern, AT the date
of approval of this repors, the Company has sufficient
headroom within s fimancial loan covenanis The
Company also beneh:s from a secure mmcoome siream
from leases with long average unexpired term leases.

_everage 1s prudenly maintamed ar alevel of lese than
45% of Gross Asser Vatue

The Company's aricles of assoclation include a
recriremens for the 3oard -o propose an ordinary
resolution at the annual general meeing following the
fifth annversary from he wnuaal pakhce offening of the
Company for the Company 10 continde n 17s carran- form
ithe Conninaanon Resolunond On 'S Seprember 20772 a0
“he Annual General Veenng, sharsholders represening
298.478.455 vored in favour of the conttnuanon of the
Company being 98 85% of -hose who vored

On 9 May 2023 an announcemean: was made to the marke:
for an all-cagh offer of the Company from Wellness Umity
mited, a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of CX Asse:
Holdings “armired (CXA) On 23 June 2025, when the offer
became uncondinonal, CXA subsequently became the
uluimazte convrolling party of the Company. and a related
pary under [AS 24, The Group's exisning commuitted delbt
facilinies contain a standard change of conzrol clause
which has now Leen mggered due o the offer hecoming
unconditional. This could resultin “he exisung commitaed
deb faciliimies being withdrawn. The Group does not have
wvigibihity of the pos: complenion fanding for the Group a:
his time. Therefore, thus could create some uncertainty as
to the Group's going concern posiaiion. The Jirectors note
‘he detalled mrennons statemen: incladed within the
announcement on 9 May 2023 which states thar CKA does
no: envisage making any changes 1o the managemen:
team nor any disrapuon to any counterparies or

0 the underlying tenants. The condimons owhned

abhove indicate a mazenal uncertaln:y which may cast
significans doubt apon ~he Groun and the Company s
ability 10 conunuae as a going concern The financial
sratemen:s do not inchide the adias:ments tha:r would
regultif the Group and “he Company were unable 1o
continue as a going concern,

daving considerad all of “he above, the 30ard 15 of the
opinion tha: the going concern basis adopted in the
preparaion of the consolidated financial staemern:s
15 appropnate.

Viability Statement

The Diwreciors present the Company's viability statemens
which summanses the resuls of their assegsment of
‘he Company's curren: posiuon, 12 principal nsks and
Prospects over a penod fa 37 March 2028

The Company acquires high-qualey property with a
paracular focus on property providing care for the long
sarm. The properies acouired are an long--erm full
repainng and insdring leases n @ sector of The marke:
wth very high levels of need The cost base of the
Company s proporionaely low compared o revenie
and there 15 a hugh level of cerainty over cos: o be
incurred. On this basis, he Company 18 expecied 1o be
viable well beyond -he five-year erm considered in the
Company's tesing belows

The assumpnons underpinning the forecas: cashflowrs
and covenan- comphance forecas s vrere sensiligsed
‘o axplore the resthence of “he Company 7o the
poenialimpac of the Company's principal nsks and
ancearamnes



Going Concern and Viability Statement

Continued

The prospects were assessed over a ive-year petiod for
“he fallnwnneg reagsons,

1) e Company's long-iermr {orecast covers a five-year
oerod,

ii) theleng:h of service level agreemen:s between
Approved Prowviders and care providers 1s wypically five
years; and

iif) the Company's Jeases are typically 25 years on fully
repairing and insuring .eases, enab ing reasonan.o
cerainty of Income over the nexi tive years,

The Company's five-year forecast incorporates
assumprions related to the Company’'s investinant
siratedy and principal risks from which performance
results, cash flows and key performance indicazors are
forecas:. The pnncipal nsks are set outr on pages 30 10 53
Of “hese risks, those which are expecied w0 have a higher
Impac: on the Company's longear-term prospacts are
those related o the current macroeconomic environmenst,
which has increased the level of nisk around the
Company's financing arrangemen:s regarding borrewing
terms and covenants. The nsk assoclated with a
distuption o share price diue 10 negative senmment in
the social housing sector bemmgdentfied as having

the highes: impac: and Likellhood. The Company has
considered 178 strategy over a longer ‘erm and, i igh:

of the inheren: demand for the Company's properies
and the vainerable naure of the ulimare enant, the

risk of change 1n fature housing policy 18 considered

to be lmited. The principal nisks are misigated by <he
Company's nsk management and internal control
processes, which function on an ongoing basis.

The Joard, via delegation to the Audir and Vanagement
“ngagemen: Comimiee, maniiors “he effectiveneass of
the Company's sk management and nternal control
processes on an ongoing basis The montoring acnviies
are desgcrnibed in the Repori of the Audit and Managemer:
ngagemen: Commites on pages 60 10 62 and

include direct review and challenge of the Company's
documented nisks, risk ratings and contrals, and review
of performance and compliance repors prepared by

“ha Company's key suppliers and the independent
exiernal audiiors.

The Joard of Jireciors has carred ou: a rolust
assessmen: of the pnincipal and emerging nsks facing
‘he Company, including those thar waould hreaten is
business model. funire performance, solvency and
liquidty. Where appropniate. the Company's forecass are
sublect ‘o sensuivicy analyss, which involves applving
severe {ut plausible) condiions and flexing a number of
assumpnions simaliansously.

The sensinivities performed were designod tn provide
the Directors with an understanding of the Company's
performance 1n the event of severe bu: plausible
downside scenanos, raking full accoun: of mutiganng
actions that could be raken to avoid or reduce the impac:
or occurrence of the underlying risks outhned below:

e 0% of renants defaulting under a lease. The ouicome of
+hig scenano reduces profits on average over the five
year forecas: by 8% per annum and reduces cash by
£20 muilion. However, the goard remains comfortable
‘hat dividends could be paid and any halhhnes could
L:e settled as there 15 sull a sufficien: level of cash 1n the
business. Therefore the business remams viable over
‘he five year penod and

e detenoration in economic outlook, or a change in
government housing policy which could impac: the
fundamernials of the social housing sector, including
a negalive impac: on valuauons and a 5% reducuon
In annual rents. The outcome of *he severe downside
scenano was that the Company's covenan: headroom
on exisiing debt (the level ar which the invesimen:
property values would have 1o fall before a financial
breach occcurs) reduces by '3%, prior 1o any mitigating
acions such as asset sales, which indicates thar
covenanis on exisung faciines would not be breached.

The remainming pnncipal ngks and uncerramnties, whils:
having an iumpac: on the Company's business, are

no: considered by the Mirectors to have a reasonable
hkelihood of impaciing the Company's viabiliny over the
five-year penod, therefore the scenanaos outhined above
are the only ones ha: have been speafically tesied.

Based on the resulis of their assessment. norwithsianding
‘he marenal ancer;amry ansing from the offer from C<A,
“he Direcrors have a reasonable expecranon thar the
Company will be able 1o continiue in operasion and mees
175 habilities as they fall due over the five-year penad of
“helr agsessmens.

Michael Wrobel

Chairman

28 June 2623
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The Portfolio’s Carbon Footprint
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Tonnes (TCO.) per Civitas Tenancy

March 2023

2.61

Lnergy Performance Cemificates (=2Cs) are 1ssued
following the energy survey of a property by an energy
assessor. 5PCs Mlustrate the energy efficiency of propernes
and give a property an energy raung from A {very
afficient) 1o G {inefficien. zach £pC ts vahd for 10 years and
includes a list of recommendanons tha: provide guidance
on howr the energy efficiency of the propery could be
mproved o reduce energy bills and carbon emissions.

March 2022
2.65

Source Civitas tefamed EPC data

All rental propemes are legally required to have an L’C
n the UK and a good energy ratnng indicates that the
residents of the property will benefi: from:

e Lower energy bills - energy efficien: properses will
result in comparably lower resident consumprion and
therefore reduce energy bills

e l.ower carbon footprint — increasing the energy
efficiency of the properties will lower carben emissions

e [mprove propery value - improving the energy
rasng will also likely enhance the valde and ensure
consistenty low void levels ar the properues.

Civitas EPC Distribution (Domestic/Non-Domestic) — March 2023

Non-domestic/Higher Acuity [l Domestic/Homes

11.4%

Domestic/Homes

39.8%

431%
40.9%

36.3%

Suurce Crvitas refained EPC data
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Energy Performance/SAP Ratings

Carbon Reduction — EPC/SAP Ratings

Civitas continues to improve the overall energy performance, with a
continued focus on properties with EPC ratings D and E, through active asset
management, including property improvement works, renovations and
scheduled post-completion works.

EPC Distribution across the Portfolio at 31 March 2023

D342
E 11
F QO

G 0.0

Crvizas 88~ properies end o offer larger accommodanon for tenants than convennonal social housing or other prnivate
dwellings. The properies are predomimanly sireer properaes bl pre 1918 with sohd walls.

As showt i the lable below, ~he energy performance of the Civiras portfoho compares favourably agains: the
performance across all housing tendres as reporned in the 2020/% Snglhish Sousing Survey 152380 Civinas 585 properies
have a larger proporion of detached and semi-derached properies compared o social rented and private rented
dvrellings.

CorﬁparabTé EPC} SAP 'Rati'ngs -
by tenure (%) (domestic/homes only)

Energy Performance Certification Band

A/B c D E _F G _ Rating
29 400 468 78 22 03 657
30 415 417 88 37 12 649
.85 6882 @281 23 07 02 701
30 445 427 71 22 05 663

Owner occupied

Privale renled

Social rented

All tenures

Civitas domestic (March 2023)  11.0 409 364 1.7 0.0 0.0 671

Soutee English Housing survey (2021) Annex Table 2 8 Energy efti-lency 1atng bands by enme 20218 Annax Table 27 Mean 3AP manng by tenre 2021



E.ON Partnership (Phase 2)

‘ON

The collaboranon with =.ON has been based on the
adoptuon of a ‘fabrnic first' approach o reducing the
portfoho's carbon fooprin. Jetalled retrofit surveys
identfy the potennal o mstall cavity wall insulaton, loft
insulaion. exsernal wall insulation, air source heat pumps
and solar PV and battery storage a: targeted properties.
The ingtallazion of these energy efficient measures (where
considered viable), unhsing availlable governmen: grants
and other funding sources. maximises value for the
Company and for our counterparsies. The environmen:zal
enhancemen:s are being delivered at no cost 1o our
Approved Providers.

Bracken Hill, Mirfield

Working with Approved Providers, the ongoing

“hase 2 retrofis surveys are being underiaken to refine the
implementanion programme and wientfy the bes: method
for reducimg the total carbon dioxide emissions (and

fuel costs) associated with indwidual properties over the
medtum or long term The overall energy performance of
“he portfolio, as idenufied on Fnvironmental Performance
Ceruficates {(EPC) repor:s data, has improved over the last
12 months. The proporion of properies with =2C Rating
A-Cis currently c55% and the carbon foorpnn: (estimated
from propery characternshes) has reduced by 2% per Civitas
senancy (from 2.65 tonnes of CO2/tenancy in Varch 2622 20
261 ronnes of COZ/tenancy.

A single storey cottage huilt dunng the late 1800s. Capital works were required to make some improvements to the
general appearance of the property and delwver energy iImprovernents to create an uplift in the energy rating.

CSE initlated mwo professional surveys - the first 1o unders:and the requirements tc undertake necessary repairs and
improve *he asset condition - the second 10 understand the energy improvemen: options available The works were
carefully planned and resulted in an overhaul of the asset with some of the works listed below:

e New UPYC windows and front door installed
e Sxternal wall msulanon
Repairs to roof and loft space
e Additional insulation into the loft space
« Replacemen: modern kitchen
Decoration throughout including flooring upgrades
e nstallation of high hea® retention storage heaters
¢ Addittonal ventilation installed

The EPC rating has improved from a Gto an E.

CSH is in the process of installing a dual tariff electricity meter which wil contuinue o improve the EPC rating to D.
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Social Impact

Social Impact - Publication of The Good Economy Report — Published THE

November 2022

The Good Economy (TGE) — November 2022

TGE. independent social impact advisory firm, assessed Civitas' performance against its stated

impact objective and the target outcomes to which the Company aims to contribute,

TGE considers that
Civitas has made a
meaningful contribution
to increasing supply

to meet the high

level of demand from
commissioners for
supported housing
across the country.

“The portfolio continues to
provide homes for people
with a range of support
needs, including leaming
disabilities, physical
disabilities and mental
health diagnoses.”

Impact Objective

“Civitas is systematically
improving the energy
efficiency of older stack
by running a retrofit
programme alongside
energy supplier EGN."

Contribute
Towards

GOOD
ECONOMY

“Civitas has consistently
provided support for
charitable aorganisations
whose activities align with
the Fund’s core mission to
deliver positive outcomes
for individuals with
support needs.”

Outcomes

0Qo

@

Social Need

Provide housing
that meets an
identified social
need

40% of residents
Living in Civitas
properties receive
over 50 hours of
care per week.

82% of residents
aged between
20 and 49

Supply
Increase the
supply of
scocial housing
across the UK
particularly
for vulnerable
peaple

41% of properties
new to social
housing at the peint
of acquisition

69% of properties
in the 40% most
deprived local
authotities

Quality

Improve the
quality of social
housing

Civitas have worked
with Approved
Providers. signing
off on adapiicns to
ensure properties
continue to meet the
changing needs of
residents

87% of respondents
reported that they
were satisfied wath
the quality of their
homes

Welibeing
Improve the
wellbeing of
residents

Vaiue

Gifer value for
money for the
public purse

53% of respondents
reported an
improvement in
their independence
betwecen

their previous
accommodation and
their current heme

£3.5115 created
1n social value
for every £1

of annualised
investment



Social Impact
Charitable Partnerships

The Company has suppored and worked wtith the following charities since [PO:

The Choir with No Name

The resual:s of an anenymous 2022/23 survey abou: the experience of choir members a* choir

demonstraze “he consistently posizive impac: and the value of CWNN work in improving the

lives of people impacted by homelessness.

= 89% reported a senge of belonging at choir

= 9% foel walned ar choar and said Jhon nnproved thetr confidence

= 85% have made meaningful friendships a: choir

» 84% saiwd chouw helps them feel less 1solated

88% said choir helped them feel more opuimistic abous Life

= 83% reported a greaser sense of purpose and fulfiimen: ag well as feeling motvated to iry
new hings

= 80% reported improved mental health

The House of The House of St. Barnabas
St Barnabas The House of 5t. Barnabas 1s a social enterpnise member's club that heips London's homeless
owwan people back ino work, through 125 ~mployment Academy.

Employmen: “reparation “rogramime:

= 100% of working graduates are satished with theiur jok hours

* 95% are sausfied with their job security

« 52% are satisfied with their pay

+ 95% have overall job satisfaction

= 97% say our men:ors have had a posinive impact on their quahty of life

WISH
WS 1s a membership-based network for wormen working across every digciphine of UK housing.
4 ’ with a focus on championing positive outcomes for women working in the sector. Crvizas suppor:
r contributes 1o the champloning of posimve outcomes for women working in the secior

VV IS

THE NE™WORX FOR woMen
WORK NG N SOCAL HOUSING

Littl e Little Sprouts Health and Wellbeing Charity
Ve Lattle Sprouts Healh and Wellbeing Chariry 1s dedicated 1o improving he health and wellbeing
sprouts of our community through cooking workshops, recipe bags, commurnity food shops, "check
and chater” programmes and surplus food collection and distnbution. Civitas suppor:s
Little Sprouts with the operational cos:s of the chanty, particularly during COViD-19. The funds
were used o open a further community shop which uses food as an engagement ool o help
address physical, social, mental and financial 1gsues.

The Care Workers’ Charity
The Care Workers' Charity (CWC) exisrs 1o help care and support workers through crisia using
financial suppor: and suppor: centres. Civitas suppor: funds raming of mental health ‘first aiders’
1o provide each CWC member company, with the traiming and tools o provide berer menral
heal:h support to the care workers.

the

Care
workers
chariy
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Charity Partners Case Studies

The Choir with No Name

The Choir with No MName {CWNN has heen ranning choirs
nvolving people impacted by homelassness since 2008,
growing from a first rehearsal in London with just five
people, 0 six thnving choir communiies, singing with
over 700 pecple and performing for tens of thousands of
peaople across the UX every year We curren:ly have choirs
in London, Lawerpool, 3righon, 3itmingham, Carchiff and
Coventry, with plans o launch more choirs over the nex:
few years

The Choir with No Narne formula is simple, bus it works:
waekly choir rehearsals all year round followed by a

hot meal together, and excinng, aspirational gugs for
evaeryona o work :owards and look forward to. Qur choirs
are supporive, safe spaces for people going through a
tough ume, empowering them <o feel more able o ackle
<he challenges they face We are currenly evolving our
way of working into a more co-produced and culturally
democratc approach, with choir members getting more
mvolving in the design and delivery of thewr chours, which
15 a really exciting transformanon for -he organisation.

Creanve programmes are exiremely effective in achieving
postive outcomes for people impacied by homelessness.
They rackle inequality. increase social inclusion and
challenge prejadice. i ¢an help people o progress

rhear wider inreres:s. which 15 especlally imporiant in
reducing anxiety and loneliness that can ofien affec:
people mpacied by homelassness, even when hey
move on o ndependen: accommodanon. We suppor:
members 10 make friends, improve their wellbeing. baild
confidence and skills, and posimively impac: their personal
circumsiances owsstde of choir

‘N our most recent 2023 member sarvey, 89% said they
felt a gsense of belonging at chon 90% said 1 helped
increase their confidence, 83% said being in choir gave
them an increased sense of purpose and fulfilmen: and
/5% reported that thew paracipation in chor has helped
“hem achieve atieas: one pasiive life change auiside
chorr, including secunng housing. inding work or betrer
management of addictiions. We are extremsly proud of
these results.

We established our parmnership with Civizag Social
=ousing 2le in 2017 and have been exiremely grateful
recipien:s of ongommyg suppor: for the costs of delivenng
odr weekly rehearsaly and foor stamping gigs every year.
Thanks o Civitas. we can keep our doors open. the music
playing and our members singing, providing something
o look forward "o every week and digs 10 work towards: a
chance o sociahse with their fnends, eat a hot dinner, and
alumately feel seen and heard.

A word from our choir members:

Ruthie's Story

66

When 1 first started singing with CWNN I was really
nervous just standing there in the group singing.
Then, by the Christmas concert, I was grabbing

the mic and singing solo! My confidence has really
improved, 1 think it's because you just feel like you're
in a really safe space and that people genuinely ¢are
about you. It just feels very loving and authentic.

There's been so many unforgettable moments and
sO many emotional moments. It's amazing seeing
other people transform as well. I've made friends
and connections and, the big thing is, trust. It's been
a real big deal to me that people actually care. They
genuinely care and naotice when you're missing. It
sounds a bit extreme, but people care if you're alive
and that you're alive and well. It's been consistent. It

doesn’t stop. ’ ’

Richard's Story

66

I've sung all my life so when I heard about the Choir
with No Name I thought it could be for me, ] was
living at the Salvation Army at the time. The best thing
about choir is the confidence it gives me. I've broken a
25-year cycle with drugs — 1 don't think I could've done
it without choir. When 1 talk to people who aren’t sure
if CWNN is for them 1 say, ‘Come along once, I'll sit next
to you and if you don't like it you don’t have to come
back’. I've encouraged a few people to join and so far,
they've all come back! I'm so happy to have found
CWNN. In my first rehearsal I was so nervous, but by
the second I was singing my heart out. It's made such
a difference. I'm not existing anymore, I'm living, and

that's huge. , ’




Charity Partners Case Studies

House of St Barnabas

The House of 5t Barnabas 1s a social enterpnse and chany
that works 1o support people affected by homelessness
back into long-term employment. Our vision s of a future
where lasung good work, a secure home and a supporuve
network are a reality for those affecied by homelessness.

Lnderpinned by ourwibrant members clubin Soho, our
tmployment Academy provides on site employmaont
and skills rramung for people who have expernenced
homelessness.

We work with around 100 people every vear and 79% of
graduates report their quality of life has improved since
parucipanng in the =mploymen: Academy.

Qur menenng component 18 the key 10 our success

and. thanks 1o suppor: from Civitas, we are closer o
succeeding mn our mission of "Good Work, Good Home' for
all our graduazes.

Mentoring at the House of St Barnabas is not raditional
1n the way hat profassional menzoring requires a similar
set of knowledge and expaniences. 115 relationship-based
mentoring which s based around interpersonal skilis

and comrmuntcaion, The purpose of the role 1s 2o work
sogether with —mployment Academy swaff 1o suppor
people o work and help them progress.

Our mentors have had a positive impac: on qualiy-of-hfe
changes for 97% of respondents

Jill and Ellen

Ellen began her journey as a men:or by pariicipaing

In our two-day raming, which provides exiensive
preparation for this very special role. She quickly followed
Jp by attending “he mentonng speed dating' even:
where she met several recent graduates looking o be
paired with a mentor. However, she was contacted by

‘he Merzonng Team 1o askif she would be mmterested 1n
men-arng someone she hadn’t had the chance o mee:
because “hey couldn’; atzend the 'speed daung' even: due
10 childecare respongibilities

This is how Ellen met Jill

Jill and her young daughser found themselves homeless
I 2G4 hithdidnt have a job and didn’: know what she
wanted o de erher. Lnsure of where 10 go or what o

do, she umed 10 a social worker for help, who arranged
remporary accommodanon for ll and her daughrer.

Then [ill was patin wuch with Eouse of §t 3arnabas. Afrer
graduaung from the Smployment Preparaion 2rogramme,
she had the opportuney o be paired with a menzor.

=len and Nl mes: for their first mentonng session as the
s3ringh Library They quickly connecred over the fact that
Il had a five-year-old daughter and Fllen has experience
of bringing up young children in wondon. =llen had lats
of suggestions for free activittes for children. Thig bul:
Il's confidence 1o azend gallernes and muaseams with her
daughter, which she had never done before,

Asg they developed thelr mentornng relationship, Sllen
also helped hll o updaze her CV and cover lester She
also encouraged il 1o sign up for free computer hieracy
courses and provided support with iT's application for
a winter fuel allowance as well as making sure tha: she
recerved her Chnstmas benefi- honus.

Jill has since secured a job as bansta ar a Soho members’
ctub on a par:-1ime basis so she can balance her childcare
respongibilties.

Jill's Story

66

I didn’t know what to expect from the House of St
Barnabas. On the first day of the course, I thought it
wasn't really for me. But after my first week, I loved it!
Everyone there understood what 1 was going through,
day by day I felt more confident and more comifortable
being there. it felt like being with family. You get

used to waking up and having no one to talk 1o, but
suddenly I had people to talk to! It gave me a reason
to get up in the morning. Being at the House was a
lifesaver for me, it's definitely more than just a course.

”
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Governance
Frameworks

In addition to the ESG indices, Civitas bartic—ip_éﬁé in 'th_é"folléwing frameworks
which don't issue a grading.
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United Nations Sustainable Development Goals
(“UN SDGs”) Alignment

Impact Objectives UN SDGs

Provide high-quality. energy efficient homes
Acquire High-Quality Homes incorporating aclaptations for people with
lifelong care needs

Target properties which address the needs.
and improve health and wellbeing of
vulrerable individuals requiring a high level
of care

Local job ¢reation during construction

Q Q Q Satisfy Social Need Employment via Approved Providers/

@ refurbishments and care providers on
respensible employment terms. including
living wage

Otfer local apprenticeships and contripute 10
local community everits

Provide Value for Money for public carg and
housing budgets by enabling vulnerabie
individuals to move out to institutional and
residential settings

Provide Value for Money

Buy and convert existing and newly
Increase Supply compieted properties from private to social
housing sector In perpetulty

Ensure Approved Providers and Care
Providers have tre capability and capacity

to deiiver high-guality service and cutcomes
@ Build Quality Partnerships for residents over the long term

Green lease terms to be agreed with the
counterparties

Adopt sustainability policy at governance level

Governance

Counterparty Governance

CIM, the Company's Investment Adviser, has engaged actively with i1s Approved Provider partners throughout the last
year, providing shared advice and learning through:

This counterparty engagement has ensured that CIM is able to proactively work with its Approved Providers with any
matters arising to support a continued high level of operational performance. This support builds on our
long-term relaticnship with the senior management and helping to build resilience within the organisations.
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Governance

Indices

CIM's implementation of the Board’s commitment to continuous improvement in its approach to ESG integration
remains core to the investment strategy. Over the last year, we have engaged with ESG Rating Agencies such

as GRESB (formerly Global Real Estate Sustainability Benchmark), MSCI (Morgan Stanley Capital International),
Sustainalytics, and EPRA sBPR.
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Board of Directors

The Directors of the Company who were in office during the period and up to the
date of signing the financial statements were:

Michael Wrobel, Chairman

Michae. as gver 40 years experience in the invesimen:
indasiry as a porifoio manager and of rwnning iNsiutuong.
pusinesses and reial’ businesses a: Fidewy and Garmore, [e
sorves as a rugtee director of the BAT UK Pension Fund ] Male 60%
De.zche Bank UK pension schenics and as a rustce ot Lhe

Cooper Gay (Hoidings) Limited Retremeon: Bencfits Scacme. Female 40%
Micnael has previous ¥ servad as a non-oxed..nve Director of

SEVETd) INVes ment rusis and a nomoer of indusiry associanons.

Micnasel nas an MA in Economics from Camoridge LIniversioy.

Michae. was appointed 1o 10 Board on 24 Ocioocr 2016 and has
served as Cnairman since s apRomument

Caroline Gulliver, Director

Caro.inc s a caarered accownian: with over 25 years” cxperience a: Ernst & Young LLP During that ame,
s5:18 specialised In (1 asse! managemen: secor and deve gped exicnsive expenance of invesimen
TTUsiS. Sne was 4 memoer of vanous iechnica, comn itiees ol (he Association of Invesimen: Companies.
8¢ (s A 50 A non-execuiive dircaar dand gaade commiiee onarr foc JP Maorgan Glooa Energing Mar<e's
Tncome Trus: p.c. Internauona, Bioiconno ogy Trust oic and anrdn European Logistics Income pic.

Caro'ine was appointed o vne Board on 24 O«
Lngagemron: Commiree

oper 2015 and nas served as ALdl and Managoemen:
C1a1r since her appoinimrant

Peter Baxter, Director
Peter as over 35 years exporience in e imvesinen: wanageman indusiry. Hes a direciar of Snowona |
[ opac Managemen: Lid. 4 sowia (moact invesiamen: argamsaion, and g irusiee ol Trust for London, a
anao.e foundation He is aiso a non-exceaave direcior ot Blac<Rocs Groater European nvesimen:
g: Truss ¢ Provious.y, e servad as Chief Drecuiive of O.d Muua. Asser Managaers (0K Tid. and has
\ wor<ed {or Scaroders and T Samr.el in a vaney of invesinen: ro.es He 1o.ds an MBA rom London

Business 3ch00 and 15 an associate ot e Sociowy ol Invesinren: Prolessiona.s.

Pelcr was aopoinied (0 e Board on 24 Oooocr 2015 and 12 1ae 3enior Inde pendan: Direcior and
Nomination and Remuncraiion Commitiae Chalrman

Alastair Moss, Director

Aastarr is a properny deve opmoen' awyor wiin over 20 yoars expearicnee and g a parmera: fi.
Dickinson. He was a non-execuiive direcior of Noting Hi. Cenesis 7rus: He is a 8o a former Chairman
aof ine Invesimen: Comimies ot 1ne Civ of London Cargoration, 15 Progary Invesimen: Board and s

P anning and Transporanon Commites He is a Trugiee of Marsna. s Charity e nas a so peen a aoard
momoer of Sono flousing Association and was a memocer of 110 Arca Board of ChyWes: Iomes, e was
a Uowncl.or al Wesimrinsgter Ciiy Cooncll for 12 years, inc..ding ms en.rc as Charrman of 1ne Paanning &
City Deveoonon: Commilice

Acasiar wag aopoinimd 1o iae Board on 24 Gooacr 2015

Alison Hadden, Director
fAizon 1as over 30 years exoerionce in tne ao.sing ind Lsiry and nas no d a namoer of Txeculive
00SUIONS 4 Severa IMa or 10.W8Ing assoctanons, ine wding CEO a: Paradhyn [fo.sing. In taese 1o es sae
“as wor<ed Wit many of e siageao.ders in e ind Lsiry ne..ding e Regaaor of 3ocial Holsing
s1e 1w current v Viee Caalr and a e oor 0f 1 Covernances Commines ol Peass and Paains Hodsing

. $ and Cnrair of Heyiord Rogoneration, a tor-orotiz [fo ssing Associa 1on oocraing in mac Caorwa.. arca
Ao1s0n was aoooinied to e Board on 2l Povemoer 2819




Report of the Directors

The Directors present their Report and the audited consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Principal Activities

The Company = 4 clused-ended invesimen: company
and s a R=IT which was incorporated 1in =ngland and
Wales on 29 Seprember 2016. The Caompany 1s the holding
company of a numkbker of subsidianes and 125 Ordinary
shares weare admired 0 rtachng on the Mamn Marke:

of the _ondon S-ock Exchange on 18 November 2006

The Company inves:s in properiies or propeny-holding
S2Vs, erther direc:ly or via a wholly-owned subsidhary,

in accordancea with the Company's investmen: objective
and pohicy.

Business Review

A review of the business and future developments is
coniained 1N *he Chairman’s Statemen: and .nvesimen:
Adwviser's Rreport The principal nsks and dncerraintes are
dezalled on pages 50 to 33 See note 350 for 2 summary of
vhe post balance shee: events

Resulits and Dividends
The resulis for the year are shown on page 3.

The following cividends were paid on the Ordinary
shares dunng ‘he year

7173;7;;) per share

E:urth::{liarterl; o

dividend _paid on 28 June 2022
First quarterly T ‘47;; per share
dividend pald on 9 Sepember 2022
Second quarterly ~ azsppershare
dividend paid on 9 December 2022
7Tl:i:;lmriteﬁrly - N :lggper share
dividend paid on 20 March 2623

Since the year end. the Company has declarad the
following drvidend:

B 425-p per sh are
patd on 9 June 2023

Fourth qaa;te;l;
dividend

No final dividend s being recommended on the Ordinary
shares.

Directors
The members of the Board are hsted on page 43.

All Directors served throughout the penod under review

The 3oard consists solely of non-execunave Directors,
each of whom is independen: of the nvesimen: Adwviser.
The Company has no execunve Direciors or emplovees.

n accordance with 3oard policy, all irectors will retire
and, being ehgible, will stand for re-election at the AGM

2erformance evaluanon of the Beoard, 11s Commiitees and
individaal Directors 1 carned out in accordance with the
procedure set out on pages 56 and 57

No irector 1s under a contract of service with the
Company and no Jirector or any persons conneciad
wi:h them had a matenal interest in the ransactons
and arrangemen:s of the Company. Jetails of Directors’
remuneration are st ous In “he Jirectors’ Remuneraion
Repor: on pages 64 to 67

The beneficial interes:s of the Jirectors 1in the secuntes
of the Company are s&7 our in the Direciors Remuneraion
Repor: on page &7,

Through thetr Letrers of Appointmen:, the Company
has provided indemnuiies to the Direciors, o the exien:
permitted by law and the Company's Aricles, in respecs
of habilittes which may anse 1in connecluon with claims
relazing o their performance or the performance of the
Company whilst they are Directors. There are no other
guahfying “hird-pary indemniiies in force.

The general powers of the Directors are conramed
within the relevan: U< lemgislanon and the Company's
Artcies of Associanon. The Directors are entizled o
exercise all powers of the Company, subjec: 1o any
hmizations impesed by “he Aracles of Association or
apphicable legislation As set out on pade 50, the Aracles
of Association may only be amended by way of a special
resolunion of shareholders.
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Report of the Directors
Continued

Capital Structure

Issue of Shares

AT the AGWV held on 15 Seprember 2027, the Direcrors were
authonsed o 158ue equly Securies Up 10 an aggregae
nominal amoun: of £670,736 (cewng approximaely (0% of
the gsued Ordinary share capizal).

The Company was also authonsed o disapply
pre-emption nghts in respect of equity secunines and
to1ssUe equlty securnies for cash up 10 an aggregate
nomunal amoun: equal o £610,/36 (being approxtmately
0% of the 1ssued Ordinary share capiral

Purchase of Own Shares

A the AGM held on 25 September 2022, the Direciors vrere
granted the authority o buy kack ap 10 97,519,583 Ordinary
shares, bemyg “4.99% of the Ordinary shares inssue a7 the
e of the passing of the resotunon.

Juring the yvear, he 3oard maimntained the Companys
share buyback programme, under which a -o:al of
£.050.000 shares have been parchased into reasury foran
aggregate amoiint of £4.624.9317.50 mominal valae FBQhol,
representing 0.97%) as at 30 March 2023

The aurhority o buy back up wo 97,549,583 shares wall
expire at the concliision of the nexr AGY of the Company
or on 30 Seprember 2023, whichever s sarher, when

a resoliution for s renewal will be proposed Surther
mformaiion will be contained in the Nonce of AGM, which
wnll he circulazed -0 shareholders in due course,

Current Share Capital

As ar 5" Varch 20235, “here were 622467, 38C Ordinary
shares inassiue, of which "8 075,000 shares were held 1n
treamlry. representng 2.8% of The Company's "ozal 1ssuad
share capiral, The wotal vonng nights of the Company as at
“ March 2025 was 606,386,380

Shareholder Rights

Ordinary Shares

~ach Ordinary sharsholder 1= enuled 1o one vore

on a showr of hands and, on a poll. "o one vote for
every Ordinary share held. The ngh o atvend and

e ar general meenngs: of “he Company may be
1cted where a shareholder has failled -o provide
mnformanion pargaant “o a notce seryed under secion
753 of “he Companies Ao 2006 The Ordinary shares
carry ‘he nghs o recewve dividends declared by the
Company “rovided “he Company ha sfied all of
128 habihmes, dunng a winding-up of “he Company.
“he holders of Ordinary sharas are ensriled to all of the
surplus asses of the Company

Transfers of Shares

Thers 1s no resneion on the ransfer of the Company’s
shares other “han rransfers 7o more “han four join:
ransferees and -ransfers of shares which are no® fully
waid up or where “he ransferor or any other person wwhormn
he Company reasonably beheves 1o be intar=sed im the
rransferor’s chares has been duly served with a nonice
TVATSULANT 10 secnon 7935 of the Companiss Aot 2006

Takeover 12 comp

There are no special nghts with regard o control attached

10 secunTies: no agreements between holders of secunies

regarding herr rransfer known to the Company: and no

agreemen:s which the Company s pary to that mugh:

affect ts control following a successful takeover bud '

Articles of Association

The Company's Aricles of Associanon may only be i
amended by a special resclunion at a general meenng of
‘he shareholders

As atthe date of signing thug 2epors, the toral vonng
rnights of the Company was 5606,586.480

Management Arrangements

Investment Adviser

The 3oard has appoinied the nvestmen: Adwviser, Clvitas
nvesrmen” Managemern: amried, 1o provide invesimen:
advice and "o asser manadge the property portfolio and the
assoclated day-to-day activiies, includinng mandagemens:
of :enanted properuas and markenng acaivittes, OV 15 a
speciahst imvestor in social housing property, with a foous
on specialis: social housing, and has exiensive experience
i social housng and real ate INVesTmen:.

The duties of CV include the sourcing of invesimen:
opporsanisies tha: mee: theinvesimen: critena of the
Company. conrolling he acqusion of approved
properiies, asse: managemen: of all properties wihin
“he= porifoho, ongomng montonng of -he properies and
renan:s. mainaiming complitance with all relevant rales
and regualanons. and providing markeang and imves:or
rslazions services o the Company.

Detalls of the fees pavable 10 the nvesimen: Adviser are

descnbed in note 8.0 of “he financial statemen:s The

basis for the calcalanon of the nvesimen: Advisers fees s :
bazed upon the TT38 MNAY

The agreemen: with 7V 15 wermunable on nos less than
months notice by erher pary, such notice no: 2o explre
earher than =0 vay 2025.

The performance of The nvesimen” Adviser has

heen revievwrad on an ongoing kasis hroughoa the
reriad by the 3oard at s quarerly mestings. A formal
anndal evalaanon g also carned ol by the Audr and

Vanagemernl: sngagemen: Commiies

The 3oard considers a number of factors including

inves men: performance, The quality and quaniy of

Invesimen: opporanmes prezented. the ghills and

axpanence of key z:aff and sha capalnyluy and resourne:

of tha nvesimen: Adviser "o deliver satsfaciory

performance for the Company. The 3nard 13 sansfied with .
“he performance of the nvas men: Adviser and considears
173 conmied appomntmen- o be in the best intersstg of The
Company and 172 shareholders.

The soard hag nored the interiion of wWellne STHTY
amited fa wholly owned subsichary of < Agser —oldinegs
imrred; o mamntain G1viias nvesTment anagemean.
_imniced as nvestment Adwviser 1o the Company once “ha
red. On 23 [une 2023 “he Takeover Offar
came ancondrmonal,

ke




Report of the Directors
Continued

AlIfM

G0 Caprtal Limuited ("G107 or the "AiF™Y) has been
appomnted as the Company's AlFM with effec: from

24 August 2077, The AIFM currently recerves a monthly
fee of 2.7 basis points of the Comparny's 1o7al NAV for1is

services and the agreement 1s terminable on three months’

notuce by erther party

Depositary

‘ndos fmnancial Limized was appointed as the Company’'s
Leposiary with eftec: from & June 20°8. The Deposuary
provides cash monitoring, safekeeping and asset
venfication and oversight funcions as prescnbed by the
Al:ernative Invesimen: Fund Managers Directive. The
Deposirary receves an annual fee of F59.000, net of VAT,
plas O G06% 0f “he first £350 million of any new equity
caprral raised per annum and 0.003% of further equity
ra1sed per annum, subjec: to a maximum fee of £.50.000
per annam. The agreement 1s terminable on six monihs'
nonce by erther party.

Administrator

The Company has appoimn:ed .nk Alrernative cund
Adminisirators imtted {("Link™ as the Admimistrazor

of the Company and i's subsidianes, with effec: from

28 “ebraary 20:8. 1o underiake the accouniancy and other
admiristranve dunes of the Company. Link s a spectals:
adminisiraTor for invesimen: funds, providing sapport
funcuons and experass tallored for s indus:ry

The Administrazor receives a fixed base fee for the
provision of 175 services to the Company as well as an
enntlemen: o addinonal vanable fees for dunes relaning
10 corporate activiues. The agreementis terminable on a-
feast six months' notice by errher party.

The dunes of the Administrator inchide “he maintenance
of all Company and subsidiary books and records,
excluding “hose mamtained by the nvesimen: Adviser,
monionng compliance with apphcable relevant rales and
regulanons and other adminisirative duties as required.

Company Secretary

“ink Company Maters _imlied was appoinzed as the
Company Secrerary 10 he Company with effect from

28 March 2078 The Secretary recerves a fixed fee for “he
provision of 115 services to the Company. The agraemen:
was for annpal period of one year and thereafrer

automancally renews for successive pertods of 22 months.

unless rerminated by erher pary on at leas: six months
NOTICE,

Review of Service Providers

The performance of the service providers is reviewed

on an ongoing kasis throughous the pertod by the

Audir and Managemen: Sngagemen: Commies and
formally once a year The Commitiee considers a number
of factors meludimg performance of dunes, the skills

and expeanence of key s1aff, and the capabiliy and
resources of -he service provider “o deliver sansfaciory
performance for “he Company.

The 3oard s sansfied with the performance of “he servire
providers appoimnted by the Company and considers their
continued appoinimen: 1o be 1n the bestinterests of the
Company and itg shareholders.

Substantial Shareholdings

AT 31 March 2023 the Company had keen informed of
‘he following disclosable interests in the share capzal of
he Company:

Numbet of Fercentage of

Ordinary Tortal Voting
I I - __shares _ Rights
nvestec Wealth & Investmen: Limited 6265387 "0.33
Ske i ska Fns anke 3 o .
Skandinawviska rnskida Banken A 5066 767 560
{publ
S-andard Life Aberdeen 50,487,544 $.03
Wassacht 5 1al Services
Vassachuset:s ‘inancial Services 50,300, 44 500
Company
Tiuney Smith & Wilhameson Limured 28844825 4.76
"eqgal & General Group Pl (Graap!) "8.235.740 oM

Blackiock, «n¢ 3elow 5%

Continuation Vote

‘n accordance with 178 Arncles. the 3oard proposed an
ordinary resolution that the Company should conninue
in its cuarrent form o shareholders at the AGM held on
15 September 2022 As the resolunon was approved by
shareholders. the Company will therefore conunae 115
business as presen:ly constiated and will propose a
farther continuation resolunon at the AGMV in 2027, The
3pardis mindfal thas. as the Takeover Offer by Wellness
Unrty amred (a wholly owned indirec: subsichary of

C¥ Asser “oldings Limied) has on 23 June 2023 been
declared uncondinonal, the resclunions proposed and the
forma: of the Company's future AGMs may be impacted.

Listing Rule 9.8.4

The hsung rule 9.8 4 outhnes a senes of requiremen:s
for hsted companies to disclose cerrain 1rems ‘The
Directors confirm that the Company g requured to make
a disclosure in respect of the diversiy requiremen:s
outhned in Listng Rule 9.8.6 (9). This disclosure can

be found on page 56. There are no furher disclosures
required 1 relation to Lisang Rule 9.8.4.

Financial Instruments

The Company unilises financial iInsiraments in 17s
operanons. The financial nstrumen:s of the Company at
3 March 2023 comprised rade receivables and pavalles,
other debrors, cash and cash equivalents, non-currens
borrowings, current borrowings and denvanves

Qrher than its fixed 1interest rate debst facilines, 1115 the
Directors’ opimion that the carrying value of all financial
msiramen:s on the Consolidated Statemen: of Tinancial
Pagmon 1s equal ‘o therr farr value.

“or a maore detailed analysis of the Company's financial
risk managemens:, please refer o note 31 ¢ of the
financal =tatements.
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Report of the Directors
Continued

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The Board has considered the requirernen:s o disclose
she annual quanny of emissions in tonnes of carban
dioxide equivalens: for acavities for which the Company
1s responsible The 3oard kelieves that the Company
has, from a formal reporung perspecuve, no reportable
emissions as this reparang falls under the lessees’
responsimlity ag parn of the rerms of their fully repainng
and insunng leases, emissions produced from erther

-he registered office of the Company or from the offices
of other service providers are deemed to fall under the
responsibility of other parnes; and the Company has not
leased or owned any vehicles which fall inside the scope
of the G=G ’rotocoel Comporate Standard. n relation o
the Sreamhined -nergy and Carbon Reporng (S2C3R),
implemenred by The Companies (Oirecrors’ Report) and
mred Tiabilicy Partmerships (Energy and Carbon repors
Regulatons 2078, for the year ended 31 March 2023 the
Group is considered o0 be a low energy user

Regardless of the obliganons of other paries. the
Company rakes the 1sue of environmental enhancemen
and emigsions seriously as pars of 1ig overall =5G sirazedqy
and 1s evaluaung ~he porfolio, working with housing
managers, wo consider where 11 can bring about further
enhancements and improvemen:s.

“urther detaills can be found in the “nvironmencal, Social
and Governance repor: on pages 37 10 46

Political donations

No poliical donanons were made by the Company or s
subsidianes during the vear or the pnor year

Charitable Donations

‘n addrion o rg direct invesimenss, the Company plays
a broader part within the communiiieg in which 1o
works. Whils: recognising the pracucal hmranions that
all financial mves:ors face, Civitas suppors voluntary
organigaions tha: are acuve wirhin the broader housing
and homelessness envirgnimen: Crviias also uvends, as
rar: of 11s broader financial and operational reporang. 1o
provide a commen:ary on ‘he posiiive sonal ¢hange
and irnpac: thas resubis from the invesiments ‘hat have
been made.

The followiny charntable donations were paid durning the
vear:

Charity

—— Donanon
Choir with No Name

£17.350
FA0.708

WS FB.BIC

=ouse of 37 3arnabas

The Care Workers Charity

Taral

Independent Auditors

nhe case of each irecrorin office at the das The 2epor

of “he Jirectors 1s approved:

e s0faray “he Direcior s aware -here (¢ no relevan”
auadiinformanon of which “he Group and Company's
audurors are anaware: aned

¢ ‘hey have taken all the steps that they ought o have
saken ag a Drector in order 10 make themsslves aware
of any relevan: audir informanon and o esrabhish thas
rhe Group and Company's auditors are aware of tha:
mformation.
“nicewarerhouseCoopers P has expressed its wallingness
0 connnude t0 act as audrors of the Company and a
resclution for 1ws re-appoinimen: will be proposed at the
202% annual general meeung. The Board 1s mindful thaz.
should as rakeover offer by Wellness Unity “a1mated {a
wholly owned indirec: subsidiary of C< Agse: —oldings
_imized) has on 23 June 20235 been declared anconditional,
‘he resolutions proposed and the format of the Company's
AGW may e impacted.

Takeover Offer Process

On 9 Vay 2023, the Company announced tha: the 3oard had
reached agreemen: with Wellness Lnty amited (@ wholly
owned indirect subsidiary of CX Asset =oldings “umied:
i-he ‘Offerort on the terms of o recommendead all-cash
offer far the entre 1ssued share caprial of the Company, to
bemplemented by a Takeover Qffer {the "Offer’.

Lnder the terms of the Offer, each shareholder will be
eritled 10 receve 80 pence 1in cash for each share heid
in the Company. .n addimaon, shareholders who were on
‘he register a: the close of business on "9 ¥ay 2025 were
enitiled ro recerve and retain the fourh quarer dividend
of 2425 pence (N respec: of the pertod * fatiary 033 o

3" Varceh 20235

arther on 22 May 2024, the Company 1ssued a cireular to
shareholders with respect "o the recommended cash offer,
which set 0.7, "hat for shareholders ‘o accep: the Offer a
Torm of Acceprance mus: be recewved by the ecerving
Agen: o later han 2" Jaly 2024 Subsequen: 1o this, the
daze for shareholder -orm of Acceprances 1o be recewved
by the Recewing Agen: was brough: forward o 25 kine
2023, On 25 June 2023, the offeror announced that the offer
was declared ancondiiional.

The 3nard, which has been advized by "he Company's
Jonne 3rokers anmidre Gordon and oberam! as o the
financial rerms of the Offer. considers he terms of the Offer
o b fair and reasonable

The Offeror has indicated 175 Intention (subijec: 1o *he Offer
Beng declared uncondinional wath the Offeror obraiming
75 per cent or more of the vosing nigh:= of -he Company:
o delig: the Company from “he ondon Swock =xchange
“an Aarke: for sted secuntes and thereafer re-regis-er
‘he Company as a private imred company as soon as
praciicable following ~he cancellasion of isung and
crading of the Company's shares, This process will take
place following the release of the Annual Repor.

Corporate Governance
The Corporate Governance 3:atement. “he Repor: of the
Auadit and Vanagemen: ~ngagemern: Commireea and “he
Nrectors Remuneration fepor: form par: of “he epor: of
“he rectors.
Approval
The Fepor of the Iirec-ors has Bean approved Iy -he 3oard.
¥y order of the 2oard
Link Company Matters Limited
Company Secratary
28 June 2023

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF LINK COMPANY MATTERS LIMITED
OMP.

C ANY SECRETARY "—7 s {M-\,_——-



Corporate Governance Statement

Background

The F'CA lLisning Rules and Disclosure Gidance and
Transparency Rules require hsred comparues o disclose
how they have applied the pninaiples and comphed

with the provisions of the corporate governance code

‘o which thessuer 1s subject. The provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code (UK Code™, as 1gsued by the
“RC N July 2618, are applicakle -0 “he vear under review
and can be viewed at www.frc.org.uk

The Board has considered the principles and
recommendainons of the ATC Code of Corporaze
Governance ("AIC Code”) as 1ssued by the AC in Febraary
2079 The AIC Code addresses all the principies set ouz In
“he UK Code, as well as serting our addinional principles
and recommendanons on 1ssues tha: are of specific
relevance to the Company as an invesimen: company.
The '2C has confitmed that A'/C member companies
who report againgT the A'C Code will be meeung their
obligarions in relatan to the UK Code and the asscaiated
dizclosure requiremetizs of the "CA. The A'C Code can be
viewed ar www.ihealc couk.

The Board censiders that reporming agains: the principles
and recommendanons of the AC Code provides
shareholders with full dezails abour the Company's
carporale governandces (:()mphance,

Statement of Compliance

zxcept as set out below, the Company has comphed
with the provisions of the ALC Code throughou: the year
anded 3! March 2023,

Provision 23: Directors are not appom:ed for a specified
term, as all Jirectars are non-execunive and the 3oard
beheves that a Nrector's performance and their
coninued conmbuion o the running of ~he Company
15 of greater imporrance and relevance o shareholders
‘han the leng:h of ame for which they have served as a
Drector of the Company. Zach Jirector 1s subject 10 The
elecuon and re-eleciian provisions set out in the Arncles
which provide that a rector appolnted during the year
s reqanred o retire and seek election by shareholders

at the nex: annual general meetung following ther
appomiment Thereafter the Directors intend o offer
shemselves for re-election annually and will aim o not be
on the Board for more <han nine yvears.

The UK Code includes provisions relasing to

e ‘herole of the chief execuuve; and
e executve directors remaneration

'The Board considers tha: these provisions are no: relevar:
10 the position of the Company, being an externally
managed investment company. -n particular. all of the
Company's day-to-day managemen: and admnistranive
funcions are outsourced 10 third parties. As a resuls.

he Company has no executive Directors. employees

or mnternal operattons. The Company has therefore nos
reporred furher in respect of these provisions.

The Board

Under the leadership of the Chairman, the 3oard

15 responsible for the effecuve stewardship of the
Company's affairs, including corporate strateqy,
corporate governance, nsk assessment and averall
investmen: policy. The Directors have pverall
responsiblity for the review of invesimens: activity and
nerformance, and the supervision of the ‘nvestmen:
Adwiser which 1s responsible for the day-1o-day asse
managemen: of the Company's portfalio.

The 3oard consists of five rion-execudiive lreciors. [t
seeks to ensurea that 11 has an appropriate balance of
skills and experience, and considers tha:, collecnvely,
has substannal recent and relevan: expenence of pubhc
company managemen:, the U real egrate seciorn gocal
housing and invesimen: compantes. All the Direciors are
independen: of the nvestmen: Adviser and the AT

The Board has adopred a schedule of matters reserved
for decision by the Beoard, including inzer aha.
determining the Company's invesiment objecnve and
policy. and geanng and dividend poheaies. This schedule
of martiers reserved for the 3oard s available on the
Company's welbsiie

The Mrectors ensuare that risks are effecuvely managed
“hrough robust policies and procedures, supporied by
she nighs values and culture. The S3cards prnmary focus
15 the sustainable long-rerm success of the Group o
deliver value for shareholders, taking into accoun: other
grakeholders.
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Corporate Governance Statement
Continued

The Board 1s responsible for investmen: decisions. other
chan o the exten: delegated -0 the A'ZM and/or the
nvesiment Adviger. and the appoimiment, suparvision
and monronng of the Company's service providers,
including amongs: others, the ATTV. and the nvestmen:
Adviser. The 3oard 15 regponsible for the intenm and
annual finanaal statemen:s of the Company and, in
conjunciion with the A7V, also approves the periodic
caleuiation of the Net Asser Value.

The Chairman, Michaegl Wrobel was independent of

‘he nvesimen: Adviser at the nime of his appoimntment
and is deemed by hus fellow Direciars 1o contnue 1o be
independent 1in characier and judgement and free of
any conflicung relatnonships. —e leads the 3oard and

1g responsibie for1is overall effectiveness i duecing
“he Company. in hatson with the Company Secratary, he
engures tha: the Directors receve accedrare, nmely and
clearinformanon. Mr Wrokel congiders himself 1o have
sufficien: 7ime to commit to the Group's affairs. =« has no
sigmhican: commirments nther “han those disclosed in
s bography on page 48 The role and responsibihities of
“he Charrman are clearly defined and set out 1n wriing, a
copy of which 1s avallakle on the Company's website

Jeter 3axter 18 the Semor ndependent Jrector of

‘he Company. ~e provides a sounding board for

‘he Chairman and serves as an mtarmediary for the
other 2irectors and shareholders He also provides a
channel for any shareholder concerns regarding “he
Chairman and takes the lead in the annual evaluanon
of the Charrman by the other Direcrars. The role and
responsibilinies of the Senor ndependen: Mrecior are
clearly defined and se: out i wning. a copy of which e
available on the Company's website.

The 3oard has no get policy for the length of tenare of
Owectors although 1t keeps in mund the recommendanons
of the A'C Code dunng suce on planning. *ig the
Joard’s poloy for all rec-ors 7o gtand for re-elecnon
annually Recommendations for elecion/re-elecion of
yrectors are made on an indwidaal basis following
TIIOrONS reviews. 2irec:ors are appom:ed under leers of
apponimean: coples of which are available for insp=cion
a® the regisrered office of the Company and at the AGVY

Board Operation and Culture

The Board meets formally at least quarterly, bt also
mee:s on an ad hoc kasis for the purpose of considering
poennal ransacnions and assoclated due dihigence.
The 2oard will meer 10 conswder and f approprnate,
approve the acquisition of properties recommended

by rhe invesimen: Adviser. The nvestment Adviser
prepares an nvestment Croposal Paper (7P 10 respect
of the proposed acaquisinons which imcludes detals

of the rransaction and due diligence repotts Upon
review of the ‘P2 the 3oard contemplates he siracture
of “he ransacnon, any nisks aached o the proposed
ransacion and how these would be mingated/managed.
and “he impac: of the ransacnion on “he value of the
Group's property poarfoho, following advice from

“he valuers.

Tor the purpose of monitoning the portfolio, the 3oard
receives penodic repor:s from the A -V and the
nveastmen: Adwviser. deraihing “he performance of the
Company The Board delegates cerrain responsimhnes
and funcoons wthe Auder and Vanagemen: ingagemsh:
Commitee, which has written terms of reference

To assist the Baard i the day--o-day operanions of the
Company, arrangemenss have been putin place ‘o
delegate auhonty for performing ceram operations "o
“he ATV, the nvestment Adviser and other shard-pary
service providers, such as the Adminisrator and the
Company Secreary

The Chairman demonsgtrazes objecrive jadgemen:,
promoes a culare of openness and debate, and
facih-ates effecnve contribunions by all Jirec:ors. The
Jrectors are reqared 1o act with imiegnty, lead by
example and promoe This calture within “he Comparny.

The 3oard seeks to enaure the abgnmen: of the
Company's parpose, values and strategy with The calture
of openness. debare and intsgrty through ongoing
dialogue, and engagemen: with the nvesimen: Adviser
and the Company's o her service pronders, The Joard
and “he nvesimen: AJVISer operae 1n a supporive,
co-operanve and open environmen:,

The 3ovard schedules yearly meeings with “he board of
-he nivestmen: Advizer one of “he purposes of which &
<o recewve an imsight o the calnire of “he nvastmen:
fdviser



Corporate Governance Statement
Continued

The cualture of the 3oard 13 considered as par: of

‘he anmual performance evaluaton process which

18 underiaken by each Duecior. The culure of the
Company's service prowniders 1s also considered by the
Audr and Management “ngagement Commites during
the annual review of their performance and while
considenng ther consinuing appoinmen:.

The Company maintains Jwrectors and Officers’ habilizy
insurance on pehalf of the Directors a: the expense of
“he Company. which was in force dunng the year ended
3. March 2023 and remains i force as at the date of this
reporz. The 3oard has agreed arrangemen:s whereby
Directors may ake independens professional advice

in the furtherance af their dunes. The Company has

alsu indemmnifiad the Directorg in accordance with the
provisions of the Aracles of Assoclation.

Independence of Directors

The independence of all Jireciors 1s reviewed as par: of
the annual assessmen: of the 3oard.

The Board has determined tha: each Jirector remains
independent in character and judgement and s free of
any relatonships or circums:ancss that threaten their
independence of the Company or g nvesimen: Adviser.
n parealar, none nf the Jireciors have ever been
executives of the Company or the ‘nvestmen: Adviser.
have had a mazenal direc: or indirec relatnonship

wizh the Company ar i7s stakeholders, have receved
disproporiionate fees, have close famuy relationships
with stakeholders or represent significan: shareholders.

Board and Committee Meetings

A formal agendais approved by the Chairman and
circulated by the Company Secrezary in advance of

each meeting 0 the non-executive Jirectors and other
arendees. A typical agenda inciudes: an analysis of
por:folio performance and exposure: an update on

che mvestmen: pipehne; the Company's financlal
performance; updares on investor relations; statutory and
regulatory complianece; and any corporaze governance
matters. Relevant papers on he items included on the
agenda are circulated in good ime o the members of
‘he Board and 1is Commutiees, in advance of the meeung

The Investmen: Adviser astends the Joard meelngs
rogether with reprasentanves from the AT7M and
Company secrerary Represenzaives of the Company's
other adwisers are glso invited o avend 3oard and
Commitiee meeungs from nme to me.

The number of 3oard, Audir and Management
Engagement Committes and Momimazon and
Remuneration Commuites meenngs held dunng ‘he year
ended 51 March 2023 along with the antendance of the
Dhrectors 1s set out below:

Audit and
Management Mominauon and
Quairerly Board Engagement Remuneration
_ _ Meetings Committee _ Commetee
Numbet Number Numbcet
elniled Number =ntitled Number enutled Number
foatiend attended  toatend  allended  toattend atrended
Michael
Wrone! 4 4 3 3 1 1
Aasair
Moass 4 4 3 3 1 1
Allson
Haddcecn 4 4 3 3 1 1
Caro.ing
Gu.dver 4 4 3 3 1 1
Perer

The Board 15 scheditled 0 mee? on a guarterly basis

‘n addinion 1o these meeungs the 3oard also me? on
“hree occasions to approve the NAYV and dvidend
declaranuons and on a farther 22 occasions on an ad hoc
bass.

Commitiees

The Company operates through “he 3oard and 175 "wo
Joard commuittees, namely the Audit and Managemen:
“ngagement Commiree and the Nominanen and
Remuaneration Committee {he ‘Commitiees”). The 3oard
evaluaies the membership of the Commitiess on an
annual basis,

Audit and Management Engagement
Committee

The Audit and Managemen: Sngagement Commiiee
comprises all Directors. Caroline Gulliver, the Chair of
the Audit and ¥anagement mngagemen: Commiziee.
15 a Charzered Accountant and 1s considered to have
recen: and relevan: finanoal expenence. The Audiz
and Vanagemen: cngagement Commisiee as a whole
has comperence relevant 7o The real estate investmen:
COMPAny sector

The Chairman is a member of the Audit and Management
sngagemen: Commitee, but does nat chair i =i
membership of the Audir and “Vanagemen: —ngagemean:
Commuitiee s congidered appropriate given the small
si7e of the soard and the Chairman's knowledge of

-he financial services indusiry. A copy of the terms of
reference of the Audi and Vanagement sngagement
Committee 1s availlable from the Secretary and on the
Company's wehsie
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Corporate Governance Statement
Continued

The Comrmitiee mee:s a: leas: Three imes a year and
reviews the scope and resulis of the external audis, 05
cos: effertiveness and the independence and abjecivity
of the external audriors, including “he provision of
non-audis services.

The Commizies also reviews the terms of the ATV
agreemen: and the ‘nvestmen: Adviser agreemens, and
examines the effecuveness of the Company’s internal
control systems and the performance of the AN,
nvesimen: Adviser, Adminigirator Deposiary, Company
Secrezary and Reqistrar, and other service providers.

The Repar: of the Audit and Management -ngagemen:
Commities 1§ seT ouT on pages 60 ro 64

Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

The Nominanon and Remuneration Commires 1s
comprnsed of all Directors and the Chairman 1s the Semor
ndependent Jirector, Peter Baxter. 'The Namlnanen

and Remuneranon Commaittee meaeats as reqlired for the
parpose of considenng recrarmen: 1o and removals from
‘he Board: levels of remuneranon paid to the Mirectors;
and review of the Direciors Remuneration Report and
Rermuaneranion Cfolicy. A copy of the rerms of reference

of the Remuneranoen and Nominaion Commea s
avallablz on the Company's website and 1s availlable by
reques: from ~he Company Secreary

Board Diversity

The 3oard acknowledges the "CA rules on diversisy and
mclision on company boards

The 3vuard s compnsed of a mixture of indrvidaals who
have an appropriare balance of skills and expenence ‘o
mee: the furuare opporumaes and challenges facing the
Company Appoimniments o the 3oard are made primanly
on men: “hough the 3oard undersrands the imporance
of diversi'y in corporate governance and takes into
considerazion a vaney of demographic artnbazes

and charac-ensics when making decisions on 1:s
composiion The 3oard 15 aware of the new _1zing ule
“hatis on a ‘comply or explaim basis which incorporates
“he recommendaiions of the Parker and Zampon-
Alexandear Reviews which considered how e hnmc,
calural and gender diversity codld beamproved on U<
boards. The 3oard has discussed the new ethme divers
digclosiures rediired, namely, That from accoun g

RSN

nenads starung on or after D Apnl 2022

al a-leas- 40% of indrnduals on “he 3eard 1o be women,

sl oat least oneg zeror 3uard posiion to be held by a
wOMAN, anc

<t atleast one indridual on the 3oard ¢ ke from a
minonty ehrie backgroand

n accordance with “1sung e 9 Annex 2.0, the below
able in prescnibed formaz, show he gender of the
Directors at the year ended. The data below was
collected through self-reporing by the Direciors

Number of
senuor postions
o1 the: Board

Numiber of
Board membicrs

Fetcentage ot

Geoender idennty ot sex the Board (%)

M'cn 3 60 2
Wormen 2 40 -
Not specined/prefer

N o say - _ _

Number ot
Numbser of Porcentage 0N SeNION POsILONS
Board members the Board (%) on the Boatd

Walie Brinsn or other

Ware inel.ding

mINorily wnie

FroLosi 5 100 2
Mixed/M: [io.e Lianic

Gro.ups - - -

Cihrue background

Asian/Asian Britisn
Brac</African/
Caripoean/l acg
Brizisa - - -
Gaer gaanic group

m¢ Lding Arao -
loT goaaitied/proter

no o say - -

The 3card 1g mundfal that at presentar does not comply
with “he new ethnic and gender representainon in
SENOr posiion diversry requiremente and, the 3oard.
via the Nominauon and emuneration Commiiee. 1s
-aking appropnate geps ‘o ensare “hat 3oard succession
planning takes “hese diversiy requirements inio
consideranon

Induction of New Directors

A procedure for -heinducion of new Jireciors has been
established. including the provision of an induciion pack
containng relevant informaion abour The Company

1ze processes and procedures and meeungs wirh the
Chairman and relevan: persong as the nvestmen: Adviser

Performance Evaluation

“or the year ander review. The 3oard underouk

an inernal performance evaluanon by way of '
questonnares designad co azsess th rencgths and

indepeaendencs of the 3oard and the Charman. individual

rectors and “he performance of the 3eard’s Commiees.

The areas considered ara:

e “he frequency and effecaveness of 3oard and
Commies meesings:

e he size composiiion and relevant =xpenence of the
doard:
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e cheindependence and performance of the Jreciors
and the soard; and

¢ heraining requiremen:s of each Jirector.

The evaluatnon process 1s facihitared by the Company
Secretary under the Chairmans direction and structured
to provide Direciors with an opporidnity 10 exXxpress
their views 1n addinen o answering specific questons.
Peter Baxter. as the Senmor ndependen: Director, leads
the appraisal of the Chairman. The 3oard under:ook an
external 3oard performance evaiuation in 2027 and 1s
cognisant of their advantages. .t will keep this option
under requlart review.

The Company seeks to ensure *hat the 3oard has a
balance of skills and experience hat are complementary
and enable the 3oard 0 aoperate efficiently.

All of the Directors have assessed thewr other ongoing
commlimeants and are satisfied that they can commz the
me necessary o execute their dunes 1o the Company.

No significan: 1ssues were 1dentified dunng the evaluaton
process. The Mommanon and Remuneranon Committea
considers that all of the current Directors make an effective
contrbunon and have “he requsite skills and expenence
10 continue To pravide able leadership and direchion for
‘he Company. .2 was agreed thar all Direcrors should be
recommended for re-election at the nex: AGV. The Board
s mindful that should as Takeover Offar by Wellness

Luity _imited (a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of CK
Agger moldings Limred) has on 23 June 2823 heen declared
ancondiienal, the regolurnions proposed and the formar of
the Companvs AGV may be impacted.

The 3o0ard concluded that each wrecor brings considerable
expertise and experience o the 3oard and the Board
operates with good independen: “hought and challenge.

All Board members have assessed “heir ongoing
commutmen:s and are satsfied “hat they can commit the
dme necessary o execate their dunes 1o the Company.

The 3doard also Uses the performance evaluasion as an
OPPOIIINIY o review and discuss strateqgic issues for
the Company.

Conflicts of Interest

All irectors have a sratutory responsibiliny o avoid
situatons where a conflict of interes: exisis, or may

exigl, between the Company and an enty tha: the
Direciorns erher directly or indwectly involved with.

The 3oard has procedures in place 0 dennfy potennal
confhog and resolve any that should anse n the case of
a conflict of interss:, the natire and exten: of the conflict
are assessed agains: the existing imrernal control gtracare,
and The rezul's of -his assessmen: and actons faken 1o
resolve the conflict are documented 1n the minies of
“he relevan: 3oard meeung. No confhcts of interes: arose
during the penod.

Health and Safety

~ealth and safery iz of pnme mpor:ance 1o the

Company and s considered equally with all other
business managemen: acivilles o ensire protecion of
stakeholders, be they tenanzs, advisers, suppliers, visitors
or others. The 3oard regularly discusses health and safery
15sues with the Investmen: Adviser.

The Company s cemrtted o fostering the highes:
standards n health and safety as 12 beheves that all
ansafe acts and unsafe condittons are preventable. All
our s:akeholders have a responsibility o support the aim
of ensuring a secure and safe environmens:, and all our
stakeholders are tasked with responsibility for achieving
this commauitrment.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Directors are responsible for the systems of internal
conzrol relating o the Company and 12 subsidianes,
and the rehabilizy of the financal reporng process and
for reviewing herr effeciiveneass, engunng thar: the nsk
mariagemens and control processes are embedded in
day-o-day operanuons,

An ongoimg formal process, in accordance with the

R Guidance on fisk Managemen:, ‘nternal Control

and Relared “mancial and 3usiness Reporing, has been
established for identifying. evaluating and managing the
principat and other nisks most hkely o impac: the Group
This process. which s regularly reviewed, together with
kev procedures estabhshed with a view o providing
effective inanaal control. has been in place throughow:
‘he year ended 31 March 2024 and up o the dae of this
Repor:

The Audir and Management ~ngagemen: Committees has
m place a formal procedure for performing an ongoing
robust asgessmen: of the Group's risk management

and internal control systems. A nsk manx has been
esabhshed agamnst which the nsksdennfied and ‘he
comntrols 1n place to mingate thosge risks can he moniored,
The 1isks are asgegsed on the basig of the ikehhhood of
-hem happenng, the impact on the business if they were
o occur and the effectiveness of the conrtrols in place

o mitigacte them. in armving arits jadgemen: of whas

nisks the Company faces, the 3oard has considered the
Company's operations n he hgh: of the following facrors:

e henature and exten: of rigks which 1t regards as
acceptable for -he Company o bear withun 11s overall
business objective;

e ‘he:hreat of such nisks becoming reality:

e heCompanys abuliy o reduace the meaidence and
impact of nsk on U's performance, and

e -hecost o the Company and benefiis related o the
Company and third paries operaning rhe relevant
contrals.
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The nsk mainx 1s reviewed twice a vear by the
Commitee and at other times ag necessary. The pnincipal
risks facing the Company are set out on pages 50 10 3% of
“his Annual Repor:, rogether with the processes apphed
o mitiggate those rnsks.

On an annual Bagis. the Committee reviews the control
repors of 118 key service providers and the audurors note
any deficiencies ininternal conrols and processes tha:s
have been identfied dunng the course af the audiL

The Audrr and Managemen: “ngagemen: Cornmiree 1s
mindful of these key nsks as well as considenng evolving
and emerging nisks guch as the impac: of the ongoing
Ukraine-Russia confhet long-rerm climare change and
cyber secuny which have the potenaal to affect the Grounp.
The Commitee ensures *hat the 3oard takes appropnae
advice and debyares thessues facing the Group.

AT each 3oard meenng, the 3oard recerves repons from
“he nvestmen: fdviser the admimisitator the A=V and
“he srokerin respact of comphance actuvines, Company
financial performance and financal posiaon.

The canrols which are reqgularly reviewed. aim to
ensure ‘ha: the assets of the Company are safeguarded.
proper accouning records are maintained, and the
financial information used within che business and for
pubhicanon s reliable The nsk managemen: process
and Company syziems of internal controls are designed
0 manage rather than elimimare the ngk of fatllure <o
achieve the Company's objgcrives and can only provide
reasonable but not absalule assurance agams: maseral
misstatemen: or loss

The Dwrectors have carried ot a review of the effeciiveness
of the Company's nsk managemen: and internal control
systems as they have operated over the penod and up 0
“he date of approval of the Annual Repaor. 2unng “he course
of the review, the 3card has not wdennhied nor been advized
of any falhngs or weaknesses which 1z has de*ermined o e
sigrificant

The Jrectors have considered ~he appropnaen of
esmablishing anmrernal audr funcion and. hanng regard
o he siractiare and natare of the Company's acivites,
has conchided thas the fiunciaon s annecessary 'The Audr
and Managemen: zngagemen: CommaTee will review

on an annual basis the naed for s fancnon and maks
appropnate recommeandanions o the 3oard

Financial Reporting

The Ioard operases “he following key conrols in r=lanon
-0 financial reporing:

e -~he 3oard and Commir-ee members reviews gquarerly
managemean: repors and sappornmg docaments -has
are provided by the nvesimen:t Advisern

e -he 3oard has proceduresin place for The approval
of expensas and paymeants ~o third parnes: and

e “he Commires members and Board review all
financial iInformason and announcements pnor
0 pubhcanon

Corporate Responsibility

The Company regards corporate responsibility as
megral 1o how it conducts 178 business. 1is commiied 1o
being a good corporaze cintzen and Lehaving responsibly
wi'h a demonsirated ‘ransparency of approach.

To achieve this goal, tThe Company applhes the following
principles 10 158 OPerations.

Business Conduct

The Company's invesimern: decisions are made on the
bagis of generanng shareholder value and ensuaring

‘he long-rerm suiceess of the business The selecnion of
supphers will be made independantly by the Company's
Tirectors upon advice from the nvesimen: Adviger

and i the best interes:s of the Company The 3oard

will engure that appropriae conitrols are n place o
guaran:ee Independenca from the supply cham.

All customers and suppliers will be rreazed fauirly and
responsibly.

The Company will no: provide fiinancial suppar: S0
rolitical pariies or polinicians

The Company 12 resolutely opposed 0 bribery and
corrupiion The Company will not age any legal or
improper means o furrher iis business interes:s, nor will
1; aceep: any forms of inducemenss mtended o miflusnce
IIs nvesiment decisions

Governance

The Company will protec: the interests of 12s shareholders
and other stakeholders through comphiance with relevans
legal and requla-ory environmenss. and -hrough effecave
managemen: of business nsk and opporunty.

The Joard vl ensurs “ha" rz members are traly
independen:. are compeen: and have the resources and
suppor: required o perform “heiwr dunes opamally, and
-hat “he doard’s decisions are made 1 ~he bestintere
of “he Company and 173 shareholders. The performancs
of the 3oard will be reqgularly reviewed. and Jirectors will
retire as and when deemed appropriate by “he 3oard 1in
accordance with bes: prachice
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Socially Responsible Investment

The Board aims 10 be a socially responstble investor
and believes that it is importan: to inves: in spectalist
social housing propertes in a responsible manner in
respect of environmental. ethical and social 1ssues. The
nvestmen: Adviser's evaluanon procedure and analysis
of he properiies wihin the poriffoho includes research
and appraisal of such matters. and 1akes into accoun:
environmental and social policies and other business
1SEUEes.

Turther detairls on the social impac: of the Company's
mvestments are included in the Social ‘mpac: report from
The Good fconomy, a summary of which can be found
on page 40,

The Company recognises tha: environmen:al prozecnon.
resource efficiency and sustainalle development are
necessary 10 ensiyre that environmental damage 1s
hmited and furthermore that. where relevan:, positive
acuons should be taken to improve the existing
environment for fuiure generations.

Transparency

The Company amms to be ransparens:, and o ensure
that 1t communicates wrth 1ts shareholders and
other stakeholders in a manner tha: enhances their
anderstanding of 173 business.

The Company main:ains accouning documernalon
that clearly idennifies the rue nature of all business
ransacnons, assa:s and lhakihines. in hine with the
relevan: regulatory, accounting. and legal requiremencs.
No record or entry s knowingly false, distored,
Incomplere. or suppressed.

All reporung s masenally accuraze and complee and

In comphance in all matenal respects with stated
accouniing pohcies and procedures, The Company does
no: knowingly missiate or misrepresen: managemern:
imformauon for any reason. and the Company expects the
same 1o apply “o s supphers.

The Company may be required to make statemen:s

or provide reports 1o regulatory bodies, governmen:
agencles or other government deparimenss. as well as o
*he media. The Company ensures that such statements or
reports are correct, umely. and not misleading. and tha:
rthey are delivered through the appropriate channels.

The Company provides, through s welbsite, its Annual
Repor: and other gtatements, appropnate informazion
ro enable shareholders and stakeholders to assess

the performance of 178 husiness. = complies with

che applicable laws and regulaziions concerning the
disclogure of iInformaton relasing to the Company.

Communities

‘he Company aims "o ensure thar 11s properies which
are associated with the prowvision of heal-h services
provide significan: value-adding facilines in the
communiiies where 17 1inves:s.

Relations with Stakeholders

Detalls regarding the Company's engagemens: with 1is
srakeholders are set out withtn the Strategie Report or
pages 710 A5

Approval

The Corporate Governance Stazement has been approved
by the 3oard.

By order of the 3oard

Link Company Matters Limited

Company Secreary

28 June A02%
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Report of the Audit and Management Engagement Committee :

Introduction

The Audir and Managemen: Sngagement Commuiee (the
‘Commiee’ oversees the financial reporing process for
~he Company, with consideraion of the internal conirols
and nsk managemen: of the Company. and oversigh: of
“he Company's compliance with accounung standards
and regulatory requiremenss. [ also oversees the
performance of the ‘nvestment Adwiser and the Company's
adminstranve and company secretarial suppors.

Composition and Role of the Audit and

Management Engagement Committee

The Commirtiee 13 chaired by Carohine Gulliver and
comuprses all the Directors. The Commitees operates within
wniten terms of reference which are availlable on “he
Company’s website as derermimed by the 3oard.

The principal furncnions of the Commitiee are @

e oversee the financal reporang process far the
Company and monzor the integryy of the financal
statemenss of the Company and “he Group. inclading
sheir comphance with accouniing standards aricd
regulatory requiremen:s,

& advise the 3oard, where requested. on whether the
Annual Repor: and financial statements, taken as a
whole, are fair. halanced and undersTandable and
provide the information necessary for shareholders
“o assess The Company's posiion and performancs,
Lusiness model and srazegy:

e review and monvor theinternal financial contre! and
rsk managemen: systems of the Company:

e montor and review annually whether an mternal
audt: fanciion s redquired:

e review the nvestmen: Advisers whistleblowning
arrangemencts;

e approve the appomiment. Te-appomn ment or
removal of the exrernal audrors, and approve “heir
remanerasion and terms of engagemen:.

s manage “he relanionship between the Company
and "he external audiors, including reviewing their
independence and albjecnvizy and “he effeciveness of
~he audi process:

e  develop and implemen: a pohicy on the engagemen:
of the externul auditors -0 supply non-audr services;
and

e reviewr and momezor the performance of and
conractaal arrangements with, the nvesimens
Adwviger, “he A 7V and other service providers,

—~

g within the Comrmmusee's erms of reference far s
members 0 seek ndependezn: professional advice, ar the
Company's expanse. ag required m che furherance of
dunies

Meetings

The Commyee mee's three 1mes a year on “wo
occasions, par of “hie meening 1s held »ath "he external
audrors withou “he nvestmen: Adviser pregent The
CommitTer meT “hras imas m the financial year and “he
mesings vrere aended By each memizer as set 0t on
Dacge by

s

Performance Evaluation

The pracess for the evaluanon of the performance of the
Commiztea 1s disciosed on pages 456 and 57

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Campany has an ongoimng process for idenafying.
evaluaiung and managing the principal and emerging nisks
faced by “he Group urther details can be found on pages
57 and 58.

The principal nsks and uncerzaintes idenafied from the nisk
requster and a descripnon of the Group's risk managemen:
procedures can be found on pages 30 w0 33

Activities During the Year

The Commizee congidered the Annual Repor:, =alf-Vearly
eport, any other formal financial performance
annouancements and any other maers as specified
dnder the Commieas terms of reterence and repored “o
“he Joard on how 17 discharged s responsibihies

The Commitiee discussed and considered the external
andi performance, obkjectuvity and independence, the
external auditors re-appointment, accouning policies
and Alternanve Jerformance Measures, significan:
accounang judgements and estimates, “he need for an
mnternal audi: funchon and the risk register.

The Commitee conclided thas an mternal audis

funciion would provide minimal addional comfor '
at considerable extra cost zo the Company. (nrernal

agsurance 1g achieved by the exisung system of

monornng and reporing by third paraes which “he f
Commiiee views as appropnae and adeqguae The

ex:ernal audrors are also provided with “hird pary ,
meernal controls repors and addimonal informason, !
as requeasted.

Juring the yvear “he Commutrae also conducied a |
comprehensive review of the key agreemen:s with

15 service providers. and a detalled review of the

performance. compostiion. parsonnel, processes and !
mnternal contrel sysiems of the ALV a review of all of

“he Group's other carporate adwvisers and key service

providers The discussion mcluaded an assessmen: of

performance and swizabliy of *he zervices provided

in the contex: of the fees paid 1o each provider. and a

review of “he lerminanon penod of each agreemen:,

The Commites considered the t2rms of The nvesimeant
“anagemen” Agreemern:, 10 ansdrs 1D conninuaes 1o reflect
‘he commercial arrangements agreed berween “he
Company and the nvestment Adviser and was sansfied
“hat “his vras the case.

ad and considered the Takeover
Offer by Wellnegs Untmy amied :a wholly ed
subsidiary of T asse “oldings aimiedi including “he
work ander-aken by ~he Comparny m relasion 1o “he offer,
reampac on he Company's nizk profiles and on goineg
coNcern.

The Commites disc




Report of the Audit and Management Engagement Committee

Continued

Significant Issues Considered by the

Committee

The Commiztee considered the key accounting esumases
and fudgements underlying rhe praparanon of the
financial szarements focusing specifically on:

Valuation of Investment Property
‘The valuauon of the property porifolio s crucial 1o the
statemen! of inancial pogiien and reported resulis.

After digcussion with the nvesimenr Adwviser, the
Commitiee has determined thar the key nisks of
misstatement of the Company financial statements relaze
<0 the valuatuon of Invesimen? proper:y.

The valuations of the investmen: properties at the end
of the financial year were independently performed by
Jones Lang LaSalle .amied 70070, whom the Commiiee
considers 1o have sufficien: experise. experience and
local and hauonal knowledge of social housing and
guppored housing o undertake the valuaions

JLL also canducts iminial valuasions of properties on
acqg.usiiuon, The Nrectors have engurad thart Jul has
approprnae procedures in place to ensure there are no
mdependence conflicts with the services provided o
the Company.

The ‘nvestmen: Adwviser confirmed ‘o the Commitee that
“he method of valuauon has been apphad congisien:ly
during the year It further confirmed tha*, dunng “he
course of *he penod, J_L was regularly challenged by
“he nmvesimen: Adviser on the assumpuons usaed in the
valuanon of the Company's INVesimen: properies 1o
ensure robus: and appropnate methods were being
apphed. The nvesiment Adviser discusses *hese areas of
chalienge with the Commitiee.

The auditors met separately with [\, and repored back
s0 the Commizee on s challenge of the valuations

and assumpnons. The auditors were sausfied that

che valuatons had been prepared using appropriate
methods and assumptions. and had been prepared 1in
accordance with R°CS Valuauon - “rofessional Standards.

As explained in noe 5.0 0 the financal stazemenrts,
che approach adopted by the Company 13 10 recognise
mvestmen: properies at fair value. with the fair value of

the properyy being kaged on valuatuons performed by )0

The revaluanon of the iInvestment properies gave rise o
a revalianon gain of £2.640.200 in the penod.

Takeover Offer

The Commizes considered the valuauon work
anderzaken by 17, {as ingiraced o act for the Company.
canmire Gordon (L Limited and iaberum Capral
uimized? with respect 1o the Takeovar Offer by Wellness
unuy amited (a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of C<
Asser Hoidings imited? The valuation methodelogy used
by J.i. was consistent with hat used during he valuaton
for the year ended 3° VMarch 2023 and had -he same
valuaton dase.

Maintenance of REIT Status

Tlhere ate a number of conditions that a company (o7
prnincipal company of a group REI'T) needs e sanusfy n
order o become a =T and remain within the reqime.
The UK REIT reqime affords the Group a beneficial tax
treatment for income and capizal gamns, provided certam
crizeria are met ‘fhere s a risk that these REIT conditions
may not be me: and addiiional tax becomes payable by
the Company. The Board reqularly reviews the 50T tes:s
that are performed by the Adminisrazor.

The 3oard 15 satusfied that the Company has mamiained
1ts RE'T status throughout the year.

Going Concern

The Committee considered the Company's Going
Concern and Viablity Statemens: for the year ended

31 March 2023 11 hght of the Takeover Offer and 125 impac:
on the Company's debr posiiion. @ agreed the wording
used n the .ndependent Auditors Repor: which makes
reference "o the matenal unceram:y idennfied

Misstatements

The nves:men: Adwviser confirmed o the Commtee tha:
1t was nos aware of any mazenal misstatemensts made
inrenzionally 1o achieve a paracular presentaiaon.

Conclusion in Respect of the Annual

Report and Financial Statements

“aving reviewed ‘he presentanions and repor:s from the
nvestmen: Adviser. the Cammuitee 1s sausfied that the
financial s:azemenss appropriazely address the cniical
judgements and key esumases, borh in respect of the
amodans repored and the disclosures.

The Commuzee s also sanstied thar the sigmfican:
assumpnions used for determining the value of asgems
and habiliies have been appropnately scrusinised and
challenged and are sufficten:ly robust. Accordingly. the
Commiziee has concluded that the Annual Repor: and
financial statemen's, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced
and understandable, and has recommended theair
approval o the Board on tha: basis.

Auditors’ Appointment and Tenure

As a resulr of the L{s implementanion of the tU's
mandarory audiz firm rozanion requirements, the Company
15 required to ensure that the exzernal audrtors contract
15 Ut 0ut o tender at least every ten years, with the
proviso that no single firm may serve as “he Company's
exrernal audrors for a penod exceeding 20 years.
dricewarerhouseCoopers .2 was first appomnted as the
Company's audiors with effect from arch 2077 21s
intended that the exxernal aud: will be pas our to ender
no later than for the financial year commenang L Apnl
2076, which 1s ten years afier the Company's imaal Lisiing.

Saira Choudhry 1s the audir parmer allocated o the
Company by 2neewazerhouseCoopears L0 The audit of
“he financial statements for the yvear ended 32 March 2023
1 her zecond as senor siatrrory sudilor of the Company.,
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Report of the Audit and Management Engagement Committee

Continued

Assessment of the Effectiveness
of the External Audit Process and
Auditors’ Independence

As part of s annual review of he effecaveness of

che exsernal audlt process, the Committee obrained
aszurance on the quahsy of hes exiernal audy from s
own evaluauon, the aud feedback documentaiion and
from correspondence and discussions with the aadye
parmer, ‘nvesiment Adwviser and the Adrmimsirator.
The audrrors demonsrated a good undersianding

of the Group, and had 1denzified and focused on the
areas of greates: financial reporong nsk. s reporing
“o The Commitzee was clear, open and thorough. The
Comrmuiiee has assessed the professional scepticism and
challenge of managemen: judgemen: by the auditors
and s sanisfied thar the audrrors have demons:rated
‘hese Jor examnple, the axternal audiors conduaeted a
review of the work conducied by |7 m evaliaung ‘he
Investmen: propery valianons in which “he external
audiors showed appropriate professional scepnicism
and challenge of judgemen:. The CommiTee assessed
‘he challenge provided by the external auditors via the
exiernal audiors repor s provided at the year end and
half year end meenngs and quesaoned the external
audrrors as anppropnase The Audir and Managemen:
cngagemen: Commizes Chalrman also me: with the
exiernal audrors throughout the audlr and half-yearly
review processes to ensiure that the external audrors
were alignad with the Commitiee’s expecianons. The
Commitee constdered the adwvice included i the

CRC fractice Ald on Audi uaalty vwhen making this
judgemen:

The ~2C's Audis Qualry nspecions Repor: on the audrs
carried our by ricaewarerhouseCoopers .7 was dlsa
considerad by the Commures. On she bhasis of -hese
factors and assegsments, the Commitiee has concladed
-ha: the external audi: process has been effecive

The Comrmziee assessed “he extarmal audeors
independence, qualificarons, relevan: expearience,
and effecriveness of audr procedures. n advance of
aach audls the Commises nlramns confitrmation from
“he external audizors “has “hey remawmn independ=ns
and “ha: “he lavel of non-auds f2es are not an
independence threa:

Non-audit Services

The Commitiee has put into place a pohey for the
provision of non-audi services 1o the Company by the
auditors which 1g 1n line with the recommendaions set
autin the “RCs Gundance on Audh: Commuzees 20°6) and
“he requirements of the 7RC's Revised =thical Standard
(209} The general inzenron of the Committes 15 1o avord
the provision of non-audr: services by the auditors, other
han the review of the half-yearly report, as these have
“he polenial "o comprormise the independence of the
audirors The Commites acknowledges thatin certan
situatons 17 may be appropnate for the external audirors
o provide such services 1o the Company for a vanetwy of
reasons ncluding cos: effeciaveness, depth of knowlsdge
and ‘he ongoing relationghip between the 3oard and

‘he external audiiors, All non-audit fees are approved by
‘he Commisiee 1n advance. Where non-audis fee levels
are considered significan:, the Caommittee considers the
appropnateness of the independence safequards pusin
place by the auditors.

The roral fees pard o “neewaterhouseCoopers .2 dunng
‘he penod, net of VAT, totalled FaAALG00 (2027: £402000) of
which FB3.000 (20272, £44.000) was concerming non-auds
services for the review of “he half-yearly repor: and

Fril 2022: FE2.000 for non-audr services Cconcerning a
planned 3ond ssue which was posiponed:,

The audiiors were selecied for the non-aud services
relaning "o the postponed 3ond ssue following carefal
consideranon by the Commirres The Commires
heltevad tha:the abuuy for the audiiors o aude the
Company's financlal statements imdependently would
no” be impacted by this work, 71 standard pracice for a
Company's exzernal addiiors 1o underiake This task

Note 9.0 o the consohidated financial statermenss
deratls all services provided and ozal fees paid 0
“nicevraterhouseCoopers L= for the financial year
ended $° Varch 2028 The Commies considers
necewaterhouseCoopers L2 o be mdependen: of the
Company

Re-appointment of the Auditors

Taking nco accodn: the parformance and effeniveness of
‘he audirors and “he confirmanon of “heir independence,
the Commtee has recommended o the 3oard thar a
resoluion -0 re-appoin: ‘neewaerhouseCoopers L2 ag
“he Companys atdiors be put o “he shareholders as the
for-hocoming AGY.

Caroline Gulliver

Chatrman, ~udir and Vanagem=n: ~ngagemean:
CommitTes

vy g

28 June 2028
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Report of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Introduction

The Nominaton and Remuneranon Commizies presents the
Repor: for the year ended 32 March 2023

Composition and Role of the Nomination

and Remuneration Committee

The Nominatuon and Remuneration Cominiitee comprises
Jeter 3axter, as Chalrman, and the enture 3oard, all of
whom are non-execiuuve Directors. Terms of Reference
have been established by the 3oard and are available on
“he Company’s website.

The Nominauon and Remuneraton Commiiies's principal
dunes are as follows:

Nomination

e 0 review the structure, g1ze and composition of the
3oard, iIncluding 1zs skills. knowledge, experience and
diwversity, iIncluding gender and ethniciry;

e o consider the succession planning of Jirectors,
Taking into account the challenges and opporraniiegs
facing the Company and the skills and expernse
needed on the Board i the futare:

e 10 be respongikble foridenafying and nominanng
candidates 1o fill Board vacancies as and when
they anse;

s 0 review annally the ime requured from
non-execnve Jireciors,

* 10 review The resulis of the 3card performance
evaluanton as it relates 10 Board composinion and
succession planning;

* oreview annudally poential conflicts of interests of
Orecrors as disclosed ja the Company and develop
approprae procesges for managing such confhicts; and

e 0 raceive and consider updates from the invesiment
Adviser on 178 OWh succession planning acuviies,

Remuneration

® ‘o determine and agree with the Board, a formal
and ransparent procedure for developing pohicy
on the remuneration of the Company's Chair, Audrs
and Managemen: zngagemen: Commuizee Chair
and non-execuative Nrectors;

e 0o take mnio accoun: all factors when considering
“he Remuneranon 2olicy which it deems necessary,
inclading relevant legal and regulatory requireameants,
‘he provisions and recommendanong of the A'C Code
of Corporate Governance and associated gudance:

e o review the ongoing appropriateness and relevance
of -he Remuneranon 2olicy;

e o obtain rehable, up-to-date informanon abous
remunerailon in other compantes of comparable
scale and compiexty and marker practice generally:

¢ 10 be responsible for establishung the selechon
crnrerta, selecing, appomang and seting the terms
of reference for any remunerasion consaltants who
advise The Commitee: and

e -0 ensure tha: coniractual terms on ermination, and
any payments made, are fair to the individuaal. and the
Company, tha: failure 1s no: rewarded and that the
duzy to muugate loss 15 fully recogmsed.

Activities During the Year

The Commitiee mee's at leas: once per year. Dunng “he
vear the Committee has:

s considered the Board's remuneranon in view of the
responsibilities and fime cormnmizments for overseeing
the affairs of the Company. 1n light of the Arucles of
Associanion as well as the level of dividend paid o
shareholders dunng the year,
reviewed the Director's skill mainx;
considered the Board's currens succession plan., and
agreed “ha: 17 would be prudenst for the 2oard o
phase the recruntment of additional Jireciors going
forward 0 allow progressive rotation of Jrectors and
facihzate effecuive succession planning:

e appointed a sub-Committee o e responsible for
conducting the recraiiment process ‘o identify a new
candidate for appoiniment 1o ‘he Soard;

s engaged recruitment agency, Odgers 3erndston, 1o
assis: with the search for a candidate;

o reviewed the resuls of the Board’s 2023 performance
evaluation process. the deralls of which can he found
on pages 56 and 57; and

e sausfied rself that each non-execanve Direcior
serving at the end of the year remains independen:
and continues o have sufficient ume 1o discharge
‘heir responsibilities o the Company.
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The Company 1§ supporive of the new Lisung Rules
hemng issued by the Fimancial Conduct Aathoriry

on diwversity and inclusion on company Loards. The
Commititee 18 considenng a range of candidaes from
diverse backgrounds. The Company's diversity policy can
be found on page 86,

The Directory fees were considerad by the Commitree n
“ebraary 2023 Dunng s consideration, the Commitiee
ook o account the factors of clanty, simphciy. nsk,
prediciabihiry, proporuonality and alignmens of Company
culmure. 1 also obtained the mos: ap-to-date mdusiry
remuneration comparisoen o aid in s deciston-making.
Please see the Sireciors R@muneraion Report on pages 64
-0 67 for detalls on Direcior remadneraion

Peter Baxter

Chairman, Nominanon and Remuneranon Commitiee

28 Tane 2025
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Directors’' Remuneration Policy The fees paid wall be reviewed on an anmaal asis and

. may also be reviewed when new non-execuive Direciors
Introduction are recruted *o the 3oard. The Mirectors of the Company
The Remuneratian 2olicy of the Campany 1s ser by are enuled w such rates of annual fees as the 3oard
the Joard. A resolution 1o approve the Remiuneranon a1 thscrenon shall from ame “o ume determine The
2olicy was passed at the AG YV of the Company held Chatrman of the 3oard and the Audrt and Managemen:
on 15 September 2022 The policy provisions set ous -ngagemen: Commitee Chairman are enntled 1o receive
below will apply unnl the Remunerasion 2olicy 1s fees ar a huigher level than those of the other Direciors,
pit to shareholders for approval at the AGV. of the reflecnng their additional duues and responsibilities.
Company in 2025, There are no changes proposed o Annual fees are pro-rated where a change takes place
the Remuneraton *olicy The Remuneraton 2olicy s durnng the financial year.
binding and sei the parameters within which Dwrectors’
remuneration may be set. In addimon o the annual fee under the Company's

Articles of Associanon. f any Jrector s reguested To

Policy perform any special dunes or services ouiside thewr

ordinary duies as a recior they may be pard such
reasonabie addiional remuneranion as the 3oard may
from sime o Tme determine

The Remuneraion “olicy of the Company 15 10 pay us
non-exscunve Dreciors fees that are apprapnace for
*he role and the amoun: of 2ime spen: in discharging
their duties, that are roadly in line with those of
comparable real estate mvesimen: compantes and tha:
are safficient o attract and retain sunrtably qualified and
expencneaed individaais.

Directors’ Remuneration Components

Rate a1 April 2025

L‘UL\puﬂr_»m . ‘_Dntg_\gt o . . o _ - o fand 1 Apr1] 2022 Purpose of Remuncralion _ _ ,_ . o

Annuaal fee Charrman £55000  Commuimen: as Chairman of a pubhe
company

Annual fee Non-execuive direciors £34000  Commument as non-execauve reciors of

a pubhic company

“or addinonal responsibilinies and ime
comirrmen:

Lddimonal fee Chaw of the Audis and Vanagemen:
“ngagemen: Commiee

All Directors Tscrenonary  cor extra or special services performed in
~heir role as a Jurecior

T\(jdl?l;)ﬂ aT_fee

xXpens

All Direcrors n/a 2emmbiarsement of expenses incarred in the
performance of dunes as a hireror’

1 The Cumpany s pohcy s lor the Chartman of the Roard W be paid A higher tee than the gther Direclors to tetect the mele anetous role
2 The Carmpany s ATticles of Associanoh kit The aggragate tees payabile to ihe Board of Direciors wo £250 000 per annum

% The Company s policy 1 1or the Chart of the Audin andd Managament Engagemens Coniroinee v be pard a higher foe than the other Dneaiors o refledt the muore
©OAIOUS role

4 This 18 @ RrovISIOn ul The Company s ATics Addimonai fees would only be pald 10 exaeptional Sreu stances i refaton o the pedorniance of exia o speriai
Services

S Diracts are entitled 10 claim expenses i respect of duties undepaken 1n connestion Wih thenr tole as o Director
The Colpany has noemployeces AccoTdingiy there are no ditterences in policy an the temunstaton of Duerctots and the remuneraton of smployres

HorDireetaon s enntled 1o recaive any ramuneTatuaen which s partormance related As a 1osull, there ate no perormance cundinlons 1o felahon fo any elemants of the
[Hroctons TemiuneTalion (N e XS tere to sel Gt oo this Reangreratun Polcy

Owrectors and Officers habihzy ingurancs cover 1s Az dll Jirectors are non-exacdive and thers are no
main:ainad by the Company on hehalf of “he 21irec-ors. employass, "he Company does no? operate any share
opton or other long-termancentive schemeas and “he
Jrecrorg fees are no” subject to any performance crizena
Mo pengion or other reriremen- Genefil scheme
operaed by the Company for any of s Jirec-ors

Dwrecrors are =norled to e pard all expenses properly
mcarrad in avending 3uard o1 shareholder meenngs
or othervnise in ar 'wrh a view 0 “he parformance of
“herr dunies

dare



Directors’ Remuneration Report
Continued

Service Contracts

No Jirector has a service contract with the Company. The
Jwrectors are appornted under lefrers of apponimeans,
Their appointment and any subsequent rerminanion or
retiremen: 1s subkject 10 the Articles of Association. The
Omrectors levers of appoimnimen: provide thas, upon the
terminatnon of a Mrector's appointmens, tha: Jirector
mug: resign in wnitng and all records remain the
property of the Company. The 2irecior's appoimntmen:
can be terminated in accordance with the Articles of
Associanon and withou: compensason. There 15 no
notice penod specified in the Ariicles of Association for
the removal of Directors and all Direcrors are subject w0
annual re-election by shareholders,

Approach to Recruitment Remuneration

The remuneraion package for any new Chairman or
non-executve Jirecior will be the same as the prevailling
rates derermined on the bases se? our above. The Joard
will not pay any introduciory fee or incentive *o any
persorn to encourage them o become a Mrector, but

may pay the fees of search and recruimmen: speciahsts

N conneciion with the appointment of any new
non-execuive Jreciorn

Views of Shareholders

Any viewrs expressed by shareholders on the fees bemng
paid “o Direcrors would be taken into consideranon by
-he Board when reviewing levels of remuneratiorn.

Remuneration Report

The 3oard presen:s 11s Jirectors Remuneratioen feport

0 respect of the year ended 37 March 2023 The 3oard
has prepared this report in accordance with the Large
and Vedium-Sized Companies and Groups {Accoun:s
and Repors) (Amendmen?) Reqgutatons 2013 An ordinary
resoldzion for the approval of the Drectors’ Remunearaion
Report will be pat 0 shareholders a1 the forthcoming
AGV of the Company.

The law requires the Company's auditors o aadl: ceram
requured disclosures. Where disclosures have been
audired, they are indicated as such. The audiors opimon
15 inclhuded in the audiors report on pacges /. 10 78

Annual Statement from the Chairman

_am pleased o present the Direcrors’ Remuneraion
Repart for the yvear ended 31 March 2023,

Junng the year under review. the 3oard. via the
Nominauon and Remuneration Commities. was
responsible for serting the Company's emuneration
Johicy and rectors fees.

The report from Nominanion and Remuneratoen
Commitiee can ke found on page 64

The irectors are remunerated for their gservices at such
rate as the Dwrectors shall from ime 10 ime determine,
The Board has set three levels of fees one far the
Chairman, ane for other Dwrectors, and an addizional

fee that 1z paid to the Director whao chairs the Audir

and Managemen: tngagemen: Commitiee. -ees are
reviewed annually in accordance with the Remuneranon
Policy. 'The fee for any new hrector appointed will be
determined on the same bhasie.

rectors fees for the year ended 47 March 20235 were

a: a level of £55 000 per annum for the Chaitrman and
£34,000 per annum for other non-execuuve Directors. The
Chairman of the Audir and Managemen: Sngagemen®
Commiee receved an addmonal fee of £5000 per
annum.

There were no other paymen:s for exira or special
services 1N the year ended 31 March 2025

A7 the AGM held on 5 Seprember 20:9, shareholders
approved the amendmen: 10 the Company's Artucles of
Assoclation which increased the maximam aggredgate
annual remunerasion payable o Jireciors from £200,00C
1o £25C.000

The Directors’ Remunaranion Policy was approved
a: the AGM held on 15 September 2022 There will be
no significan: change in the way the Remuneranon
Zolicy will e implemented in the course of the next
financial year.

The Directors’ Remuneranon 2ohoy will nex: be presented
to shareholders for approval at the Company's AGV 1In
2025
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Directors’ Remuneration Report
Continued

Directors’' Fees for the Period (audited)

The irectors who served durning the year recewved the following emoluments.

Taxable
_DI[E:L’YS:( _ - _ R _ . _ . J_B_Q‘E bt‘_ll:[l(s_ _
Viichael Wrabel (Charrman) £53,000 -
Alastanr Moss £34,000 -
Alison Jadden E34,000 -
Caroline Gulitver £39,000 -
baler Baxter £34,6G0 -
Toml O T

The amaunts paid ©o the Direcrars were fur services as
non-execmiive Jrecrorg, Taxable benefits included n the
above table are in regpec: of the amounts reimbursed o
mreciors as Travel and other expenses properly incuarraed
by them in “he performance of their duties There are no
vanable elemenis in the remuneration pavalle 0 the
HreCrors.

Under the Company's Aracles of Associanon, the ol
aggregate remuaneranon and henefits in kind of the
Orrecrors of the Company s sublec: o a maximuam of
F250,000 m any finanmal yvear Any change to thig would
reqraire shareholder approval

Loss of Office (audited)

The Jrectors do not have senvice contracts with the
Company by are engaged ander iezers of appoimtment
ander which there 12 no enittlemens 1o compensanon for
loss of office Tirectors are subjec: “o annual re-elecion
by shareholders

Total Shareholder Return (rebased)

FTSE 350 Real Estate Index

Cvronayg

__ Year ended 31 March 2023

Year ended 31 March 2022

Charnige

Change Taxable

Total 1o 2023 Fees ___benefi's Tota! 2022
£53,000  192% £5200C —  £52000  400%
£34,000  2.16% £33280 — £35280 400%
£34,000 216% £$3.780 - F5528C 4.00%
£39.000  188% E38280 ~ F38280 6.55%
£34.000  216% 33280 - F35280  4.00%

- £194,000  £80720 0 - f9glc

Company Performance

The following graph compares the performance far the
reriod from 20 on '8 Movember 2076 10 & March 20723,
“he total shareholder retarn of the Company's Ordinary
shares relanve o the 7157 All-Share ndex and 73-

Real Rstate .ndex Alhough the Company has no formal
benchmark. these indices have been seleced as the
JTSz All-Share represents all compantes of a sirmilar
caplial size, and “he construents of the "85 350 2eal
mstate ‘ndex are L<{-based real estate companies and are
therefore considared (o represent the most appropnate
comparanve,

[ p— —
18 Nov 31 Mar

31 Mar

2016 2017 2018

3 Mar
2023

31 Mar
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Directors’ Remuneration Report
Continued

Relative Importance of Spend on Pay

The table below sets our, In respact of the year ended
32 March 2023

a) the remuneratnon paid ‘o the Jirectors; and

b) ‘he disinbutnions made to shareholders by way of
dividend.

Year ended Yeat ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
o e _E_'% . £oon
Ireciory’ remuneraion 194 190
Jwidends paid to Ordinary
shareholders 34,459 34,093

Directors’ Interests (audited)

There 15 no requiremenst under the Company's Aricles
of Association ar the terms of hewr appotnzment for
oirecters to hold shares in the Company.

As ar 31 March 2023, the Jirectors (including ~heir
connectad persons) had beneficial interests in the
following number of shares i the Company:

31March 2023

M March 20422

Qrawnary Ordinary

-—— - shares _. _shares
Michael Wrobel 200,000  ©20.598
Alasiawr Voss 11,766 766
Alson Hadden 31,937 -
Carohne Gulliver 58,832 8,837
Feter 3axer 82,065 82,065

There have een no changes o Directors share interes:s
bewween 37 Varch 2023 and the date of this Repor:. Lach
Owector has accepied the recommended all-cash offer
made by Wellness Unity lamied for the ennre issued
share camiral of the Company Che ‘Offert in respec: of
Their own beneficial holdings.

NMone of the Directors or any persons connecied
with them had a marenal mieress in the Company's
TrANSACTIONS, arrangements or agreemenss dunng
the year.

Voting at AGM

The Directors’ Remuneration “olicy was approved at

the AGM held on (4 Seprember 2022 and the Directors’
Remunerazion 2eport for the year ended 37 March 2022
was approved at the AGM held on 5 Sepiember 2022, The
voles cast by proxy on these resolutions were:

Voles for! Voles aga’lns\
% ol votes % of votes votes Total
_Resoluton cast __ cast _ withheld  votes cast
To approve
the Jirectors’
Remuneranor
Repor: 99.65% (0.35% 2566354 296.369.2435
To approve
“he Directors'
Remuneratllon
rolicy

_9963% 0.87% 283007 296.569.243

1 Vores tor include discretionary proxy votes granied 1o the Charman by
shawehuolders

Consideration of Shareholder Views

The Company 1 commised 10 ongowng shareholder
dhalogue and takes an acave 1nterest I voINg GUCONes.
Where there are substantial votes against resolutions

0 relation to Directors’ rernuneranion, the Company whll
seck the reasons for any such vote and will detail any
resuliing actions in The Directors’ Remuaneration Repor:.
3uth the approval of the Jirecrors Remuneration Repor:
and the Dreciorg Remmnerauon Policy resclutions were
approved by sharehaolders at the AGV on 15 Seprember
2022, The 3oard recetved no feedback from shareholders
on these resolutions.

Approval

The Directors’ 2emunerasion Report was approved by the
3oard and signed on 12¢ behalf by:

Michael Wrobel

Charrman

28 June 20238
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
in respect of the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the Direciars 1o prepare financial
statements for each fimancial year. Under tha: law the
Directors have prepared the Group financial statements
in accordance with UK-adopied internaional accounting
srandards and the Company financial sratemenis in
accordance with Unired Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accountng fraciice (Unied £ingdom Accounting
Standards, compnsing U8 107 "Reduced Discliosure
rramework” and apphcable law)

Lnder Company law, Directors mus: not approve the
financial statemenss unless “hey are sausfied “hat
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and Company and of the profiz or losg of
the Group for that penod. 'n preparng ~he financial
sTarements, the Jirecsors are required o

s select surable accounnng policies and hen apply
chem consisiently;

e state whether applicable U<-adopred international
accounang standards have heen followed for “he
Group financial szatements and Urited ingdom
Accounnng Standards, compnsing RS 07 have been
followed for *he Company fimancial starements, suljec:
0 any matenal deparuares disclosed and explamed in
the financial staemenss:

s make dgements and accounnng estiimases thas are
reasonable and prudent: and

s prepare the financlal statements on the going Concermn
basis unless it g nappropnate 1o pregume that the
Group and Company will continue i business.

The Jireciors are responsible for zafeguarding the
asse:s of the Group and Company and hence for taking
reazonable gveps for the pravention and derecnon of
fraud and otherrregilarimes.

The Mrectors are also responsible for keeping adequare
accodning records tha- are sufficien: to show and
explain the Group's and Company's Transaciions and
discluse with teasonable accuracy at any ame “he
financial posimon of -he Group and Company and
anable them o ensure that the financial stazaments and
“he Mrectors Jemunearanon <epor comply with the
Comparues Act 2006

The irecrors are responsible for the maimmtenance and
integrity of the Company s financial statements pubhshed
on “he ulimate paren: Company's websre _eqislanon

n -he United &ingdom goverrming “he preparation and
chssermimanon of financal ssatements may differ from
legslanon in other junsdicnons,

Directors’ Confirmations

‘The Jiractors consider that *he Annuaal Repor: and
Accountg, taken ag a whole, 15 fair, Balanced and
understandable and provides the informanon necessary
for shareholders 10 assess the Groups and Company's
postion and performance, business model and sirategy

~ach of the Direcrors. whose names and fanciions are
listed in The Board of Direcrors, confirm thaz o the bes: of
their knowledge:

e he Group fiinancial statemeants, which have been
prepared in accordance with UK-adopted mernaiional
accouning standards, give a ttue and fair view of the
assets, habilmes. finanaal position and profic of “he
Group,

e he Company hinanaal statements, which have
bheen prepared in accordance wirth Untred Kingdom
Accouning Standards, compnsing -RS 105 give a True
and fair view of the asgets, habilines and hinanauil
nostion of the Company, and

s “he Group STateqie Reporinclhades a fawr review of the
development and performance of the business and -he
sosimion of the Group and Comppany, rogether with a
descnipion of the principal nsks and anceramies thar
12 faces

Approval

This Statemen: of Jirecrors’ Responsibilinies was
approved by the 3oard and signead on 1zs behalf by:

Michael Wrobel

Charman

28 June 2023
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Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive

As the Company and the Alternative ‘nvestmen: fund
Managoer (the "4 TM™ aie cach domiciied 1 e United
ngdom. the ’CA Handbook rules recquuaire that among
other things the A:rM makes available the following
informanen o ghareholders of the Company under the
AlMD (as implemented in the UK} and o noufy them of
any matenal change o information previously provided.

Thege disclosures can also be found on the Company's
website: www.civirassoclalhousing.com.

Investment Policy, Leverage and
Liquidity (AIFMD 23(1){(a)b)(h))

The investment sirategy and obyectives of the Company,
the types of assers it may invest in and the investmen:
technigues 1t may employ. associated nisks and any
mvesimen: resinenons are laid ousin the invesimeans
objectives and policy and other secuons of the

Annaal Repor.

forinformaion akour the circumstances in which

the Company may use leverage. the types of sources
permited and the associated nsks and any resimcions
on the usge of leverage and any collateral and asset
re-use arrangemen:s, shareholders are directed 0 the
disclosures conramed in the investment objecuves and
policy section of these financial statements as well as
specific ALtV O related disclosures further below

Under the “CA's Listing Rules, -0 which the Company 1s
subjecy, 1t needs the prior approval of 12s shareholders 1o
make a matenal change 10 1§ iInvestmen: pohoy.

Since the Company is closed-ended withou: redempuon
nghes, haqudiy nsk management s hmited o the
Liquidity required o meet the Company's obhigazions in
relation 10 s financing arrangements. The A=M unlises
various risk asseggmen: methods 1o measure the nisk of
partfolho lhquidisy 1o meet the Company's ocbligations.
This measuremen: enakles the provision of managemens
formaton 10 *he AITY and the 3oard of the Company o
enable these risks 1o be monitored and managed.

Legal Relationship with investors (AIFMD
23(1)(c))

The Company is a pubhc mized company hs:ed on the
“ondon Stock sxchange The Company I1s iIncorporated
under the laws of Sngland and Wales The consutuucnal
documen: of the Company 18 1itg articles of association
which may only be amended by way of a special
resolution of 1'g shareholders. Lpon the purchase

of shares, an investor becomes a shareholder of the
Caompany. A shareholder’s labilizy to the Company will
e imited ‘G the amoun: ancalled on their shares.

As the Company 1s incorporazed under the laws

ot kngland and Wales, it may not be possible for a
shareholder located ourgide thar jurisdicuon (o effect
service of process within the lacal junsdiction i which
that shareholder resides upon the Company. All or

a subsgrantial portion of the assets of the Company
may be located ourside a local jurisdichion in which
a shareholder resides and, as a result, 12 may no: be
possible to sausfy a judgemen: agamst the Company
1n such local junsdicnon or to enforce a judgemen:
optained in the local junsdicaon's coarts agains:

‘he Company.

AIFM and its Delegates (AIFMD 23(1)(d),
{e) and (f))

The ATFM (G0 Capital Tamied) is a private limited
company with 118 regigterad office a: $ More London
riverside, _ondon SE. 2AQ. G70 Caprzal amited s
authonsed and regulated by the financial Conduc:
Authority (FRN 648953} 't has been appoinied by the
Company to manage the Company under an AJXM
Agreement with effect from 24 August 20°7.
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The A FM is responsible for por:ffolio managemens:
and sk managemen: and monoring of the assets of
“he Company and has discrenonary authorny over the
acquisimon and disposition of the Company's asse:s,
with power ‘o (ive gquarantees and undertake other
ransaciions on behalf of the Company subiject to the
provisions of the AJTM Agreemens, The ATZM g also
responsible for ensunng comphance with the A 7M7.

The A.:'M's dunes under the ATV Agreemeri: are owed
so the Company as a whole rather than directly 1o the
shareholders, wheher individually or in groups, The
3oard of the Company 18 responsible under the Al
Agreemen: for representng the Company in 1its dealings
with the AITM

‘n order to comply with 1ts regulatory oblhigatons, the
A'UM holds professional indemnity insurance.

Depositary and its Delegates (AIFMD 23(1)
(d) and (f))

ndos Jinanctal Jumited {the “Depositary” has been
appointed as the Deposiary of the Company under

a Jepositary Agreement in accordance with A MD
requirements. The Deposiiary 1s a company incorporased
in =ngland {reqistered number 08255973 whaose
reqistered office 15 a2 51 “enchurch Sreet London

SCAM 4)Y. s authorsed o act as a Deposizary by the
TCAATRIN 602528). The Depositary & responsible for
safekeeping of the Company's mvesimen:s, iIncluding
holding 1in custody those inves ments which are required
+0 be held mn custody and venfying ownership and
keeping records of the Company's other invesiments, and
for cash monnroring
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Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive

Continued

The Depositary’s dunes under the Deposizary Agreemen:
are owed o “he Company as a whole and not directly 1o
shareholdears, whether individually or in groups,

The invesimen:s of the Company are no® of a kind
required o be held in custody by the Deposuary.

Independent Auditors (AIFMD 23(1)(d})

The independen: audrrors of the Company for the ye=ar
ended 4. March 2023 were "ncewaterhouseCoopers L_F.
The auditors dusies, which are se: ous on pages 76 and
77 oare owed 1o the Company as a whole They have a
stasutory regponsibiey to report 1o the members of the
Company as a whoele in relanion o the mmath and fairmess
of the Company's gate of affairs and profic or loss.

Valuation (AIFMD 23(1}g)}

The assers of the Company are valued in accordance
wsith the provisions se7 outin “he Valianon Policy. The
nvestmen: Committes which has been set up by the
ATMoan respect of the Company and 1:s assets addeg a
further level of oversigh to the valuanon process as se?
ourin the Corporate Governande secuon of the Annual
Repor.

Fees and Expenses (AIFMD 23(1){i))

The Company mncurs cos:s 1n “he form of deposirary fees,
castadian fees, hank fees and charges, markenng feas,
audrors fees lavryers fees fund administrauon fees,
company secretanal fees and other fees

Fair Treatment of Investors and
Preferential Treatment {(AIFMD 23(1)(j))

Yo praferennal nghts have been granted 1o any
=x1sung shareholdear.

The Company and "he A7V are commired 10 ensuning
“hat all shareholders are treased foirly and in accordance
with UL company law They have not and will na” enter
o any arrangamean- with one sharebolder which

could regult in any overall martenal disadvantage o “he
o her shareholders.

Issue and Redemption of Shareholder
Interests in the Company (AIFMD 23(1){1)}

The Company & closed-ended and dees not prowvide for
redemypion or repurchase of the mzerests of ordinary
shareholders at thelr requas:

Reporting and Performance (AIFMD 23(1)
(k). 23{1)m) and 23{1}(n))

The higonce performance of -he Company, "o the exen:
arallable, has been disclosad 16 shareholdersin the
Company's Annual and =alf Yearly Repurs. which

will e zent -0 shareholders and are avallaliie from
h-pffemvirassocialhoasing com/

The lazest NAY of the Company 1s pubhshed in the
larest Aninual or Half Yearly Repor: or quarterly
NAYV announcemen:.

Prime Broker (AIFMD 23(1)(o))

The Company does not have a pnime broker.

Method of Making Ongoing/Periodic
Disclosures (AIFMD 23(1)(p),23(4),23(5))

informaton abous the Company's risk profile and nsk
managemen:, tomal leverage and any matenal change o
che arrangements for managing the Company's hquidey,
“he proporaon of assets (f any! subjec: (o special
arrangemean:s ansing from hquidity. the maximam
perrmized leverage or the grant of nghts of re-use of
collateral or guaraniees in relauon 2o leverage will be
provided in the Company's Annual Repor:s or on ~he
Company's website hop//ovitassocialhousing.comy/

Risk Profile and Risk Management
(AIFMD 23(4){c))

The appomntmen: of the A.7V as the A. 7V of he
Company uander the ATFMI means that 1718 responsible
for nsk managemen: and “he ongoing process of
denafying. evaluatng, monroring and managing

“he risks facing the Company 1n accordance with the
recrairemeanis of the A7V D The 3oard keepsthe AT V'S
performance of these responsibilinies ander review as
par: of s overall responsibailicy for the Company's risk
managemen: and inwernal controls,

The prnincipal nisks of the Company are se: vunn the nsk
managemean: section in the Annual Repor: The ALTM's
risk managemenT sysTem IMNeerporalas regular review
of these nisks and the eswakbhshmen: of appropnate nsk
s and internal control processes "0 mugate the
risks The sensiivity of the Company o relevan: risks s
fur-her detatled 10 "ne sk managemen: secion 1in *he
Anriaal Report.

Restrictions on the Use of Leverage and
Maximum Leverage (AIFMD 23(5))

Az specihed in the investmen: objecives and policy in

“he Annual fepors the Company has the abihy 1o pu uR \
0 a maximam ieverage of 40% of the Company's Gross

fsser Valle and the A7V oversees the uze of leverage o

anguare “har the use of borrowing 1s consisten: with this

requirement. Leverage s calculated using ¢gross agses,

writh vartous adfussmenss. divided by nes asses.

Lnder &7/ 0, ~he Company 1& recuured -0 calcalae
leverage under the ~wo me-hodologies specifisd by
“he lirectve, the 'Gross Vethod' and the ‘Commuumen:
ethod', the difference being thas the Commurmen:
/erhod allows ceriain exposures “o bea offser or nened
Msclosures are made on “he websire of The Company.



Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC

Report of the Audit of the
Financial Statements

Opinion
In our opinon:

e  (Cwviras Social Housing PLC's group financtal statements
and company financial statemen:s (the “financial
swatements™ give a true and fair view of the state
of the group's and of the company's affairs as at
37 March 2023 and of the group'’s profit and the group's
cash flows for the year then ended;

e 'he group financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with UK-adopted internasional
accodnang standards as applied in accordance with
“he provizsions of the Companies Ac: 2006;

e he company financial statemenss have been properly
prepared in accordance with Unired <ingdorm Generally
Accepted Accounung Practice {(Unied Kingdom
Accounmng Standards, including TRS 07 “Reduced
Msclosure framework’, and apphcabie law); and

¢ the finanmal statements have been prepared in
accordance with the requiremenis of the Compames
Act 2006.

We have audired rhe fimancal statemenss, included
within the Annual Report and Accounts (the “Annual
Repor:l. which compnse: the Consolidated and Company
Smatements of Tinancial Posiiion as at $ March 2023;

che Conschidated Statemen: of Comprehengive ncome,
the Consolidated S:atemen: of Cash lows, and the
Consohdated and Company Staements of Changes

In FEquity for the year then ended; and the notes o the
financial statemenss. which include a descnption of the
significant gecountng pohcies.

Our opinton 1s consisten: with our reporiang to the Aadit
and Managemen* sngagemen: Commiites.

Basis for Opinion

We conducred our auditin accordance with infernazional
Standards on Audrng (LX) (18As (UK and applicable
law Onar responsibilizies under (8As (LX) are further
described 1n the Auditors' responsibilizies for the audit of
‘he finanqal statements secuon of our report We believe
rhat the audi: evidence we have ckramed s sufficienr and
appropriae to provide a basis for our opimniorn.

Independence

We remainied independen: of the group in accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevanr to our
audit of the financial statemen:s in the U which includes
the 7'2Cs Frhical S;andard. as apphicable o hsted pubhe
interest entmes, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
respoensibilines in accordance with these requiremenss.

To the bes: of our knowledge and belhef, we declare
that non-audr: services prohibuied by the T2Cs ~thical
Standard were not provided.

Orher than those disclosed in note 9.0 wo the Consolidated
finarncial sly ements, we have provided no non-audis
services To the company or s contralled andertakings in
“he pencd under audi:.

Material Uncertainty Related to

Going Concern

In forming our opinion on the financial statements,
which 15 nor modified, we have considered the adequacy
of the disclosure made in note 2.2 10 the Consohidated
financial starements and note 7.0 o the Company
financial stazements concermng the group's and the
company's ability to conunue as a going concern,
respectvely On 9 May 2023 the Board of Jirectors of
Ciwviras Social mousing PLC ("CS=" or “he group™ and “he
Beard of Ditectors of Wellnegs Unity Limited (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of CK Asset Holdings Limized}
{collecuvely referred to as "CX" announced that they
have reached agreement on the terms and conditions

of a recommended all cash offer for the group. On

25 June 2023, the offer became uncondinonal. The group's
existing committed deb: facihines contain a standard
change of control clause which, from that point forward.,
could result in the exizing commuted delb: facilities
being withdrawn. The Directorg have not had detalled
vigibility of CK's pos: completion funding for the group
and company or the detalled plans behind the intentions
statements included within the anncuncement. These
condinong along with the orher maters explained 1in
note 2.2 1o the Consohdated financial statements, iIndicate
-he existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
swgnificant doubt abaus the group's and the company’s
abiliy 1o conunue a8 a going concern. The financial
grarements do not mclude the adjusimen:s that would
resulzif the greoup and the company were uanable 10
CONTIMNJE as a going concern.

Q
:
:
-4
:

n auditing the finanmal stazements, we have concladed
-hast rhe directors use of the gowmng concern basis of
accounnng in the preparanon of the inancal statements
1S appropriate.

Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the group's
and the company's ability o continue to adopt the goimng
concern basis of accounung included:

e We obrained managemen:s lates: forecas's that
support the Board’s asseasmen: and conclasions with
respect 1o the going concern basis of preparation of
the financial statemen:s

e We checked the mathemanical accuracy of
managements forecas:s

e We evaluated and challenged forecasts and sensiaviry
analysis prepared by managemen: 10 ensure they
are reflective of both the currens environmen: ard
considering the nsk of a severs and prolonged
econome downturn We have assessed the exten:
and plausibility of *hese scenanos in hight of current
circumstances, We evaluated the directors’ plans
for fusure acionsg in relation 1o thelr going corncern
assessmens?, should these be required.

e We aqgreed the inpuis 1o “hese analyses to the audrred
financial informanion or obrained corrohoranve
support for key assumpions as applcable.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC
Continued

e We have aszessed the deb: covenan:s as well as
manadgermensi's assessmen: of possible breach of
covenan:s agreeing the inputs to the audiied resulis,
We have evaluazed managemen:'s stress tests on the
COVenanis.

e We also considered whether Civitas’ deb: inancing
would impac: the ainlity of the group and company o
conanmde as a going concern, Specifically we have had
consideranion around any debt that 1= coming due in
~he gomng concern penod

In relanon 1o the directors reporiang on how they have
appled the L Corporate Governance Coda, other than
“he marenal unceraimty idenified 1in note o the
financal statements, we have nothing matenal to add or
draw atiennon o 1n relasion o the directors’ statemen:
in the financial stazements abous whether the direciors
considered 11 appropriate 1o adopt the goung concern
basis of accounung. orin respect of the direciors’
wWentficanion in the financal stazemen:s of any other
matenal dncerainnes to the group’s and he company's
ability o conanue 1o do so over a penod of a7 leas:
welve months from the date of approval of *he financial
stalements.

Qur responsitilinies and he responsitilines of the
directors with respec: 1o going concern are described in
‘he relevan® sectiong of “hie repor:

Our audit approach

Overview
Audit scope

e  We tallared “he scope of our audit To ensure thar we
performed encugh work to be alile -0 give an opinion
on “he hnancial statements as a whole laling o
accoun: the structure of the group and The company.
“he accouning processes and controls. and the
indusiry in which “hey operate. The group consists of
a single repor:able segmens,

Key audit matters
e Vatenal unceramty related 10 gomng concern

e Valuanon of mvesimen: propary (Jgroupt

Materiality

e Overall group mazenahty: F12.0 mallion
{2022 £.0.4 mallion) based on "% of wotal asse’s.

e Overall company matenalty: £8.2 mullion
(2022 £8.2 mullion) based on % of total asse's.

e Jerformance matenalhy: £7.5 milhon (2622: £/.8 maillion}
(group) and Fe.2 mulhon {2022 £6 2 millicn) (company!

e Speafic group matenalty: £1.3m {2072: £1.5m) for
cersain financial statemen: ine rrems thar impact
adjusted profi: before tax {A28T) - based on 5% of
A28T. APBT 15 equal 1o prohi: hefore tax adjasted for
he fair value movemen: s 1IN invesmen: property and
farr value movemen:g cn interes: rata dervanves.

The Scope of our Audit

As par: of desigmng our audin, we determined matenality
and assessed the nsks of mazenal missiazemen: in the
finangal gtatements.

Key Audit Matters

<ey audit maters are thase maers that in the audirors
professional radgemens:, were of mos: significance

in the audit of the inancial statements of the curren?
penod and include the mos: signfican: assessed nisks
of mazenal missiatemen: {(whesher or nor due o fraud:!
wdenithed by the audrors including those which had
“he greates: effect on: the overall audi: sirateqgy, the
allocation of resourcer in the audit; and direciing the
efforis of the engagemenst team. These maters, and any
commen:s we make on the resulss of our procedures
“hereon wers addressed in the context of our aud:

of the financial statements as a whoie, and in forming
our opinton thereon. and we do not provide a separate
opimon on These masers

n addion 1o gowng concern. described in the Vatenal
ancertainty related 10 going concern saction ahove, we
determined he maters described kelow 0 be the key

audi marers to be communmicated in our repor:. This g
noT a comple e higr of all nsksadennfied by our auadi.

Lhlsy ta enniniae as a going concarn iConTimLation
Tesolunont, which vwas a key audir maner las: year 1s no
longer included hecause the Continuanon Resolaiion
vote was pass2din 3epiember 2002 Oherwnze, “he key
audlr maretrs below are consigien: with las: year



Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC
Continued

Kev Audit Matter

How our Audit Addressed the Key Auadil Matier

Valuation of Investment Property (Group:

Refer Lo tae Repor: of (ne Audir and Managemen:
Engagemen: Committee note 31 10 1ne Consolidated
financial statements, Significan: estimate  valaation of
mvesimen: propcrty and note 15.0 0 the Conse.adated
financiai statements, [nvesimen: proverty.

Invesiment properues arc hed a° a fair valugc of £953.4 milion
as a: 31 March 2023 in the Consolidated Slazemen: of
Financial Position ™ae valaation of tne group's invesmen:
propery 1s ihe ey componen: of [1e net asser value and
undereins tne groap's result for the year The resat ol ine
revalaation this year was a gain of £2.5 milion, waich is

ceounted for within ‘Change in fair vaiie of invesimen:
oroperiies in the Congo.idated Satement of Contprehensive
Income. Tne groud's invesimen: oroperty vor:folio consisis of
speclalls: socia. hoosing orone iwocaed 1in Eng.and and
Wales walich are el (o Apoproved Providers of socia. housing
on Ong-term .cases

Investmen: properiy va, Lanons werc carried ou: oy a third
party va.uer. Jones Lang lLaSa. e {JLL or tae Va.uer). Tne
Valuer was engaged py the Direciors and performed their
worg in accordance witn e Royal Insiitute of Cnariered
S.rveyors (RICST RICS Va'uaion - Professiona’ Siandards and
e reguiremenis of inrernanonal Accouning Sandard 10
Invesimen: Property’,

In determiming e va.uc of a propery. the Valuor has

lazen 1o accoun: property-specific inlormation inci.ding
e ease lerm and rental income payable They aopaed
assumpiions (0 arrive at the discoan: rate waicn is another
LoV INPL 1o 118 vd jarlon Thls nas relerence 10 net inita
vic.d and CPI growin rate wnica are int..enced by praval.ing
marget condinons and comparao’e ‘ransactions wnere
appropriae

The va.datdon of the grouon s invesimen: propeny porfo.io
was identified as 4 rey audis mater given the valuation
ismneranty sueoesive due o among oher laciors, (e
individ..al natare of each property, its location and
cxpecied fuiure rental streams [or that pariicu.ar oropoeriy.
The significance of (e estimaces and wdgements involvaed,
couped with 1ne fac: tha! ony a smal percen-age difference
inindivid.a oropery valuations, waen aggregacd. cou.d
resu.tin a raterial misstazement. warranied specific a.du
focus m ts area

Civen ine inherent supjectivity involved in the va.Lation

of ine propery oor:folio. and therefore :ne need for decp
marke: know.edge when delermining the most agpropriate
aggompiions and the technicaliles of va.uation melhodo.ogy.
we engaged our internal valuadon exper:s (qua.fied
cnartered sLIveyors) Lo assist us in our a.dit of 1his area.

Assessing the Valuers' Expertise and Objectivity

Wrce read the Valver's repor: and confirmed that the approach
w8ed was consisten: with the RICS guide.ines We assesscd
the Va.Lers gualifications and expertise and read neir terms
ol engagermen: with the group, delermining thal inere were
no masters (na- affecied Their independence and o ectivily
or imposed scopo imrations wpon tncem. We also consideraed
fees and olner conraciua. arrangemen:s (al migh: oxis:
between the group and the Valuer. We found no evidence 10
SUgyes:t that e objectuvity of the Va...er was compromised

Assumptions and Estimates Used by the Valuer

In our :esling. which invo ved the wse of ouriniernal raa’
wslale valaation cxperns we congiderad (ao ass.mplions
utilised by the Valuer within e vasuaiion. nciuding
undersranding 10w Tnese asgumptions were deve opad.
We also performed benchmarking whnere obscrvasic
mar<ei evidence was availan.e We challenged the Valdar
regarding the urpacl of lne regu.atory environmen: on
mves:or senlimen: and asse: valaes. We attended meelngs
wiln managerrcent and tne Vaider, at which tne va.ualion
moiodomgy and e ey ass.mntions were discussad.
We cnallenged their apoproacih (o the va uations, and tne
rationa’e oennd ‘he more significan: va'uaion ass.mplons
adonisd. Wnere assumrniions were ouside the expected
range. we Anderoo< furiner invesugaitons, nc.d turthe
discussions with the Va. Ler and obtained evidence o
SLPDOT: exp.anaiions recelved. We a.so chal.enged iqe
Val.ers as ne exten: they nave lagen Into accoun: e
impact of climate change and related ESG considerations
witiiin ine vaiaations. Tne respanses provided oy e
Valuer and supporing evidence, enab.ed us to consider
e pronery spectiic faciors that may have nad an impac:
on val.e incisding recen: comparab.e (ransaciions
wheare appropriate. We conci.aded 1na: the assumptiong
ssed oy the Valuer were consistent with o.r expecialons
and comparan e penchmarking and marge? ransaciion
nformation lor tne asscoi type

Data Used by the Valuer and Legal Title

We vaildated e data Lsed by the Va'uer and found hat i
was consistent with (nentormacion we aadited. This daza
ncnded inpLls 8400 as curtent rent rent indexation (CPTor
CPI+1¥Yand ‘ease orm. wnicn we have agread on a samp.e
pasis [0 execu:ed .nase agreemen:s as par: ol our acdis
work, We verilied egal ownearsnip of properices through
independen: tii.c deed confirmaions on a samp.e nasis

We conciudaod that tne ags.mpions Lsed in the valaations
oy tae Valoers were supporable in lighs of me evidence
onlained and the disc.osures wiinin the Annual Repor: are
sutficien: and aporoonae Wa nave no issunos 1o repor: in
respect of tnis work
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC
Continued

How We Tailored the Audit Scope

We tailored the scope of our audit 1o ensure that we performed enough work o be able to give an opimon on “he
financial statements as a whole, taking o account ‘he stracture of the group and the company. the accounung
processeg and controls, and the industry in which “hey operate.

The group's properaes are spread across 159 statutory enuites with the group financial statements being a

consolidazion of these entines The group's propery por:folio represents a coherent and diversified porifoho with

similar economic characienstics and, as a resuls the whole porifoho of properties represents a single operaang |
segmen: or componen:, and we have scoped our work accordingly. All work was carnied out by the group audi team

with addiional procedures performed on the consolidanon so ensure sufficient coverage and appropnate audis

evidence for our epimion on the group financial statements as a whole. |

The Impact of Climate Risk on our Audit

n plannming our audit, we made enquinies with managemen: (o undersiand the exten® of The potenial impacs

of cimae change nisk on the financial sratemenss Gur evaluation of this canclusion included challenging key
jadgemens:s and estimates in areas where we considered that there was greates: potenaal for chmaste change

impac:. We paricularly considered how climate change risks would impac: the assumpions made in the valuanon

of iInves men: propertias as explamed 1n our key audi mater above We also considered the consisiency of the
disclosures 1in relanion o chmate change made within the Annual Repor:, and “he knowledge obramed from our audt,
Using our knowledge of the business, we evaluated management's nsk assessment and resuling disclosiures where
significan:.

Materiality

The scupe of our audic was influenced by our appheanon of matenahy We sel certain quanttanve thresholds for
ma:eriality. ‘These, rogether with quahanive consideratons. helped us 1o determune “he scope of our audi: and the
nature, armung and exent of our auds procedares on the individual financial stazemen: hne tems and disclosares and
n evaluanng the effect of misstaremenss. both individaally and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole

3ased on our professional judgemens, we determined matenality for the financial statemenss as a whole as follows:

Financial statements — group Financial statementis — company
Overall FIS G m1 lon (ZOZ2: TG4 mi iony 8.2 milion (2022 T8.2 milion)
materiality
How we 1% 01 [0%a. asses 17 ot t0ta. gsse's
determined it
Raticonale for The dey IMCAs.LIe of e gro.un's performanae is e TAo Ccompany’s ntain aciivity is e o ding ot
henchmark Va..a10Nn of INvesimen: aroecr:i nd e paance  Invesiments in s.osidianas. On s 0asis. we sl

applied $A00r as a wan.o Crren [is, we 56 an overa an Overa . corrDany maena Ly .cve nased on .
growo materiaity ove. nasced on tota. S TOd. 4S50S

n addinon 10 overall group matenalily. a specific group matenahsy was also apphed o cerrain financial satemens
Iine 1reme thatimpeac: Adjusted Profit 3efore Tax tA23T3 which s based on profi before tax. adjused w0 exclude
fair value movemen:s on nvesimen: property and denvaives We ser a specific overall mazenalsy level of £7.3
million 2242 F7.5 milioni equaing o 5% of A23T narnving ar this judgemern:, we conasidered the fact that A237T
a secondary financial indicazor of the group which 1s disclosed as =23A ~armings n -he Annual Repor: irefer 2o “he
Group Sratedlc Repor: where the term 18 defined in full,

We use performance mazenality o redice to an appropnaely low level the probabilty “hat the aggregate of
ancorrecied and undetected mussiatemen:s exceads overall matenal-y Speaifically. we use performance marerialiny
In desermining the seope of our audi and “he natare and exen of our ~esung of accoun: balances, clazses of
Tansactons and digclosures, for examyple in deernuning sample sizes Our performance materialiny was 745
(2022759 of overall materiahizy, amounung ~o £75 milhon G022: F7.8 milhont for -he group financial ssaements and
6.2 milhon 28%2 Fe 2 milhion? for tThe company financial starementa




Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC
Continued

‘n determining :he performance mazenahty. we
considered a number of faciors - the lustory of
misstaremenss, rnsk assessment and aggregation risk
and :he effeciiveness of conrols - and concluded that
an arnoun: a: the upper end of our normal range was
appropriate.

We agreed with the Audit and Managemen: zngagement
Committee that we would repor: 1o them misstatemen:s
idenafied dunng our audir above £500,000 {for items
audited using overall matenalizy! and £61,°00 {(for 1zems
audued using specific group mazenality} {group audit
{2022, £518,000 and £74.50C}) and £4150C0 {company

audi) (20272, 122000 as well as missiatements below
those amounis thaz in our view, warranzed reporing for
gquah:alive reasons.

Reporting on Other Information

The orher mformanon comprises all of the informaton

m the Annual Repor: other than the financial statements
and cur auditors’ repor: thereon. The directors are
responsible for the other informanon. Our opinion on *he
financial statements does not cover *he other informanon
and. accordingly. we do not express an audit opinion or.
excep: 10 the extent atherwise expliciily stated in this
report, any form of assurance theraon

In connecuon with our audir of the financial statemenss,
our responsilhliny is to read the other informanon and,
1n doing so, consider whethear the other information 1s
matenally inconsistent with the finanoal statements

or our knowledge okramed in the audit. or otherwise
appears o be masenally missiated. if we identify

ah apparent maternal inconsistency or ma:erial
misstatement we are required o perform procedures
to conclude whether there 1s a matenal misstazemen:
of the financial stazements or a matenal misstazement
of the other information. If. based on the work we

have performed, we conclude tha: there is a matenal
misstatemen: of this other informanon, we are requirad
o report that fact, We have nothing o repor: based on
hese responsibilisies,

With respect "o the Group Strateqgic Report and Report of
“he Jirectors. we also considered whether *he disclosures
required by the UK Compames Act 2006 have been
Inchided.

Based on our work underiaken in the course of the audi-,
she Companies Act 2006 requires us also 1o repor: certam
opinions and masers as descnbed below,

Group Strategic report and Report of the Directors

[n our opinton, based on the work underaken in the
course of the audit, the informanon given in the Group
Strazegic Report and Repor: of the Jirectors for the year
ended 31 March 2023 15 conzisient with the financial
sratemers and has been preparad in accardance with
apphcable legal requirements.

In highs of he knowledge and understanding of the
group and company and their environmen: obtained in
‘he course of the audit, we did not ideniify any matenal
missiatemenss in the Group Strategic Report and Report
of the Directors.

Direclors’' Remuneration

In our opmion, the par: of the Directors’ Aemuneraton
Report to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006

Corporate Governance Statement

The Listing Rules require s 1o review the direciors’
statemen:s in relation "o going concerr, longear-term
viability and that par: of the corporate governance
staremen: relating to the company's comphance with

-he provisions of the LK Corporate Governance Code
specified for our review. Our addinonal responsibilimes
with respec: 1o the corporate governance siaemen: as
other informatoen are descrnibed in “he Reporting on other
mformaton section of this report.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC
Continued

Based on the work underiaken as part of our audiz, we
have concluded hat each of *he following elements of the
corporaze governance statemens 1s marenally consisiens
with the finanaal statements and our knowledge obtained
dunng he audiz, and, excep: for the masters reported

i the sectnion headed "Vaternat unceriainty related o
going concern, we have nothing maenal wo add or draw
ATETITION 10 1N relation 1o:

e The directors’ confittnatnion thas they have carrnied ou:
a robust assessment of the emerging and principal
Tgks;

e The disclosures in the Annual Repor: thar describe
‘hose principal nisks, whar procedures are in place 0
idenufy emerging nsks and an explananon of how
‘hese are beng managed or mungazed;

e The directors siarement in the financial statemern:s
abou: whether they conaidered 7 appropriate 10
adopr the going concern basis of accounang n
preparing them, and theiwr identficaien of any
maternal dheer-ainiies (o the group's and company’s
akility 1o continue 0 do so over a penod of at leas:
twelve months from the date of approval of the
financial statements;

¢ The directors’ explananon as 1o their assessmen: of
the groups and company’'s prospec:s, the periad shis
asseszmen: covers and why the pernod s appropriae,
and

e ‘The directors statemen: as 10 whether they have a
reasonable expecTanon that the company will be able
o continide In oparauon and meet 1ts habihues as they
fall due over the period of 118 assessment, including
any related disclosures drawing azenton o any
necessary quahficanons or assumprlions.

Our review of the directors’ statemen: regarding the
longer-term viabilizy of the group and company was
subsiannally less in scope “han an aadi and only
congisied of making mgaines and considearng the
direciors process gupporing “heir statement; checking
“har “he statement s in alignment vwith *he relevan:
prowvisions of the UX Corperare Governance Code;
and considenng whe her the statemeant 1s cOnsigient
with the financial stacements and cur knowledge and
andersianding of the group and company and thear
enwvironmen: obrained i the course of the aud:

In addition, based on the work underntaken as parr of
our audit, we have concluded that each of the following
elemen:s of the corporate governance starement 1s
matenally consisten: with the financial statemern:s and
our knowledge obamed during the audis:

e+ The direciors stazement “hat “hey consider the
Annual Repor, taken as a whole, s fair, balanced
and undersandable, and provides the informaton
necessary for thae members to assess the group’s and
company s position. performance, businass model and
srateqy;

e The secuon of the Annual Repart that descnbes the
review of effeciiveness of nsk managemen: and
mnternal control systems: and

¢ ‘The secnon of the Annual 2epor: deserbhing the
work of the Audir and Managemen: cngagement
Commitee,

We have nothing To repor in respect of our responsitblicy
1o repors when the direciors’ statemen: relating "o the
company's comphance with the Code does not property
disclose a departure from a relevan: provigion of the
Code specified under The "asung ules for review by the
auditors.

Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements and the Audit

Responsibilities of the Directers tor the

Financial Statements

Asg explamed more fully in the Staremen: of Tirectors
Responsibilimes, the direciors are responsible for “he
preparation of the financial statements in accordance
vnth the apphcable framework and for being sansfied
-hat they qive a trae and fair view. The directors are also
responsible for gsuch imnternal control as they determine
18 necessary o enable the preparation of financial
statements tha: are free from matenal miss:atemen:,
whether due 1o fraud or error

_n prepanng the financal statements, the direciors are
responsibile for asseszing “he group's and The company's
abilizy w0 conunue as a going concern. disclosing.

as applicable. mazers related "o going concern and
using the gomng concern basis of accounning uniess

“he direcrors erther intend o haguidass the group or the
COMpany or o cease operanons, or have no reahe’ic
al~ernanve ba--o do so




Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC
Continued

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Financial Statemonts

Our objecuves are 1o obain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
maternal misstatemen:, whether due to fraud or error,

and to 1s5ue an auditors repor: thart includes our opimon.
Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance, but s
not a gaarantee thar an audr: conducted in accordance
with 15As (UX) will always detec: a matenal miss:atement
when 1t exigts. Missiatements can arse from fraud or
error and are considered material if, indrnndually or in the
aggregate they could reagonably bo expected w influsnice
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

irregulaniaes, including fraud, are instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulanons. We design
proceduaresn line with our responsibilities, outhned
above, 10 detecr marenal miss:atermens in respect of
wrregulartties, including fraud. The exten: 1o which our
proceduras are capable of detecting rregularities.
inclading fraud, 1s detatled below.

Rased on our understanding of the group and mdus:ry,
we 1den:ified tha: the prnnaipal nisks of non-comphance
with laws and regulations related 1o complhance with

the Real =s7ate Investment Trast (R=T) status Zart 12 of

che Corporanon Tax Act 201C and the UX regulatory
principles, such as those governed by the -inancial
Conduc: Authonty, and we considered the exen: o
which norn-compliance might have a matenal effec on
“he finanaial statemenss. We also considered <hose laws
and requlations tha: have a direct impact on the financial
statemen's such as the Companies Act 2006, We evaluated
managemens's incentves and opporaumrnes for frauduilen:
marupulation of the finanaal statements (including the
nisk of overnde of controls), and determined tha: the
principal nsks were related to posting mappropnate
journal eniries ¢ Increase revenile or reduce expenditure,
and managemen: bias in accouning esamales and
judgmenal areas of the financial statements such as the
valualon of investment properues. Audi: procedures
performed Ly the engagemen: :eam included:

e scussions with management, including
consideraiion of known or suspec.ed insances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations and fraud.
and review of the reporis made by managemen®;

¢ Lnderstanding of managemens's inzernal controls
designed o prevent and detec: irregulantias;

e Assessmment of maers, if any, reported 1o the Audis
and Managernen: Fngagemen: Commiitee;

o Reviewing relevant meeing minutes, including
“hose of the 3oard of Directors and “he Audir and
Managemen: rngagemen: Commiitae;

¢ Review of tax compliance with the involvernean: of our
tax specialists in the audit

¢ Designing audi procedures 1o mcarporate
anpredictabnlity over the nature, nming and exsent of
oar testing of expenses;

o Proceduresrelaung to the valuanon of investment
propernas described 1in the related key audi matter
above; and

o denufying and testing journal entries, in parncular
any journal entries posted with unusual accoun:
combinations and words.

There are mheren: hmitattons in the audlt procedures
described above We are less likely 1o become awrare of
instances of non-comphance with laws and regulations
tha: are not closely related o events and transactions
reflected in the financial stazements. Algo, the nisk of not
deteciung a material missiatement due 10 fraud s higher
than the rigk of not detecting one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for
example. forgery or intenuonal misrepresentalons, or
through coltusion.

Our audiz tesung migh: include tesung complete
populanoens of cerrain ransacions and balances,
possibly using data auditing techniques However, 11
wypically involves selecting a hmited number of 1iemsg for
<esting, rather than testing complete populauons. We will
often seek 10 1arge: paracular izems for testing based on
their g1ze or nisk characreristics. 'n other cages, we will
use audir samphng 10 enable us o draw a conclusion
about the populatnion from which the sample 1s selecied.

A further descniption of our respongibihnes for the
audit of the financial statements 1s located on the 'RC’s
website at wwwfrc.orguk/auditorsresponsitiities. This
description forms par: of our auditors’ repor:.

Use of this report

This repor:. including the opinions, has been prepared
for and only for the company's members as a body in
accordance with Chapier 3 of Part 6 of the Comparues
Act 2006 and for no other purpose, We do not, in giving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibihity for any
other purpose or 'o any other person ‘o whom this repor:
13 shown or into whose hands 1t may come save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent in writng.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC
Continued

Other Required Reporting

Companies Act 2006 Exception Reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report
to you if, in our opinion:

¢ we have not ocbhtained all the information and
explanations we require for our audit; or

e adequate accounting records have not been kept by
the company, or returns adeguate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

o certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration
specified by law are not made; or

¢ the company financial statements and the part of
the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are
not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns.

‘We have no exceptions to repott arising from this
responsibility.

Appointment

Following the recommendation of the Audit and
Management Engagement Comrmittee, we were
appointed by the members on 31 March 2017 to audit the

financial statements for the year ended 17 November 2016

and subsequent financial periods. The pericd of total
uninterrupted engagement is 7 years, covering the years
ended 17 November 2016 to 31 March 2023,

Other Matter

In due course, as required by the Financial Conduct
Authority Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rule
4,114R, these financial statements will form part of the
ESEF-prepared annual financial report filed on the
National Storage Mechanism of the Financial Conduct
Authority in accordance with the ESEF Regulatory
Techrnical Standard (‘ESEF RTS'). This auditors’ report
provides no assurance over whether the annual financial
report will be prepared using the single electronic format
specified in the ESET RTS.

Stz (/f:\aJ{«f/LC‘j

Saira Choudhry (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Londen

28 June 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2023

For the
year ended
J1March 2023

For the
vear ended
31 March 2022

CIVITAL suCIal
REPORT AND AU

[>:]
Q

- o o o o o o . _ e — ‘I‘_J_nm _ E'ﬂﬂ_ o ﬁtlﬁ
Revenue

Ronai income 50 54,607 51.635

LSS§ﬂre£[ Oropery expenses 7 - _ o 5.’3_ . _(1212 o __-f?'@
Net rental income 52.666 530558

Directors rem aneraion 6.0 (211) (206)
Invesimen: advisory fees 80 (6,217) (5.132)
Conera! and adnmsirative oxnenses 9.c (5,393 £3.909)
Total expenses (11,821) (12,247
Change intair va e of invosimen: properies . 156 2.640 12.269

Operating profit 43,485 52.68C

Finance income 100 148 7

Finance exponse ne {15,335) (10.508)
Change in far vasae of interes: rate dervalives . . _ o ) i 21 \”_ _ {2,826) 2575

Profit before tax 25,472 44754

Taxaion 12.6 -

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year N o 25,472 14734

Ea;ungsw p; share — basic and diluted - - h B a LT 4:19; 7?3_:7

AL amouwnis reporedin e Consoadaed S aiemen: of Corrorenensive Inoome aoove arise rom connnsing oneraions.

The noles on pages 84 o N are anmiegra par of Dagse consoadand inancis slaemoens



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2023

Assets
Non-current assets
[nvesturen: property
Onaer Teceivan.es

Inlereg: rate derivatives

Current assets
Trade and ot1er receivanics

Cash and casn equiva.en:g

Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities
“rade and other pavablcs

Non-current liabilities

Bang and .oan borrowings
Total liabilities
ToEal aﬁssets -

Equity

Snare caplia.

Share premiuam reserve
Capiiai redaciion reserve
Retained carnings

Total equity -

Net assetsiper share — basic and diluted

31 March 2022

3 March 2023
2000

77va . £000
130 953,364 945237
170 24,783 23519
210 8129 2131
986,276 970.887

17.0 11,260 12.865
18.0 35,588 53.337
46,848 86202
1,033,124 1C37.089

1.0 (9.300) (9492
200 (361,915  (352.050)
(371215)  (351.542)

661.909 575,547

220 6.225 - 5.225
230 292,626 292525
24.0 317,714 322365
250 45344 54330
661,909 575.547

50 10916p 1030

These consoldated financia siaiements on pages 86 1o 10 were aporoved oy the Board of Directors of Civiias Socla Housing

PLC and auihorised tor 1ssue and signed on bis oenalfl by:

A

) \v“l)l,f‘m L)
Michael Wrobel
Cnairman and Independent Non-Exec.dive Direcior
28 Tune 2023

Company Mo 10452528

T NOLeS G Dageas 84 1o 114 are antinegral gar: of .hese consoidaied linanaid’ stammenis
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Share Capnal

Share premum reducuon
Nore oo “Fona “hoon
Balance at 1 April 2021 o o 6225 292463 331140
Profl: and [0la. comorenensive income [or e year -
Sares reiss.ed from reas.ry 233 - 163 484
Sharcs pough: nack Inio reasury 240 (3.259)
Dividends naid 14.0 -
Balance at 31 March 2022 T Team T asm
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - - -
Snares rass.aed from ireasury 230 - - -
Shares hosgh Dacd N Teas..ry 240 - - {4.651)
Dividends paid 1.0 - - -
Balance at 31 March 2023 I 6225 292626 317714
Thae notes on pages 84 0 17T arg an miegra. par of [acse conso dad financia, siatements

Retained
earmings
£000

T 43,670
44754

(34.093)

54.331

25,472

{34,459}

T 575547

45344

Total
oquity
£ nuu

573,198
44.751
547
(9.259
{34.093)

25,472
(4,651
(34,459)

661,309




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 March 2023

reor the
for the yrat ended
s
. oo _ - _ . - Note £000 Lana
Cash flows from operating activities
Protit for the year pefore taxaiion 25.472 14754
Change n fair va.ue of investmen: properiies (2.640) (12.259)
- Changein lair va.ue of interest rate derivarives 2.826 {2679)
Rent and incentive siraighi .ine adj.stments 436 397
- Bad debt cxpense/lcredit} 5.0 429 {7
Finance income (148) gl
Finance expense 15,335 15.6G8
fncrease in ease incen'ive receivab e (1,700) (7.011)
Decreasefiincrease) i trade and other receivanles 1.044 (235)
(Decreass)/increase in trade and other payanies o o (1,723) 58
Cash generated from operations S 39.329 39,085
hnerest received 148* f
Net w generated fr rating acti S 3941 0102

Net cash flow generated from operating activities

Invesiing activities

Improvemen's and purcnasces of invesiment nroper:ies (4.679}
Acquisition coss {211}
Purchase of supsidiary - Including propany -

| (4830)

3a.¢ protesds on gaie of subsidiary  exciuding properly

Net cash flow used in investing activities

Financing activities

Cos: of snarcs bouagat ino ireasary 24.0 (4,651)
Procesds trom snares reissued from treasury 240 -
Dividends paid 1o equry sharenolders (34.576)
Ineresi tate derivanve promium paid 210 (8.841)
Proceeds trom the disposa. of interes: rate derivanves 210 17
Bank norrowings advanaed iy 70,875
Banx norrowings repaid A0 (60,000)
Banx norrowing issue cos:s paid (3,148) (1.805)
[nieresrziand security fees paid on bang porrowings and derivallves - o o (12.012) L (78‘590)
Nel cash flow used in financing activites o | (52336) (52653
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (17,749) (53760}
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year 18.0 53,337 107.097
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year - - 180 35588 53337

< ash and cgsh equivalents and mones held in resineted aceounts and deposits have besn estated as a1 51 March 2022 (ollowing ctanheanon by IFRIC on
classificanion of funds with externally impused (ostnenons Please reter ke delals in note 2 4

The notes on pages 84110 110 are an integral par: of these consolidated financal stazements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Civiias Socia. Hoosing PLC {ithe "Company”) was incorporaed in England and Wales under 1ne Contpanies Act 2005 as a pub.ic
company limized by snares on 29 Sepiemoer 2016 witn comoany n.mocer 10402528 wnder the name Civitas REIT PLC. wnich was
suasequeaently changed o tne exisung name ¢on 3 Ocroner 2016

e address of the regisicred ollicc is 8
inve

A Floor, 65 Gresnam Siree:, London TC2V 7NQGQ. Tne Company 18 regisicred as an
maon: comoany nder section 833 of the Companies Acr 2006 in England and Wa.es and is domictied in the Jnited Kingdom

The Company did no® begin rading .int 18 November 2016 when 1ne snhates were admitted 1o tading on the London Stock
Fxcnange ('LIEY)

The Company's Ordindry sharcs are admized e Gthcia List of 1ae Financia. Condact Adinarizy CFCA™Y and rraded on
the Ls

Tae nrincipal activity of thae Company and iis s.osidianes (the "Crowo’ 15 10 orovide sharcno.ders witin an aracuve evel of
incomre. iogether wita tne notential for capiial grow:h fron invesung in a porfo.io of socia. homes

Ae linancia. siatcmen:s nave oen osrepared in accordance with UK-adopicd infernational accouniung standards and with
requirements of tho Companies Ac: 2005 ag app ican.e 1o conrnanies reporting dander those standards

Tne Group's consolidated tinanaia. slalemenis nave oech preodred on a alsionca’ cost 0asis. as modified for the Group's
mvesimaen: proger:ies and denvaive (indancla. inSirumen:s @ 1all va.Le Lwo.agn orolll or Loss.

The tinancia, information iy pregented In Poumds Stening winicn 18 also the funcuonal currenay of tne Groap and al.
ro.nded 1o the neares Dowsand poLnds (£000s), excen: wacre o erwise indicaied

fa ..€5 arg

ne Grodo ocnefits Irem a secure Income sircam from long cases witn ine Aporoved Providers, The Growp's cash na.ances as
at Bl Marca 20723 were [35888000. of wilen F2949.000 was nold as resiricied casn Detalis of taig can pe tound in nowe 18.0

Tne Company and s Invesimaont Adyviser Crivitas Invesimen: Managemaon: Linved ("CIM™ coninae o word Cosc.y with
Conpany's maor cowfrarnariey 1o monlor 10e position on e gro.nd and. smowd it oo necded. 1o offer assisiancs and
guidance waers possto.e. Tne Board of Direciors ocievas tnal e Company operates a ropus: and defensive uasiness mode,
and Mal socia. Nn.sing and spccials: nealthcare are oroving 10 ne some of 1he MmOIc resiIent ScCiors WIinin tie narde. given
TMat ey are oascd on non-discreionary ouade secior expendli.re and nal denrand exceads sunoy

On 17 MNovermper 20722, an exicnsion was granted for tae facinty witn HSBC Ban< p.o. wihicn now exowres on %28 Novemoaor Z025.
On 13 Feoraary 20235, e Comoany closed a new hve vear term daot faciaty of £7C.875.000 win Dewssane Bank AG. Tho faci ity

nas oeen deployed to redeam the Company's rovo,ving credis facity with Loyds Ban« po of £80.00C000 ag we as providing
additiona aguidiry As a resao now a. dent faciiies nave fixed or caoped razes

Cn 1 Docemper 2077, Tne Company signed a facilly wiia an ins: jona. .ender S.osog.en: (o s on 21 ]ine 20
Company received credir aporoved terms for an addinona. U510 mision fixed facivy nased on a 3-year SONTA 1
dae of draw down »19%00s margin wiin a mar.riy d of 3Asg.87 2020 The oventua drawdown on o facliy 18 sLo ot o
cerzam siandard ¢ osing conditions

Casafow lorecas s oased on gevars oo v.a.sioe downside

CENACNDS ave 0ecn ronLin garas..ar 2ac hina a. pgriormanae
ot lenants and a redociion in contracied rent As a: 31 Marcn Zoe rent woud nave o droo oy aporoximate .y 10% ostore
any of 1Is _can covenan:sg are oreacied. Al taedaio of anpprova. of tug repor, ne Company nas s.icon neadroom wiin s
financia. .oan covenan's Tac Conmoany a.80 nencins fron a sec.re iIncame srearr front eases wi1 ony woeigaed averags
snexoircd ternmr eases. As g res., e Direcions e icve taal g Crown 1s we aced o rranage s financing and o
0.L8INEess TisLS and a) ne Crowp Wi remaln vlao.e, conidnaing o operae and maCi is JaoLcs as ey fas doae

L.

Tne Company’
grnera moening fo owang ety anniverzary from
m ez carren: torme fae Contineation Resg Lolan Tas
QLIRSS A8 DrEsen Y Onng
gaonera mooenng sreaftier

$ arKkes 0l agsociation ine.ade a reguarerent for Tie Board o nropose an ordinary resc. L 01on ai 1oe ann.aa.
e imnla oo ollenng of tae Campany for the Company o conunes
assed 1n 3epiemoer 2077 s0 tne Cotrpany Wi con'in.e v's
Taed and w 2ropose Die same reso. Laen at ino ACM N Seoiemroer 2027 and every hifin annla,




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

On 9 May 2023, an announcement was made 1o 1ne mar<er for an a.l-cash offer of Civicas Sncial [lousing PLC (CSH) from
Weness Uniy tirited. a whiolly owned indirec: suosidiary of CK Assets Hoidings Limited (CKA). The offer became
unconditiona. on 23 Junc 2623, The Groun's exisiing commised den: tacilities contain a standard change of coniror ¢ciaase
whic s now oeen riggaered due (o the offer pecoming unconditional. This could res.i: in tae existing committad

deb: lacilities peing witdrawn. Furiaermore, the Directors do nol nave visioility of the post compiction funding for tng

Group and Company at fhis lime. The Directors note the deai ed inzentions statemen: inc .ded within (nc announcament

o1 9 May 2023 which sia: 131 CKA does not cnvisage ma<ing any changes io 1ne manageomen: ican nor any disruplion

to any counterpariies or o ne underlying tcnants. However, the conditions o.ulined agove indicae a malerial Lncerrainty
waeh may cas: significant dowb Loon the Group's and Conpany’s ability (o continde as a going concern. "he Independent
ALdizors' Report inciuded withun the Annual Report and Accodnts for 1nc year ended 31 Marcn 2023 also hignaghis this martena.
ancertainty. Therelore. noiwithistanding :ne material wneeriainty arising lrom tne offer from CKA. the Directors arc satisfied na:
Ine going concarn nasis remains appropriate for the preparasion of the linanciai siatemenss. The financial statements do not
inc.ade tne ad,asiments tat woud reswlt if 1he Growp and tne Cormpany were unab.e 10 conlinue as a going Condcermn.

PR A

Tne [ollowing ncew s:andards a

A g : e e T e e

re now eflecive and nave peen adopted for the year ended 31 March 2023,

e« IFRIC Agenda Item: Following clariticanuon by IFRIC on the c.assiicanon of monies ne.d in resiricied accounts. ntonies
‘ha: are resTicted oy use oniy ars classificd a: 31 March 2023 as "Cash and cash equiva.cn:is . As deailed in nowe 24, the
comrparaive balances nave osen restated where appncabie to reflect 1nis change in ciassificauon,

e IFRIC Agenda Item: In Cciooer 2022, ine IFRIC issued an aganda decision in respec: of Lessor forgiveness of ease
paymen:s (IFRS 9 and IFRS 15) {The [FRIC Decision on Concessions) Thus concladed aa: .osses tnewrred on graning
reTOSDeCVE Tent Concessicns shoad be ¢harged o the income siatemen: on the datc inal ine .ega. righils (o Income are
conceded (e immediate recognizion In fo0 rasner ;nan smoothed over (he ife of tne leasc) The claritication nas not nad a
material impact on 1ne {ihanacia: siaemen’s.

« Amendments to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations' (effccuve for nenods peginning on or atier 1 January 2022} gives
c.arification on the recogniton of contingen: Jjabi.iues at acquusition and carities that contingen! assels should not be
recognised a: he acguisiuen daie, The amendmen:s nave nol nad a significan: umpag: on the preparasan of the inancia
slalemean:s

e Amendments to IAS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ (ctfecive tor periods beginning on or
after1]anaary 20220 gives clanhication on cos's 1o incoude in estimating ihe cost of [uli ing a conract for inc nurpose of
assessing wherier ina: Conract is onerous. The amendmenis nave not nad a sigrificant imoac: on ne preparaduon of 1ne

financia. siatemen:s.

e Amendments te IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ (2ifecuve for periods begmning on or alier 1 January 20220 gives
c.arification on tae fces an eniy includes waen assessing wnether o lorms ol a new or modifiad linancial Jdapl
sJbsianiany different from (ne terms of (ae original aapility. The amendmeon:s nave nol nad a significant impact on tac

are

oreparaion of the linancia. staiomen:s.

In March 2022, tne [FRS Inerpretations Commitiee { TFRIC ) finalised a decision on the ¢lassifica:ion of monies ho:xd in restricted
ACCOUNS, $.00 That monics (nat are regincied oy use an.y. are c.assified a: 31 Marcn 2023 as Cash and casn equivaents’

The Croup nowds resiricied casn tor lenan: deposits and retention monics in relation to deferred payments s.0/ect 10
acalevemen: of certain conditions. Giner reteniions and casa segregared o [und repair, mamienance and iMprovermen: worss
o onng Sho properies up 1o satistaciory s:andards tor e Group and e lenans

As aresultof the IFRIC decision. 2ae Group nas revisiied 1318 poucy and incl.des tiese mones witlun e classification cash
and casn cudva.cnis The ad usimeon: nas no i paci on (he c.assiticanon ol e net assets of 2 (ITL D 0N TG Statcmen:
of Financiai Posiion, nowever ine movemen. s on 1ese ba.ances are now raporied in ine Slatemen: of Casnhiows and
comodarazive ligures nave noon rasiaad.

Comparatuve fig.res for cas'vand cagn equiva.ens nave ncreased py £4.362.000 (31 Maren 20210 03 278 000). Tus nas
resglced 0 an inarease (© 0C conparative fig.re for casn generated from operations by 71413000 concerning movenen's
on deposit pa.ances and an INcrease o 11z ne: casn Low Leed ininves'ing acuvites of T529.000 concerning moveinen:s on
retenton monics

sasa. ] Anrtl 2021 winnin he financial statemeaents. in accordance with [AS 1
>y, Cnanges 1n Accooning Fstimates and Brrors

e Group aas not presented revised pa.ance snae
Presemiauen of Financial S.atemrean:s and T1AS 8 Accoaniing Pauc

02 SLNNODDY NV L0



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

The following table shows the impact of these adjustments in the prior year:

B T o - T T o T o o - - o o o o T 777;1 Maazl{;
31 March 2022 Restarement Reslated
. _ . . _ o o . _ o __ o o o o o o 7@7() . iﬂm)”' ,,,J“@
Group cash flow statement (extract)
Net cash fow gencrated from operaing activines 37.489 1613 39182
Neatcash Low wsad in investing acividi (39.570) {529} (10.199)
Casn and casn equivalonis at ine siart of tne year 103.819 3278 167.097
Casn and cash equiva.ens the end of The year 18.975 4362 33337
decreasc in casn and cash eqgiivalienis {54,844} 1,084 {53,750)

. } . . S
Thoe lolowing are new standards, Interpresanons and amendments, waicn are no: ye: eficcive and have nol neen oariy
adopted in s financia. inforration. tnat will or rray nave an affec: on tae Crodo's tuiure tinancia. statements:

e Amendments to IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes’ (ofteciive for periods beginnming on or atier 1 lan.aary 2023 - ¢ arify now con paniss
oun: for deferred tax on ransqciong s.on as eases and decominissionmmg ooligations T ameondmens are no:
exooecied o nave a significant invpac: on e preparason of the financia statenen:s

d

¢ Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ (clfeciive lor venods ocginning an or after 1 lanwary
3 - are ntonded 1o nelp antics in deciding which accounting po.icies 1o disc.ose in maeir tinancia.,
anendnents are no: cxpeciad 0 nave a signilicani impact on inc prevaration of Te financia. statemen

Z

¢ Amendments to 1AS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’ («ffective for veriods
ceginning on or alier 1an.ary 2023 inroduce e definizion of an accoun:ing esiimae and ing .de omncr amendmen:s
0 g0 enunes distingwish changes in accouniing csiunaies [rom ¢ianges in acco.ning uoacies 7 ameandnents are
no: expocted 1o nave a significant mpac: on the orenaralion ot e Nancla slawenens

e Amendmenis to IAS | ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ (ctfective for penodys oeginning on or atler | Jan..ary 2074}
- canfy laol.ities are ciassified as crhor carrent or nen-carrent. depending on the nigais nas exist at e end of the
reporing perod and Not €xoe nong of or ac. .a. evenss allor :ne reporing dale. ™2 a dmenis a so glve carfication
o e dehiniaon of sett.eomen: of a aoi Tacamendments are no: expecied 1o dave a significant impact on e
orenardalon of e financia staiemen:s

[FRS 8 Qoeraiing Segirents req.alres operaling scgiren:s o oe idaniaficd on he pasis of internal financia: reporis anout
componen:s of 1ae CroLn nat arc reg..ary reviewsd oy ne lef Operaung Decision Ma<er. walen in e Gro.o's case 1s
de.cgdied o e [nvesimen: Adviser w0 1as formred an (ve TeEdin. In order 10 a..0cae resnarcey 10 ne segmenigand o
asgese Taeir performance

Thc iniorna. financa repors xd oy ine lnvesir
€70, 48 a Who.e and Tere are no roconeiing Lems oce
nne conso idaind hnancia sia.cmrens

cAadvisors Dxecoave Team coniamn inancia misrmadon a2 a Crouo
Son L Tesuog contained in rese reoors and e anouants ronored

Tae Direcoors consideor e Growgs groverty oorfoan reoregents 4 conarent and diversitied porifo o wit sindar coonomic
CRAratiensies and. as a res., L nc wao.e 0ordo 1o ol Droperles rearEsn’s a SING.C 00arating segmons n e view ol the
Dircerors maere s according ¥ one renorian = segmen’ nder e orovimons of [FR3 8

Ao of tre CroLo's aoroperies ars gasedn v JE Ceogragica mtormanoen 18 orovided o ang .rs comgpiance wiin e
Aryersiicanon regulremen:s of e Company. 91l 11an (1S No geograniica. gro.Lping 1s conamed in any of 1ae inerna
financia. ronors orondsd 7o e Tnve
reguared oy [FRS §

men. Advisers Dxec .

Tean and.

ofore no geagran 11ca. fegmrenia. ana.lysis s
H El

The Throciors noic te reqarenien s in JFR3 8 Paragrana 34 coriaining o enioes Lnder common conrs, and confirn: na:
ooy Alasand Home 3o idons and Goadas Holsing fas Company's invesiran rea
conira, of Tac 3ocia 1o .sing Farm oy CIC CT3IFY Tag corceniage and sor toa of D Company s ann.a. coniraced roniro |
OUrialng O Tnese couniergaries as il sy we
ot e Ann.a. Repor.

sers 0f -

ratel are .ndear comimron

s congidersd o o a sing ¢ customrer can oe found innoc 28 S and on nage 3




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

n e applica.don ul cie Gloaps aceounung po'icies, whicn are described in note 4.0, tne Direciors are required 1o mase
cadgements, esumasos and assumpions abo.w: e carrying anto.unts of asseis and liaviities that are no! readlly apparen:
from other sources. The udgemenis. estimalaes and associated ass.mptions that have a significant ris< of causing a material

ad,ustmen! to the carrying amounts of assets and .abhilities within the tinancial year are oulned below:

B [ N PR [ Wt P Lt eemt
The Group Jses ‘ne vauation carried o4 oy s independen: valuer as e lair vaiue of its property porifolio The va.uation s
nased wpOoOh assumpiions inc.ading [uiure rentar income and ne appropriate discodn: rate. The va Lers aiso make reference o
market evidence of transaction prices for simi.ar propertes. Further intormasion is provided n note 15.0

Tac Greup's properties nave pean independenty vailed by Jones Lang LaSailc Limbled CILL or the "Va.uer”) In accordance
will the curren: Royal Instization of Cnarered Surveyors Valiation - G obal Standards, incorporating the VS and wne RICS
Vataauon - Gioba. S:andards 2617 UK nationai supolemcni {11e RICS "Red Book") TLLis a we.l recognised professiona. firm
wiiin socla. housing valtation and nas sutlictent curren: 'ocal and nationa’ xnowledge of boin social housing genera.y and
Spcciadist Sapporied Housing ("SSH™ and nas tae sk.g and wndersianding 1o underlake e vaiiations compeently.

Winrespeo: (o tne Grocp's consolidated inancial statemren:s, inves:men: properties are va.ded at tneir tair va:.e al cacn
oalance sheqi date in accordanca witn IFRS 13, Fair va. . measaremen:s snod.d be oresented and classilied using a fair va.ue
aerarchy that reflecis the significance of the inputs wsed in i1e measuremens, according (o e folowing ieve.s

Level 2 Inp.s other than guoted orices incivded witin Level 1nat are observap.e lor the assc: or naoliity, e
s} or indirecty (hat 1s. derived from orices).

Level 3 Inp.i:s [or Tae asset or Jjabtny 1nat are not nased on observan.e maret data (uncoservanle Inputs) Va.ue s .ne

Diroctors’ bes: estimaie, pased on advice from reievan: know.edgeante exper:s, .se of recognised va..ation

:ecanigues and a delerminaion of wnich assumpiions should be app.ied in valuing sucn assers and wiih

parsicuiar focus on the specific attrinaies of 1ac inve nis nemnsaiveas

er dnegrly

(that1s. as pri

Civen the bespoke natare of each of 1ne Crowp's INvesimrants. the paricuar regairements ol due diigenee and tinancial
“onribLlon obtained (rom e vendors .ogeiner with tne recent emergence of $5H. all ol the GroLp's invesimen? 91000ries
are inc'uded in Level 3

Tac fair valLe of Grouo's interes: rae derivatives 1s recorded in tne Groap Statemen: of Financia! Position and is deiermined
oy The respecuve couwnerpartics. The colnterparies L8e a namper of assLmpilons in delermining the tair vaties. inclading
esimanons over futire inleres: raies and luiure cash t ows Jsing cpscrvable yied curves.

Tae Groun acquires swosidiaries inat own inves men: properiies, At e lime ol acqaisition. wne Group considers whctier aacn
acquigition represents inc acg.isitton of a o.siness or tha acquisiilon of an asset Managemoenr consgiders the s.onsiance of 1ne
assers and activities of the acquired entty in deiernmtining wnether (he acquisition represents ine acquisition of a nusiness,

siness compinazion waere an integrated set of aciiviies 15 acg.ired in addition

Tnc Group aecounts {or an acg.isiiion ag a ni
10 the proper:y. Where sucn acquisiiions are not, udged (0 be (ac acquisizion of a business. ney arc nol reaied as basiness
combinaions. Ratmer, ine cos® 1o acquire the corporate entity is aLocaed petween the identifiabic asse's and liapiiides of ine
enilly pased upon (neir re aive fair val. es ai ine acquisiuen daze. According'y, no goodwil or addiacnal deferred tax arises.
There were no corgorae acquaisiions made in cae year

During e previous year tae Group eniered into a transacion o acguire the freeno:d oroperiies opcrated oy CPI Care Limited.
Upon the acguisiion of e company: (1c properties were rransferred o olaer groap companies and [0c company acqaired.
a.0ng Wit iy associaicd opcradions, was soid to [nvivo Corand.am Bideo Limited. Furiner dezails are snown in nota 18.6 10 the
financiai slaemenis.

The acquired companics me: e definuen of a ousiness .nder [FRS 3 and tne ransaaion was therefore recorded as a
DLSINGSS ZOm nination.

Becasse Me Growp acauired e company witn 1ae1mien: 1o se. e pusiness, managemren: appaed (he snor-cul mernod
wnder IFRS 5 Seosidiaries acq.ared wita a view (o resa.c. Under 7fus menod. ne subsidiary 1$ recorded at fair va..e 'ess cogis
tose’and mere 1s no raquiremen: o lair vl .o e saosidiaty's individaa. asses and 1aolliies,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

Tne Croup has acguired Inves:men: propertics tha: are sLoject (o commercial property ‘eases witin Aporoved Providers. Tne
Croup nas detcrmined. nased onh an evalualion of 1ne rerms and condidons of the arrangemens. nanicuarly ine duraion
ol M easc lerms and MINimum @880 paymrens, (aatl it reains a. ine sighificant risgs and rewards of ownersae of (hese
proper:ics and o acco.nts for ine 'eases as operating _cases

b e
Civiias Socia’ Housing PLC Is a Real Estaie Invesimen: Trust (REIT). The JK RETT regimre apoiies wien eniiies meeat cerain
conditions with tne effect A¢ income orolils and capital gaing of ine g.a.ifying oropery rentd: Dusiness are examp: rom
tax. Wiinin tacse conditlons aieast 90% of the Group's property income m.st ne distributed as dividends to snareho.ders and
e Group must ensare (1at the property renta. nusiness represents more wnan 75% of 1ota’ prolits and asseis.

Eoiowing “he comoleiion of the offer, there s a ‘eve, of unceramty tnar the Group wili remain in ae RET regime

giied g proparason of 'ac consaiidated financial staemenis are sei 0dr oe oW The
ad w0 all oonods oresenied, Un.ess otherwise stacd.

Tho orincipa. accounting polcies ap
00 iCICs Nave nean Congisienty ano.

Tae consoddated hinancial siaements comprise Die hnancia informazion of ine Croup as at ine year end date.

S.pgidiaries are all enaties over wnic

M the Croun nas conirol Tne GID.o conttows an entisy waen ne Group s oxposed o,

oI nas 11g:1is Lo, variable relLmns rom 1s involvemen: win Lac eniy and nas ine aoliy 1o affec: 1nose reisrns rowgn s
nower 1o direct e activic e entity, A intra-gro.p rransaciions 0a.ances. income and expenses are eaminated on
consoidanon The tinancia. inlormaion of tae supnsidiaries is e wdedin 1ae consoadaed financia. statemenis from e Jdale
@t coONTTo. ComMences SN ine daie tnal contron ceases.

If an equly inierast in a ¢ Zosidiary 1s wransferred D a coniro ang inNteres. coninaes 1o be nod ater e ranster inen the
cnange in ownersnip interest is accounied for as an equiy rransaciion

Accoanting oolicies of 1o

> s.osidiaries are consigicn: wity 1ic policies adopied oy the Com

Tyesren; propcely. WhIch 18 propery Ae d 1o earn rentas and/or tor Capita. anprecianon, Is Ini:
ae farr va e of ;e consideration given. incl.ding expendil.re mnat s direcly anniouian.e
oropery Afler inrial recognition. Inves:imen: propory s stated atis [ar va Lo at e paance
afising {rom cnanges tn "1e lalr value of invesimen; property are incwdad in profis or .oss lor
e Consoddated Statemean: of Compranensive Incema

a.y measured al cos, 02ing
c acgaasinon of ne invesinmens
el date Gains and 0sses

e penod in Walcn (NEY ansa ln

Subseq.on: expenditire is canualised only when 1t is propan.c ta: fuiure economic nenafiis are assocjaied wi
Cngeing regairs and malnanance are cxpensed as incurred. Cverieads and operanng exX0cnses ars (1a: ¢a

e expanditure
a sed

ANV ESITen: grooery 18 dergcogriised wpon disuosa or waen e invesIren: progery 1s permanan’ y wiadrawn fron: .so
and no 1. .re coonomic aencli s ars cxpeoied from (e dispnsa - Any gain or (088 ansing on derecognitlon of 1nc propery
{ca cilatad as e difference detweean tne neT disposa oracceds and e carr/ing amo.nt of 1ne assel s nc.reed in profit or
11N e oanod in waich tne oTooery 1§ darecogmised.

Rek

Signitican: aceo.ning | .dgemenig esumates and aseumoions made 107 e vai.anon of Invesimen: 2roperies are dis
i noe &1

Leases are C.assihed as linance gases wignevyer e [orms of 11 Tansfer s.osiania.y an e nss and rowards of

528

ONNCTSNDN 7O TN8 288ae A ouaer cases arc c.assified as operalng .e¢

Tac Company as deerrined al it retams a e significan nisgs and rewards ol awnersnio of inc oInocrics and acco.Lnts
[or Thae Contracs as operalng casss as digcossed innoe 34

amen: of Finanaa.
re 73N Cascs

Properies cased ool Lnder Soeraiing £ascs are 1ng .ded in invesimant orops
Posinion Ronta income IToR® operaing 0258818 racognissad 2N 2 Siraigh ane nass ovor e orm o

Tease ineenuve cosis are recognised as anasse” and amrorassd 0ve HN SRS I e




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

The Group ctassifies 1s financiat assets in the lohowing measurement calegaories:

e 1103c o be measured subsequenty at tair vaiae (@ither througn oiler compreaensive Income or Ltnrough orofit or 0s8s): and
e hose 1o he measured al amortised cost

The ciassification depends on e entity’s business modei for managing the financia. agsets and 'he contracual lerms

ot :ne cash flows For asses measured a: fair vaiue. gains and iosses will either oe recorded in profit or foss or other
COMPIenensive income.

Trade and oher receivan.es are amoun's dua in he ordinary coarse of business. If coliection ts expecred In one year or (ess.
Mey arc glassilied as cdarren: asses, [ not they are presenied as non Current assels

Trade rogeivables are recognised mninally a: fair va.ue and subscqgaeniy are meoasurec at amorised cost using the effeciive
e opiective 10 colicat the conractua.

interest rethod. iess i paitment provision. The Crowp biolds the Trade receivanles wit
casgh tlows,

Tne CroLp's financia. assew are s.p oo (¢ e expecicd credit .oss mode..

Forirade reccivapies. the Group apniies 1ne simolified approacn permitied oy [FRS 9. witicn requires cxpecied afelime 'osses

10 ne recognisad from miia. recogniiion of ne receivab.ics

The expecied joss raiss are bascd on the paymen: prolies of lease income over a period of up 10 12 monihy pefore 31 March
2C25 or 1 Apn. 2022, respeciive.y. and “he corresponding nis:orica: credit losses exoerienced winin this oeriod. Tne historica!
loss ra:os are ad usted o refiec: current and forward-'oo<ing informarion on macroeconomic laciors affecting rhe dabuity

ot the ténan:s o so'we ne receivasie. Suon forward- ooxing informasion wolld Inc.Lde: changes In economic, rogi. alory.
lechnoogical and environmensa faciors (S.en as ind.stry outloo<. GRDP. employmen: and 0oducs), exiernal marg<e: indicaors:
and ienant base.

Based on He assessmeam and 1ac spocitic worg fat is underway around co.ecaon of aged arrears. a provision of
439000 (2G22: £239.000) nas ceenref ccied i ne ann.aa' resulia,

Trade receivab_gs are wreilen off waen there 18 no reasonaoc.e expocialion of recovery

Indica:ors 114 (aere is N0 reasonan.s exocciation of recovery inc'ude. among o1ners, e prooaoi ity of insc.vency or
significan: financia) ditficasies of the depior Impaired deosts are derocognised wacn tney are assesscd as wncolceinle

Casn and casn equivalen:s ina:.de cash in hand. cash neld oy awyers and lguldiry funds with a erm of no more (nan ree
MONAs that are readlly converioe (o a xnown amoun: of cash and which are sunea: o an insignilican: ris< of changes in vaiue
Resiricied cash represents amounis ne'd for specific commimments, lenan: deposits and retentdon money ho.d oy 'awyers in

re'ation (o delerred payments s.b ect (o acaevemen: of rerrain condisons, oiaer reteniions and cash segregaed o tund
repalr, mainienance and IMYIrovemen: worss 1o Orng he properies B o sausfaciory standards for the Growp and e 1enans.

Denvallye financla. ingir.ments, whica connrise inerest rale caps and swaps [or nedging p.rposes. are nitiacy recognisad
a: lair va. e ar acqaisition and are supseq.enty measared a tair vaiuc. oeing e cstimated amouni 1at the Grouwp wouid
receve or pay to so. or iranster Tne agreemen: at e period end date. laxing into accouni C.LITENT INICICR! fate expeclaions
and tne cLrren credit rating of e lender and 1S counerparias Tae iNsirumen: may oe an asse: or a laoilly Thc gain or 'oss
ateacn fair vaue remeasuremoen: daie is recognised in the Group's Consaddated Slaicment of Comprenensive Incone.

Deriva.dve tinancia, INsiramaon's are deracognised waien 1ne rnghis o raceive casn lLows from (e agreemean: nave oxored
ar aave peen ransferred. and the Croop nas iransferred soostaniiacy a.l ine risss and rewards of ownersnip. The difference
netweseh e carrying antoan: and considerazion recaived is recognised as a gain or Joss in the Group's Consondated
Siatemen: ol Comoprenensive Income.

The Gro.p wses vallaion lconniguaes tal are appropriate in e circunisiances and for wncn saflicien: daa is avaiab.e

10 PeAasLIe lair valws, Mmaxumising ne wse of re.gvan® ooservanie inpnis and minimising he .s¢ of anoossrvap.cinga s
significant o he fair va.ue measuromen, as d wio'o

Omner than derivative linanaa, meramenss whie: are not designatcd as nedging msurunen:s, the Crowp does no” rave any
assels he d for crading nar does it vo uniarly S.assily any finanaa. assews as pong at lair value throwga orofis or .ogs,

DNISNOH Y 0S8 SVLIALD
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

Tae Gro.o recognises a inancia. 1aeicy when o {irst oecones a PDarty (0 e Coniracied. rignis and oongaions 1IN ine Conrac:

A financia: danliides are iniday recognised at faic varse, minas (n ine case of a financia daoniiy Thai is not a: fair va ac
1Arougn oroit or Joss) rrangaciion cogts tnas are diregily anribaan.e o issuing (ne tinancial Jaoi iy Financia. dabi.ines are
suosequonlly measared al amoerised cos:, unless e Group op.ed o measare a labi 1y a: lalr va..e thro.gh prolit or Joss

Afinanct

lgpi iy v derccognised wien e ootigation wndec i1e dant ity is discharged. zanco & vr oxpires.

Trade and other payab.es are ¢ assified as current daoilides i paymentis due wiinin one yoar or less. [ now, they are presented
as non-current faoiities. Trade and orher payab.cs are recognised initany at inelr tair va we and sabseqg.onily measared a
amoriused cos; untl seined The fair vaiie of a non-ineres: pearing laciry isiis discounmed repaymen; amo.n: If the due
date of the dapilty is ‘ess (han one year, disco.anting is omitied.

A pank and otner pOTTOWINGs are thitia.ly recognised a: lairva..o .ess direct v atinnaian.c ransaciion cosis. Aler inina:
recogninon a.. han< and ouier porrowings are measared at amoriiscd cosl L8ing e allechive interes: memod Any
anriouiaoie ransaclion coss re.aling (o e i85 of i nang oorrowmngs are amoridsed throwgn ac Croup’s Saicmen: of
Comprehensive Tncome over e e of tnc deorinsiroment on a iraigai-dne pasis

Borrowings are removed from e conso idated staiemaniof financia posuion waen e obagation spacilied in no contrac:
iz discharged cance ed or expired Tne dillerence ociween e carrying amount ol a himancia, Jjaol ity t1at has boen
o

dnguaisned and ne considerazion pard 18 rocognised in profit or [0s5 as a inance cos:

Provisions arc recognsed wihen tic Growp ha
oravan.e tha: 1ne Crowp Wil oo redq..ired 1o s
oo igaion

1 @ Dresent o igathion [oga. or Consiriciive) as a ressl: of 4 pagt ovent s
nenal opoagalion and arelaole esiimate can ne made of e aroun: ol ine

TAC antount rocogmsaed as a Drovigion 18
D@.ANCE 308 (date [AUNg INLG ACCo LI

dimate of ne consideranon regaired 10 S0II0 00 Prosen: 0DAgALIon a’ T
3

¢ rne<s and Lncerainiies s.rroanding ne 90.agation.

Taxanon on fe profit or ogs tor e penod no: excemo: wnder JKRETT regu ations s compnsed ol curren: and deforred tax Tax
18 recogrused in 1 e Consoddaicd Siaenen: of Conmorecnsive [NCONIC eXaeD’ 10 11¢ @Xieni al 1l re ast o rems recognised
as a direo moveonen: In eqLuity in whicn case Dl rocognised as a direol movemenin cguy CLrrent iscEpecied lax
vayan. on any non-REIT axab.e income for (e oenod, wsing (ax ratos chacied or $Lostanive.y enaced 4. ae ga.ance sncal
dae and any ad .simen: 1o lax navas e inrosopeo of oTeviows voriods.

The current fax charge is calco.aed on orofiis ansing n e penod and inaccordance will egis.aion wnlo nas neen
enacied ar suosianidda f enacied a@ o 0d.ance gnee date

Deferred tax I3 orovided on jemporary diffcrences oclween 10€ CAITYING amoLTig 01 asscis and 1aoiiies tor tinancia.
reporing oorposes and e amounts Lsed Jor laxanon o.rooses Toc aroln: of dolerred tax tnat is orovided is based on
Bata RS ad ranner of rea.1saion or sg ot tae carrying amo.anr of assats and 1anuies. Lsing lax raies anacizd or
f.ogiantvey cnaced al tig 04.and

Tae Gro.os 00 e0IVes WACH MANaging caora. ars (o safayg .ard (0o Gro.o's anlily 10 Conin.e ag a ol Condern in ordar 1o
oravids retlrng for saarensy ders and to M aliam an 00imra CADBA ¥

of capra

Do owing:

D1LA. A%80I8 COMmprise

31 March 2023 A1 March <072

R — — - — __ .. FRwso o E000
cds ;fm* : 1:1 2 TI OrduEr}' sn;\ ;m@ r:—z:a‘rr?ed :arﬁmgs 661,909 575,547
Bans and .oan oarrowings 361,915 352
Total N 1 1-7-Y S



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

The DIreriors may Jse gearing (o eniance equity returng. Thae leve! of norrowing wil be on a prudaen: basis [y e asse! class
and wili seek o achieve o iow cost ol Linds, whnist maintamning the fexibiiny in ne andenying sec.urity regairements and the
siracture of the Group.

The Growp may. following a decision of tne Board. raise dep: from bangs and/or ine capiia marcels and the aggregate
aorrowings of thc Group wi! aiways e s.o’ecl 10 an aosolie maximam, ca'cuaed a: the lime of drawdown, of pe.ow 40% ol
“ne Grogs Asse! Value on a fuly invesied pasis.

Soae e e L T

Dividends are included in the financial szatemen:s in the year in which they are pawd

IS TR R NI I U

Renta. income from investmen: property is recognised on a straight-ne pasis over me erm of ongoing .cascs and 18 snown
gross of any UK income ax. Lease incenuves are spread even.y over ine ease enm. Losses Inclurred on graning retrospecive
ren: concessions arc charged 10 110 iNCcome siaemen: on fne date lat ine legal nga's o income are conceded (e immediate
recognition in £:1 rather 'han smooihed over the ife of the tease)

Ins.rance recharges and other similar receioss are recognised ander [FRS 15 Revenue from contracts wiln cusiomers’. and are
inciuded in ne! renza! and property income gross of 11e ralated cogis as the Direciors consider tne Group acts as grincipal in
chis respec

Finance Meome 15 recognised ag mierost. and s acer.od on casn and cash equivaent pa.ances hed oy ine Groud.

Finance cos's consis: of interes: and 011er costs | e Group incars in connection with oans< and other borrowimygs Banx
inores: and udnk cnarges are recognised on an accrda.s 9asis Borrowing ransacion Cosis are amroridsed using e effective

imerest rac.

A.. expenses. inc..ding Invesimaen: Advisory fees, are recognised in iae Consolidated S1atemen: ot Comprehensive Income on
4N AaCCr.a.s pasis.

Tae cosis of i88.INg or reacgLIring cquity MEIrUMenis {iner taan in a business comrbinaion) arc accownied for as a dedicnion
from eqully.
Cxceptiona. rems re.ate 1o amownis which do not norma.iy ccoeur i ing norra. ¢ourse of ousiness.

Excenllona, prolessiona. costs for two ma,or prolects nave been disc.osed separatcly. These re.atc 1o ¢osts assoclaed with e
offer for 2ie purchase of (ae endire snarc capital ol tne Company oy a suosidiary of CK Assa Hodings Lirited (CKA) and costs
assoctaiod witn a p.anned oond issue which was posiponed.

Tae costs. inc..ding direcly anrin.canle rransactons cosis, of purchasing e Company's own snares 0 oe acid in ireas.ary
are dedudiod fron equry and (ne ¢osts are snowin in e Consotidaced 5i ~en of Cnanges in Lguity. Consideraion
received. ne: of sransaction ¢os:s. for Tne resa.e of tnese shares is a:80 inc..ded In eqaity Wrilst the Comoany holds sihares in

reas.dary. e caculations for nei assel va..c and earnings per snare are ad usied 1o oxcude tese shares.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

For the Fol the

year ended wear ended

31 March 2023 31 Mach 2022

e i m el U 1O 11
Renta’ income [romnvesaren: property 53,531 51.538
Ren: straigh' ane ad: as'men:s 586 529
Lease incentive amortisation (1,022) (376!

nargean.e co

w5 recelved 1512 995

Re o . AR 995

Rental income 54,607 51.636

Less direct property expenses

Insurance and service cnarga ¢osis {1,512) (935)
Bad deot o _ _ o _ (429) 17
Direct probe?tyiexpensies - I ' ) ' ' ’ T T T e - ‘(f??&\‘
Netrental income ' - , ' 52666 50658

Recnargean.e coss received represent insrance and service anarge costs paid oy 1ne Grown and recharged 1o e
Anoroved Providers and are accounicd for wnder IFRS 13 Reven .o Tofr Contracs wity aasiomers’

Ag psr ine casc agreerents with e Group and Approved Providers, (he Aporoved Providaers are responsiole for e
lerren: of al presen: and fuiure rates. laxes and other mmoeosiiions payag e mresncc of the prooary As a res., no furier

dirent Dronerly exXnensey wers Inc.rred

5

For ithe Foy the

year ended vear ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

. R ~ £ 000 R 75"‘ 3130}

Direcio 194 190
Empoyers Nationa. Ins..rance Contriouiions 17 15

Total 7 7 o

e Direciors are remr wnerazed for tnetr services in accordanse wi

e Remoaneranon Po le VYOG g8 paramaoeiors witin
v DIrectors rem L nerainon may oo sel. e Remanera.don Podey s aoproved oy snarenoiders,

Disc.osares required oy e Comeanies AT rars’ rem L neraion. Incuding sa ares. snace Quiions. oension
conrio.iong and oongion entilemen: and 0 pecificd oy (ne Lisiing R . es o1 i1ae Financia. Conde: ALmnony ate incwded
on pages 941 10 3710 e Ren Lneranon Revor: and torm: par: of 1ncse Financia S:atemen:s

7]

T Groan nad o emo 0vees Auring LA year

21l oier san e Direciors




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

For the For the

year ended year ended

I March 2023 It March 2022
£000
Advisory fee 6,206
11

6,217 31372

Civicas [nvesimen: Managemen: Limited {*CIM™) is 'he appoinied Investmen: Adviser ol ine Company Jnder 1ne curreni
Invesimeni Managemen: Agreeman:, the Advisory Fee gshall o an amount ca.ciLaled in respect of each quarter. in sach

case based apon the Net Asset Va'ue most recenty announced o the marke: at the re.evant ime (as ad usted for issies of
repurchases of shares in tae genod bomween the dare of such annolncement and the date of the re.evant calculadion). on the
tolowing nasig

a) onh nal part of the Ne! Asse: Va_ce op o and inciading £250.000 000, an amount egua. w0 1% ol such par. of e Net Asset Value;
10 0.9% ol such

b} ontha:t partof Ine Ner Asser Value over £250,0CC.000 and Lp o and mclading £3C0.6C0.680. an amo.nt eq.a

oar ol ine Net Asset Val.e;

€) cnthatpar: of tne Net Asse: Valoe over F500.000.60C and up o and inciuding FLO0C.00C.0C0. an amount equd. 1o 08% of
such par: of 1ne Net Asse: VaiLe,
d) ontna: parof the Ne: Asse: Valuc over F1L.O00CCC0.800. an amoun: egua. (o 87% of such part ot the Net Asser Valie

The dapooiniment of e Investmoen: Adviser saal continue in force Lwniess and unil icrminazed py ciiner party giving 1o e
oUACT Nt egs than 12 months whien nolce s.cn notice not (o expire cariier tnan 36 May 2025,

For the Fot the
year ended year ended
31 March 2023 31 Match 2022
e . _. . _ I I I _ _£000 gung
lega. angd prfife;;o?lai fees T 1,250 1.459
Lxcenlional professionas cosis 1,816 -
Adminigrazion fees 1.044 1.03
Consi.ancy fees 143 135
Audin feps 441 340
ADOTIIVEG COSIS 48 195
Va.olaton fees 96 160
enositary fecs 71 71
Crans and donazions 65 23
Ins.ranece 97 81
Markeling 225 313
Regu.aiory fees 21 25
Sundry expenses 76 92
'I%Eilﬂ T T ST S ST S 757,357 7 3909

Aporive cosis reprosen: .ega. and orofessional fees incurred in re.ation 1o :he acquisrion ol invesimen: properties and

2

Uropossed snare 1ss.es [nal were considarsd put 8L nsagquenty aboriad

Goenera. and adminisrative expenses [or Jne current year contain excepiona’ orolessiona. cos:s of FLEI6.CAOC (20272 PN These
CO$IS DErAIN 10 WO sTategic pro,ocis ine Company 1as oeen cvasaung and contprise of £1294,000 (2022 £nil) associaed win
“he ofter for ine purchase ol 218 entire share captia. of the Company by a subsidiary of CK Asse: Ho dings lamied (CEAJ and

F522.000 (2022: TNi.} associaied with a planned pond 158.:0 which was oosiooned.

W08 SYLIALD
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

The Gro.p nas opiained the tolowing services from the Group's a.diiors and thelr associaes:

Forthe
year ended
3 March 2035

£°000
Fees payable to the Group’s auditors and their associates for auditing financial statements:
he Croups financia! staiomen'st 358
Total fees payable for audit services 358
Fees payable to the Group’s auditors and their associales for other services:
Audil rewated services - review of e ha.f year tinancla siatemenis 83
er 3CTvices’ =
Total fees payable to the Group's auditors and their associates 441
1 tncludes £64 000 2022 £18 000) cosLin relallun 10 The BICVIOUS VAT audll
2 This amount was [ecogmused within oxceptionat leaal and protessional €os1s (o the yoar ended 31 Mach 2002
Forthe
year ended
31 March 2023
L L e e — — — — — — — _fooo
Intcerest and dividends received on Jquldity fands 148
Ban< incres: racelved -
Total 148
For the
vear ended
31March 2023
—_ . = - — — — — - . — - . — — — — _Fouo
Bang caarges 8
Inicres? pald and vayan.c on nan< oorrowings and derivalives 12,151
AITOrIsation of .oan 1¢s.e coss 1,869
Cos:is of car v repaymen: of deo: 127
Loan sec.nty faes 36
Total 15,335
D.ring ¢ y2ar e Loyds Bans C.OCCO00 revo ving oredit facl 1y was renald Cosis ot cary repaymen: of dep

g and e wriic off of Tne remraming .narmorised .oan i8s e cos’s.

Dreag oo

Ag 3 UK REIT. ine Grouo IS exem ol Hrom Corparation ax on e profiis and gains from 118 0rooeriy INTyesinen: 0.sine
vrovided 1T meets cerain condinions as ser o.1n a2 JEREIT rag . auong For ae curren: yoar ended 31 Maren 2023

did not nave any non-g.adfying orofizs and according.y thore 1S N0 tax cnarge in iag year Ifiaiere werZ any non-g .
arohis and gams, cncse wolld oo s eal To corporation tax

Deterred tax 1as no! ocen recognised on iemoarary differenees reaiung 0 00 9ropery rena bosinaess Mo deferres

REEERST recogniszed in respect of e

guaiised residLa

For the

yeart ended
31 March 2h22
£.000

D
(i)

For the

yeat ended
31 Macceh 2022
1000

For the

year ended

51 Mateh 2022
£000

5}

8307

1533

wde

N

S8,
e GroLo
aafying

11ax assc:

2
CLITEN. YCar .0ssSer as it s nol andicionated caar sufiicien: resid.oa

arofiis wi pe gencrated in he f.oure Intncevens "na: Civizas oronery poritodao was 1o oc so.d ar va..a'ion. any gains

e

o axadon in ae JK Cenecra.y, disposa.s oy a REIT of asses ncld for
of @ JroorT < o tron JK corporanian dx Thae Direciors do no- oc!
w1oun e Cryras orooer:y porfo o mee e condiions tor a ar: of: ren’e
corporation lag on diggosa . According vt lae i atva. sdtion. the Dire
na corporalion lax daol ity wo . d anse on na

reaased on s .o disposas may oo s.ooo

1oL we

td. 0L81

aed as o ST Y:

O 04l afniy grope

DLI00%8




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

Fol awing the compleiion of the offer thera 1s a 'eve, of uncerainty inat e Gro.p will remain in the REIT rogime

For the For the
year ended yeay ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
_— . I . _ o _ _ _ £000 _ foan
Corporaiien 1ax charge for e year -

Total | '

The tax coarge for e vear s less Than the sltandard raie of corporation tax in tne UK of 19%, The differences are exp.ained below.

For the For the

year ended year ended
31 March 2023 31 Maich 2022
. [ R — L. —— R L S LU
Group o
Profi: oelore 1axation _ 25,472 14,754
JE corporation tax raze 19% 19%
Thoegretica. ax at UK corporation ax rat 4,840 8503
Ftlec:s of:
Change in va..e of eXem ol invesimern: DIoperias (502) (2.331)
Excn p: REIT 1ncorme (6.019) {5.598)
Amoanis no: dedaclipnee tor tax purposes 1,081 {730)
600 636

Jratilised residaa. curren: vear ax osses
- - —_ _y R — IR — -

'!T!Jzal B

A deforred tax agset of £2877.000 (2022: C1268.000). cawcu.acd using the forncoming tax rate of 25%. has no! peen ragognised in
respect of tc unuiilsed residua curren: year .osses as il is not anticipated nat sullicien: resid.aa. profiis wi'. pe generaicd n
e futire.

The standard raie of corporation 1ax s culrenty 19%. The standard rate of cornoraiion tax increased 10 25% with etfect from

I Aprit 2023,

REIT exempt incone inchudes property renta. income 11a: is exen pt from UK Corporation Tax in accordance with Par: 12 ol
Corporation Tax Ac: 2010,

Farnings per saare ('TPS™ ameunts arc ca.culated by dividing profit for ine year atirin.aab.e o Ordmary cguliy norders of ihe
Company oy ine weighted average number of Ordinary snares in issac daring e year.

The ca culation of oasic and di. .ed earnings per share i pased on the fo Jowing:

For the ror the

year ended year ended

31 March 2043 31 March 2022

e el _ . o o o __ o __ _ _f""’”“,,,,,ﬂr',““
Calculation of earnings per share

Nel grofir atirineiane (o Crdinary snarenaders (£C00) 25.472 44 754

Wejgnied average nuirper of Ordinary snares (exo..ding shares newd in ireag.ary) 608,552,681 518797947

4.18p 7230
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

e
year ended year endéd
Al March 2023 31 March 2022
L — . ol e i — __ Eoo 000
Dividend of 13875p for tne 3 nmon:ns o 3] M.arc 1(09/
(135030 3 montns wo 31 Maren 2C21) 8.474 £4303
Dividend o! 1.4250p tor the 3 months 1o 30 Juns 20272
{1.38751 3 mon:s 1o 36 june 2821 8,703 8537
Dividend of 1.4250p for the 3ronias 1o 30 Senamber 2072
{(1.38750 3 monins 10 30 Septemrocr 2021 8,641 8555
Dividend of 142580p for “ie 3 monins 0 31 Decemner 2
(1‘38?5 0 3ronins (o 3] December /FZI) 8.64]1 98
Total 34,459 593

On 9 May 2023, 1 Company announced a dwidend of 1425 pence per share in respect of tne pertod 1January 2025 1o 31 March
2073 wraning FRAA100C. The dividend payman’ was made on § {.ne 2028 (o sharenowders on (e ragisier as at 1% May 2023 T
hnanecia. s:atoments 4o not rel eo: his dividend The dividend was paifd ag a REIT propery incons disinousion CPID

i B ) 7F0[ the Fot the

year ended year ended

3t March 223 31 March 2022

o o L L o L oo _ Loon £onn
RBa.ance at ocdinning of year 968 756 915

Prooorny acg Jons 543 33489

Inproverren:s (o myvesimen: prooeriies 4,944 5.818

Leascoincenuyves and ren: siraign: ine ad .snens recognised 1.264 1.514

Change in fair Ve 2,640 122849

Val.e dd‘]!b(}d 53 TS m wErt y VA LTS 978,147 908,758

Less ease oenil/e assets and ren: sirang al dne assers (24 783) (23519

Total 953364 945,237

INprovemenis 1o inyeaimen: properiies ing .des caora. expendiiure inaurred of FI28.000 (2022 £12.000) in respect of camatc
Clange Meainves

s Limiied wnicn ned
va Properiias Tumized s
poth direciars of Ing
Fuona (oein ar

Do rmg ne pr'wl:) Lgyaar, e Croan acg.ared a oroperty no.ding corpany tranm Her.eva Proper:
A% Ang FABILESS These are inc. .ded wiliin Pr’mﬂr'y ASdLisinons in the nols anove, Hero
1L 08K 11ar, of Speoaas H(‘d, Acare Gosratons Limiced CSHO . Andrew Dawoor and Tom Pridmor
cgimren: Advigsrn are 1499% gaaceno ders i SHO Thaey are not direciors of SHO. and ave na 0oe
ousness. SHC does not mest e delinen of a ro.a e

parly Whaer IAS 24

In accordances wily TAS 40 Invesimen: Fropersy
an aceradi SrMd. 7a. .0r wWiin recagnised and re evant orois
and cacgory of 118 INVEsITen OToncrty acing va.

«wod atfalrva .o ov LI
crienee ol g Qaation
Led. 10wWoveT 112 Ja Lalions are ,':1r‘rd:sz responsiony of e Direaiars

JLL va wod the Civiias Sogia. TTowsing PLC groper.y
T DIDOCIIGS WIIO.L TR oenall ol any corporats

Dorioan on ne nasis of cachyindivid.a o
wWrapnoer 41 1978147000 as a” 31 Marcn 207

o
731

iLL nas provided 7a. .a1on soric

o e Comrgany Wity regards e orooar
ra. LU0 SSEACES On e acdustnon af mvesimen: aropery oy ac Company duinng 1ae year Tna Direciors nave ens .red
2t JLL nas aporoonai: procedurcs in o ars toons L s witn rrces oranded fo g
Comropany. Inre alon o ac year ended 31 Mara: 26 0 jlls ot

nan 5k and is acretors winima. A 071 1C 819 Nnaionas on
va_.a.1ons rotail afler seven yoars

fes donng tae year KL as orovrded additiona.

Tyers are nondependence conf i

ayao o oy e Comoany
N D.A00 W

maoome was

drione

CJLL nag g rotalon Ho.

ats




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

pdlalive year

With (ne exception ol ne acquisition detalled In note 15 G, all corporata acqu.iginens during the year and rhe
have peen freated 48 amse” DUIcaases FITher han basiness comoinations because folowing review of tae [FRS 3 conceniration
st ey are considercd o be acqguisitions of properties rather than basinesses (note 3.3).

The fo_owing raole providesg the fair vaide measaremen: hierarcny for investment oroperty:

Quoted prices (n Signiticant signibicant

actuve markels observable uucbservable
Total (Level ) inputs (Level 20 inputs (Level 3)
e R o L o e . EBO0 €000 _ _Egon _ toov
Investment properties measured at fair value:
31 Marcn 2023 953,364 - - 953,364
945.237 - 945.237

There have been no ransfers berween Level 1and Level 2 during any of 1ne years, nor rave thare been any ransiers neiween
Level 2 and Leve. 3 during any of the years.

The va Lanons nave been arepared in accordance with tae RICS Va..aton - Protessionai S:andards (incorporaing ne
Incrnational Valldauon Standards) oy JLL, one of 1ie leading professiona. {irms engaged in the socta. 1ousing secorn

As noted previossly al of ine Group's investmen:s are repored as Leve! 3in accordance wiid [FRS 13 where inputs are no!
pased on obsarvab.e marke: data and the valdc is nased upon advice from relevan: know.edgean.c axpers.

In this instance, tac delermination of the fair va.ae of invesimen: property req.aires an examina:ion of the soccific merr.s of

2acn roperly natare in turn considered perdneni o e vallation

These inc.de:

i) heregllated socia housing secior and demand for the {aciities offcrad oy eacn S5H propery owned by 1ne Growm:

ii) "me paricular stracturc of ;e Grodp's transactions waere vendors. at their own expense. mece: e maiority of ine
refuroisimen: coss of cach oropery and Cortain NLroase costs,

iii) dolaied tinancia. ana.ysis wim discoun: rates supporung "he carrying value of eac! Droperty:

iv) a 1. repairing and ms.aring .ease with ann.ia. indexazion nased on CPT or CPL+1%,

The [0l owing descripiions and detiniions re:ating io va..ation icchnigues and xey unobservao.e Inp.s nrade in determining
lair va.Les are as fo. owy

Fair va',e 18 defincd as the orice that woo d oe recewved to se an asse: or paid 1o ransfer a ably nan order.y ransacion

0CTWOEN Mar<er Dartcinants a: e measuremen: date (e an oxi: pricel

The vacation menodo.ogy W«sed oy the va'uers fowows 1nc income approact This approacn considers (o renia. mcome
carrent y payat.g 1he nex: Lodat duwg on taal income on review, ine i<eahood of a coninddion of (4! renta. income - wit
grow:n in accordance wiin 'ne cases  over e remaining ierms; and qen a .ong-ierm reversion wnich considers the nkety

abiliry of the properiies [ CoNun .o 1O generae 1ons tNrowgn suppored nousing occnpation. as disine: trom a reversion .o

VACATN. pOYSEeSSIoN VA Je.

Risks are involved in 0oin assessing the va.ue ol 2e indexed renta. income over ne remaining iernns of :he cases and in a.so
oredicling thar income wi conlinae ogeyond e end of (nc exisling eascs. 7 1is s 4 oa.anced judgment whiea can Droperny

peo refleciad in e extt yied app ied (o e final year's income and in the overa, 1o0LIn 1o a gurchaser

APOrowriaie 1axallon ca.cw.ations are adopied for cvery property nasad on 18 va.ue and on e assurpuon of the sa.e of
e Oroporty asses direcly as apposed [0 saares of a subsidiary company no.ding the prooerty and have considered ine

individua, characerisiics of 'ne properies

There are two main Wnooservan'c inpLis a deerring 1ne lair va:ue of the Grogn's invesimaeni 0rencriy:

1) Tacrae of 2% ger annum nas besen used tor CPLover ine term of (ne suoeet properiies easesin . ine witn e Banz of
Engtand's ong-ern: inf.ation arge's for CPL I sno.ld 00 noied nat alleases nenefit from eitver CPLor CPH indexation

i) Tne discoun:raic apo ied .0 e ren:a. Lows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

Koy faciors m deiermuning the disco.nt rates applied nc .de the regu.aied soma nolsing secior and demand for cacn 55H
rroveny owned oy the Grouo, costs of acgaisinon and retuarpisrent of ¢acnh property. Jnc anticipated tuare wnderying casn
flows for eacn propery. benoamar<ing of cach wnderying ren: for cacn propery (passing rent, impact of cnmare change, and
the fact thal all of 1ae properies witnin tne Croap's porifo o have 1ne oenctit of {200 repairing and msaring .cases entercd inmo
oy an Aporoved Provider

Ag a:tne pa.ance sheei dale. ine .ease long: as within the Growp's poridolio ranged from an eflective 14 years 10 35 years (207
15 years o 35 years) with a weignied average wnoxpired lease term of 215 years (2622 2210 The greater ithe .engin ot tne leas
inen. a.l oiner merics neing eqaa . the greater 1ne vaiae of (ne otonerty.

2
&

RN AT o G . i e - . . 3
As set oul witnin significan: accouning cstimaes a: 31 apove. The Group's proparty invesiren: va.aauon is open o innarent

uncerrainiies in ine inputs thai determine fair va.u e Managemwen: has re-considered (e sensitivity ranges and widenad 1aom
for The current year as 4 res. s of macroecononic Lneeranty As a res.ln ae foilowlng sensuwily ana.ysis aas peen prepared.

Tae average disaoun: rase aged oy e va Lerin e Grouo's prooerty Pordo o Va Lation s 5.38%
discoan rates adonied 1n e valLaiion. e vaers have considercd mar<e: standard and antioipated retarns o sl a
pencnmark for 1ne pordo o as a whowo They nave then congidered the vano.s Charadiensias of 1ae indradua. propernies in
order o ad L8t ose raes for eaca oropery. JLL will koep yields and erefore discount rates, undar rego.ar revisw

2022 5 5% In sering tne

The range of discoont rates wsed oy The val.erin the Grooo's prooerty Portfolo VaLation is from 4 6% (o 1L7Y (2022 4.5%

Lo 15%) In assessing e range of discounis, (e va.uer conside 101248y net nl yicid wnicn wou d oe sniagat by (ae
invesimen: n:ar<et and bul.ds additiona, discoun:s o refiec: added rig< into tae disco.nt rate of 1ne lerm and, 1IN some Cases.
the discoun: rate for the reversion. For examu.e. wiheres arger reniat growl:n is alowed daring 10« .case, an addiiona. discoun:
s ULt into (he revarsion pecanse of e greater ris< of a fa. v Jhe ren! ai e ond of e casc

simiiary addiiiona. disco.,
considered where restden:

are considersd waele Droperios are In ne process of nemg re-purposed and oremisnes are
a. ars assces are fundaed by nagd-l0-0ack eases Wil care providers

T2 @0.C 00 OW . LSITa0S

Y COENge (0 LNe
Vel w0100 Al al1ons are cnangod:

ot invesimen: prover:iesif tne discoan: rate and CPI Lsed lor ne porifolo

0% +1u%n
discount 1atc discount tate +HI 5% 0 CP1 0 5% 1n Pl
£000 £000 £ 000 £000

Incré&sei(decrease) in the [FRS fair value of Exvééanéht\})répertiés at;

51 Maren 2023 71929 (62,507) 56,676 (52,583)
S 73335 rRADZ0) 58S {53.815)

31 Match 2023 GfMarch 2042

£U00
qu Lisition of «.osihia ry ;owp;més 7nc:,;§mg I;GTC‘:;‘FA:)});] oan! -
ACgLasion cosy -
Transter [0 invesimon: broperiy =
3a e nrocoeds -
Total B N - h - - o =

D.nng

os nperated oy CPICam Limrec
Toon g acdg astaon of e companies for T15.559.030 o L8 TANRACION TOSIS. M€ 90eries were ransferrad min ocr gro.p
comoanies and e comoany acd.ired. a.omg vi1 s assacraiad ooerations. was soud 1o Rnvive Corundam Bidoo limied tor
5000 Cnviva Corundor Bideo Limted 15 a s.osidhary o) Snecia st Hes acare ions Limed C5HOT Andrew Dawoer
and Tom Pridrrore (oon directors of “ e IMyesime Loare 14 997 1o dorg in SHO Tracy are not dircaiors ot SHO
and 1avs no operationa 0.9 3G dass nol mesl Lac dehincion of a reaed oary ander IAs 24




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

Amounts félliir:gidaei in less than one}ear

Trade recelvan'es

Less provision for impairmen: of rade recervaoles
Accraed ihcome

Prepaymen:s and other receivaoles
Total -

31 March 2023
£°000

6.676
{459)

3.313

1,730

n2e0

31 March 2022

4,960
(239)
1982
3152

_1?..865

Preoaymen:s and othor receivasie amounts inc..de prepaid lcga! and professional fees of £Ni (2622 £34.00C) that nave peen
incurred in connecion with acguisinons yve: 1o be compiered and £286.000 (2022: ©1.046.000) in respea: ol ongoing worss on

e property poriolio.

Accraed income re.aes main y "o rent acerued torine yoar cul no. yetdemanded

Amounts falling due after more than one year
Sraignt ine ad: .simrents
Leasc incenives

Total

Tne aged ana.ysis of rrade receivablos was as follows:

Debtors past due - S o
CuLrrent

< 30 days

30-50 days

> 60 days o o

Debtors past due
Less provision for impairmen:

The Directors consider e lair value of receivanies eqaals eir carrying amaoun:
Clner categories within lrade and o:a0r receivaples do noincoade impaired assats.
Tac provigion for i pairmon: rovemen:t was as o ows

Balance at beginning of vear

fmpairmen: grovision madse
Amoun: recovered

AMOLNIS wWrition oft

Balance atend ofyear

31 March 2023

£'600

2,639
22,144

31 March 2023
f;'uﬁf]

2518
862
275

3,021

6,676

@9
6.217

For the
vear ended
31 March 2023
£ nno

239

306
(67)

(19)
s

31 March 2022
£060

Il March 2022
_ £noo

1,777
355
105

For the
yeat ended
3l March 2022

L0

2553
1G9
125]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

31 March 2023 21 March 2nzé
o gopo  wono

d oy soiciiors ) ' ' ' ) . 64 376
Liquidizy funds 15,636 10.489

Casan

Casn neld at pans - 7 B - 16,939 I8IG
Unrestricted cash and cash eqg.iivalents 32,639 48975

icted casn B _ i ) ) o z_sg o 4&62_
S 35588 53357

Licjuidity tands refor to money g.aced in money marse? tunds, 7iese are algny guid funds wilit accessioliy wiiam 24 hours
and s.oject o insignificant ns< of cnangss inva..a

Casn heod oy spld

ors 15 money held o escrow Ior cxpenses expoctad to De incdrred INTe.atiion 1o inyasInant prooerics
pending comniedon These (Lnds are avaiane immrediaely on demand.

Rosaicied casn represenis amouanis held far speciiic cormiimoenis, ienan: deposes and retention money ac.d in rc.ation
o daferred payrmren:s swojec: o achievemen: of ceriain condinlons. omer rewcniions and casa segregated 0 1und rapair,
MAINeNance and iMproven en. wor<s 1o oring e oroperies .0 10 salstaciory standards for (e Group and (1@ tenan's

T T .';‘l M-l:h ;1322
31 March 2023 (Restated™y
R N 4 LIS L
Delerred incorre 761 830
Acquisiion coss aceracd 600 Blsles
Finance cosis 3.688
Dividend winao.ding tax payan.e 940
Acaraas and omner crediors 773
Tenand degosys 2538

Total 7 o 7 - 9,300

isrion cosis acor.ed a soanc..de mones rezaincd a:
2000

Acqgu

(2027

“am pomns of acq Lishion (o ne pald ai a .aer dae oA, ing I383.000

* Comparathives have been restated 1o corect 1Ne analysis ol £1 836 000 of tenant deposits which had previonsly been included 1n acagquisiiion costs acorued

-1o.ding suosidharies The
garss of corman suosidiarics and any incerncediary 1o ding comoanies of ose suosidianes.
Any agsociaicd feeg n arranyging e odang 00Orrowings wnanorised das a. e year aned are offss agams: anounis drawn on
e facl 17108 a8 20w N e tao.e 08 oW’

Ban«< norrowings are sccured oy caarges over mdivid La. invesiren: proparies ae.d oy cerain asse
oan<s a.50 no d cnarges ovaer

For the Yor the

year ended vear ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

- . A _ - _ ._ __ [FDuo - rnnb

Ban< oorrowings drawn a slar ot year 357,050 357650
Ban< oorrowings advanaaot 70.875

Ban< oorrowings repaid (60,000}

an< Jrings drawin a cn cf‘,ﬁzar ) 7 T . W o T _36;92‘5 T ;

of year R S s000) 9%

rred (3.544)

i »an< .oan 665 -
1,869

T e
73671,99

Ban< oorrovrings dr
Jnamoris

Less, oan s

Add Toan lzs.¢
Add: oanss
UJnamrorase

ATenE of year




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

Loan Balanee”  Loan Balauwat Leau Frincipal  Loan Pnncapal
3larch 2023 31March 2022 31 March 2025 31 March 2022

£000 £'uun £000 £ 000
Malurity of bank borrowings - - S
Repayable within 1 year - - -
Repayab.c beiwsen 1.0 2 years 59,600 158.746 60,000 160.060
Repavab.e oeiween 2 1o 5 yoars 302,315 59,365 307,925 60.000
Repayab.e after 5 years - 133,939 - 137.030
Total - T o T 381915 352030 367.825  357.03C

1 Lzan balance net ol unamorused costs

Tae Group has been party o ihe following .oan tacility agreemen:s in ‘he year

Loan Pnncipal

N Faciliry - £oon Expuy Date __ Interestrate
Summary of Borrowings - h ' -
Scotiisn Widows Limited 10-year faci ity Term .oan 52.500 02172027 2.8975% fixed
I oyds Bank p& Revolving credi: laciny - SONTA + 1.87%-
Deutsche Bang< AG Loan Noles 7G.875  (3/02/26028 5.69% fixed
IISBC Bank n.¢ Revolving crodit faciaty 10G.000 281172025 SOWTA 1 2.15%-
Nazional Wesuninsier Bank P'o 5-year faciliiy Revolving credit faciity H5.000 14/08/2024 SONIA + Z,00%+
M&G [nvesimen: Managemen: Limiied 7-year facuity  Term: .oan 84530  24/00/20z8 _ 3137% tixed

367.925

Borrowings are secured on investment properties to the value:

31March 2023 31 March 2022

o ) L o e o o . Ejﬂ . 7£UU[J
Scotusn Widows Limied 10-vear laciiiy orincipa. £52,3G0.000 173,510 173777
Dev:scne Bang AG Laan Notes principa, 770875000 168.610 -
HARC Ban< ple faciiy arincipal £100.C00.0CC 231116 222745
Natona. Westrinsier Bans Ple 5-year faciity prnincipa. £50.0C00.00C 137,827 135330
M&C Invesiment Managoment Limited 7-year facilly principa. £84.550.000 230.279 230,187
AL3] Maren 2023 the Growp 1s Incompliance with all covenans.

The covenan:s in p ace Lnder fe ive agreemen:s are summarised in fne tapic oo ow

S - T I Histoncal and projected tnterest cover -]:U_dll [0- Value Rano
Loan: T - 7 7 h
Seomisn Widows Limiied 10-year factizy AT .cast 325% Must net excecd 40%
Deviscae Ban< AC Loan MNozes At _casi 1734 Mus: not exceed 50%
HSRBC Ban< ole faciity At eas: 72507 Must no exceed 50%
Nanona. Wesiminsier Ban« Pie S-year facility At .east 25C% M.si no: exceed 50%

Al _cas: 23C% M..st no: exceed 557

M&G [nvesimen: Managemen: Luriiod 7-year tacinty

1lnlerest rate caps have been purchased 1o cap interest cosis on this facihiy as per details in netes 210 and 3103
A Fixed Ly way ol dnonteres: raie swap as delailed in note 210

U
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

The Group has encared imnto an interest rate swap wiin NatWes: Marges in order to n‘mga'e e risd of changes in Ineres: rates
on i's oan with Kalona Wesimins:er Ban< Pic under waich £80 miton s carrently drawn. 71 swap nas a notiona va..e of
F30.000.000 and fixes interes: a! 2.60% (inci.ding ne 3% margin on e oank loan)

Durng e year mae Gro. o has enared into tiroe new inieres: rate cap arrangements for a total cost of £8.841.000:
An interes: raie cap that capped tne £50.00C.000 Lioyds Bang ple laciliny at 392% (including he 1L87% margin on ine .oan

faciiy) lor the period from 15 Scoiemper 2022 (0 20 Feoraary 3. This arrangemen: was sold wpon the repayment of the _oan
witn oroceeds of £17.0C0

An intercs: ratc cap ha: capped e SONIA interest rate on the D1G0.30G.000 HERC Bang pic taci ity &t 2 60% for e period from.
21 Scoemper 2027 w0 17 Aprl 2023

AN inleres: rate cap trangacion o minga:te e rigg ot the SONIA ineres. rawe excecding 2.43% pa.on ne orincipa. of
FICO.0C0.000 HSBC Ban< p.e facliy lor the penod {rom 17 Aori 2025 1o 28 November 2025 This insirumen: covers Tne ramaining
cerm of thae revo.wving credi facl'ly witn [ISBC Bang p ¢ and ils oxiension (o Novenroar 2025

Forthe For the

year ended vear ended

J1March 2023 3l March 2022

. . . - — e [ _ _ _ - - £000_ . Ebeo

Interest rate derivative assets/(liabilities)

A siart of year 2,131 514)
In.eres rae cap oromiams paid 8.841
Disposa procceds a7
Realised oss on dispasal (187}
Change 1n falr va ue during e year (2,639)

étenlofyggr . . ) o . . _ B

T la0.e 08 0W STI0WS 10 HAll Va8 IMeasuIomen: eraraay for mieres: derrvanves

QUOTE pHCesin signuficant Sigmficant
ACTive BMarkels Observable  Unobservabile
(Level ) Inputs (Level 2) Inputs (hevel 3)
_. - . - . - J— _ £o0u - Eobw LU
31 Mar AT e - 8.128 -
31 March 2022 - 2131 -
of Crowp's inercs: rae denvairies g recordad in e Crowo S:atemen: of Financys. Posinon and is deermined

YT COLIOIDArIICS TAe coLntarnaries sse a naroer of ass.moiions in deiermining e falr va. ses,
cs urations over future intcrest ra and too.re casa tows Lsing ooscrq/ao.c yied curvos. Thae falrs
aresen: 7a .e 2! e difference ootween (ne Lash Lows farqri ced oy Ac cortraced rate and e va Lannn rae Thls va .anon

ceonniy.€ fa s witain Leve. 2 of tae fair valie nierarcay as debinad oy [FR3 13

inciiding
a...e re_nrﬂscnfs e nes

Thero qave neen no ransiers neoween Leve and Leve. 2 donng any of 110 genods nor aave T1ero peen any ransfors
oorween Tave 2 and Leve 3 during any of Le oerads

Snare capnila. redresen s Tz nomina va..e of consideration recewved oy ne Company for fne iss.e of Crdinar, saares

Forthe Lot rhe veat
yeat tnded ended
31 March 2023 31 Match 2022
. - . _ _ . . Lllﬂ(i LLB(JU
Share capital
Al seginnung and & :[ Jear 6.225 5225
Number of shares issued and fully paid Ordinary shares of £0.01 each
acginning .md oid ol yoa 622,461,380




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

022

During e year. 7ie Company puroiased 6050.000 Ordinary shares (o0 be held in reasury at a cos: of £4 51006 131 Marcn
18.020.000 O1dindry shares for £4.459,000).

During :ae previols year, 1ne Company reissuoed 565.0C0 Ordinary shares heid n freasury tor £847.000. The cost of purchasing
1nese shares (nio reasury of £484.00C nas been crediied o the capital reduciion reserve wiin (ne gain credized o e Share
premium roserve

AL 3 Marca 2623, tne Commpany ne.d 16.075.00C (31 Marcn 2022; 16.025.000) Ordinary shares in ireasury. Thc shares wil. continue
10 oe aeld in reasury unii! elther reisswed or cance.led.

AT 31 March 2023, tne number of Ordinary shares used to ca.cuilate tne net asset va..e por share s 606.386.38C (31 Marcn 2022
512.436.380) which excludes the snares neld in rreasury.

The share tremion reserve represants e amoants sopscrioed for Ordinary saare capital In cxeess of nomina: valine 0ss
aggociated 1ssue costs of e subseripions.

ror the For the

year ended yeat ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

o ) - o oo _soan

Al peginming of year 292,626 292453

Fremiumr arising on snares reisgued [rom (reasury — 183
At end of year 292,626

For movelmesnis in e vedr olease sec dotains in note 22.0

Tae canra’ reduction reserve is a distipLianie reserve 1o WAIea fic vaLce of the canaoe.led snare premium was rransferred.
Pursaan: 0 Arnc.e 3 of Tne Companies (Reduction of Share Capitall Order 2068, the ba.ance ne d in e capitas reduciion
reserve 15 1o ne treaied for tac purposes of Par: 23 of the Companies Act 2006 as a reaased protic and fherefore avalab.e for
disiripuion in accordanae wita secion 83¢ ol e Conpanices Act Tne Company as wsed 1S reserve [or e cosis of nuying
back sharsg (0 pe neld Inreas.ary and paymen! ol dividends : ' oy

- Ferdiz For the
yeagendedd. - yeat ended
Marcht2023K. 31 March 2022

[ o o o oo . _E£0oa
A: peginning of year 331,110
Sharcs reissued from reasury 184

Spnares boughi pack into reasury 19.25%

At end of yéar

Fornoverents in (e year. o €ase see delalls in noe 2206

For the For the

year ended year endoed
21 Maich 2025 A Match 2022
- - I oL - - e EOOG B0
Al beginning of year 54,331 43R/7G
Proli: tor “ae year 25,472 41,754
Draidends paid S o o - (34.459) (34.093)
Atend of year 45344 54330
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

Bagic NAV per sharc is caleulated oy dividing ne assols in e Consoddated Staiemen: of Finanoia. Posiion avribuiable o
Ordinary cauily noiders of the garen: oy (e namoer of Ordinary shares outstanding at tne end of tne vear

el assol va wes nave peon calca.aled as folows

Ne: asseis (ECC0)
Numper of Ordinary snares in iss.c az end of year
Numper of Ordinary shares held in rcasury

NAV per share - basic and diluted

Albeginning of year
Cash flows from financing activities
Loan 1ss.e ¢osts paid

Iterest rate dernwvauve nrami.ms oaid

Procecds from (he sa'= of inleres: rate denvasives

Rang borrowings advanaed

Bans< oorrowings repaid

Non cash movements

Loan tgs.e tees accr .ed

Amaoriisazion of oaniss.e cos:s

UJnamorused .oan arrangemen: fees wriiien ofl
Caange in lair va.wo of in:eres: rac derjvalves

At end of year

A neginning of year
Cash flows from financing activities
Loan draw down

Non cash movements

Loan igsoe fecs payao.e

Arorisation of .oan iss.c cogs

Change in lair va..o of Merosirate :ici'/a:we ;
At end of yiear' - ) ) )

ﬁumﬁr of Ordinary shares excluding treasuT'y sh;rc; belEP;ijBE;an

Inerest rate
dernvanves
£0U0

T @1

(8.841)
17

2,826

Interest fate
denvauves
£onn

3414

~ens

31 March 2023

£ 000

332170

0BG

661,909 575547
622461380 G724R1380
{16,075.000) (10.025400)
606386380 612136360

Masiep oo
o T rorthe
bouowbx;\\?:l; 31 r‘ile:l‘::f\ngfg
£0on £000

" 352050 349,919
(3.148) (3,148)

- (8.841)

- 17

70875 70,875
(60,000)  (60.000)
(396) (396)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

“'he Group is party 1o a numoer of opcraung leasss on lis invesumaen: properiies with Approved Providers. The Future nunimam
‘ease paymen:s wnder non-cance.labic conraiing leases receivan.e by the Groop are as olows:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
E000 £000

Amounts receivable

< 1vyear 57,262 53,821
1-2 years 57.352 53.879
2-3 years 172,536 161,940
= 5 years 958,286 928 210

Atend of year _ 1245436 1197.850

Leases are direct- et agreemen's with Aporoved Providers tor a term: perwecen 26-40 years with indexead 'inged annual ren:
reviews All current .eases are fu . repairing and insunng .cases: ihe (enants are terclfore obiiged o repair. mainiain and
renaw the proporias oac< o e Orlgina. condgilions.

Tne folowing tan.e gives detans of perconlage ot annual renta income per Approved Provider:

31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
% %

Auciland Hoame $o..iions and_GL;'.ités IIOL;;ng ' ' 249 214
Fa.con Maousing Associanon CIC 19.1 8.7
Respoke Soproruve Tenancies 12.5 12.5
Inclusion Housing CIC 9.4 9.3
Wesimoreiand Supporied [Howsing Limiad 5.6 59
Tncire e Housing Lincizod 5.2 59
Trinity To.:sing Assoaadion Limited 52 51
Pivotal Housing Assaciation 4.0 3.8
Carysa.is SLppored Assoclation Limiied 37 35
Now Wa x Proper:y Managoenen: CIC 2.7 28
Harpour Liga: Assisied Living CIC 2.3 3.5
My Space Houasing 5o.auons 13 13
Elysiam Heathcare Luritcd 1.1 -
IKE Suppored Housing Limited 1.0 11
Hi.dalc [Iousing Assocation Limiie 1.0 1.0
Windr.sh Alllance JK CIC 0.7 07
Li, v Roge Supporied Housing 02 c1
B'ic Square Residentia. Lid 0.1 cl1
Total - T S T - 1000 1000

Adckand Home So.wions and Qualitias Housing are poty memoers of 1ne Social Howsing Famly CIC and subject 1o commaon

contra: Thcir annda rent figures nave (nerefore been aggragated in ne tanie aoove 708 percentage relating to Auc<iand

Home Soations and Quainas Housing was 16.5% and 8 4% (7022 16.3% and 8 1%) respeciively. The annual rent at 31 Marca 2623 lor
Lodand Home So.utions and Qualitas Mousing was £9.268.000 and £4.730.003 (26722 F8.579.00C and [4.334.000) regneciively.

e Crowp 18 .50 PAry 10 a NLwner of ooerating .cases on s ong caschod sroseriies The grownd rent paymen
comnritmentg wnder thesc operaing .cases are ned1gio ¢ s0 1 [Llure MININTLT ease paymenis Jnder nese ‘eases Nave noi
peen discoscd in Diese Hinanacial siaemen's.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

As at 31 Marcn 2023, there (s ne ulimate contro.ing party.

A st of a . subsidiary andertacings inclading (he address of tie registered office is detaled i noie §0 @ e Company
accounts on pages 115 1o 118,

oo o o e

The Diraclors are remuneraiaed [or ineir services 1 5320 ralc ag e Dircelars sna_. from dme o
remueneratiaon and benetits in <ind of the Direciors of -
ne year ended 31 Margn 2023 payable ot of

Hme derernung e aggregate
¢ Company (in cacn case soe.y in neir capacily as suen) in resoec: of
e asse:s of :he Comoany is not cxnecied o oxceed £25C.000.

Fees of 1134000 (2022 F190.0C0) were incarred and paid (o (he Dircclors

Ag ar 31 Maren 2023 and 202

e Direcrors 1ed the {00 owing nJamrber of saares:

3 March 2023 31 Maich 2022

Ordinaty Ordinary
- . - o . . . [ . _shares shares
Director
Micnar Wrone. Chairman 200.000 120.598
Alasiaur Moss Director 11,766 11766
Atson [Hadden Direcor 31,937
Caroane Gulliver Audi and Management Lngagomen: Comminee Chair 58.832 58.832
Poter Baxier Direcor 82,065 82.065

The Invesimen: Adviser nas reviewed g remuneration po icies and nroced.ares 1o ens.dre incenives are aagned wit
requirements of AIFMD, [T includes meas.aras 10 avold confiicis of infcres: s.eh as oroviding swaff wiin a fixed mon::
sa.ary and deermining discrelonary paymenie by (ho oerformance 2 the Invesincen. Adviser as a wna.c and not an<ed
o any one ATF it parino..arn The nvesimen: Adviser and by stall recewve no repr.neralon wroagt orol saare. carried
inicres:, co-invesimen: or othor schemes re atcd o the Company's gcrtormancs

Iy

L . . e . P
On 1 Novemboer 2015, Civitas Invesimen: Managemen: Limiied ("CIM7) was angoinied as ine Invesirent Adviser of the Company.
I's address is shown on page 131 10 112 Rooor

Fees of 75,206,000 (2042 Fa132.000) were incurred and naid .o CIM [n addizion C{1.000 2022 fnul disbursaments were paid in

Tae Investoent Adviser agreed o contnio.sce i (2027
vras offget againsT .cga. and protessiona. fessinnee 90

owards ega. and prolessiona. lees incarred Tais amoun:

Ag a3l Marc 12022 a2 net amo.n: of F18.0

C7z: F1GLCCEY was d .o from CIMLwhich nay since ocen received

Az at 31 Maran 24 CIM e d 167 554 2 COy Ordimary gaares 10 e Company



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

Tne Group's principal financial assets and dapiniles are tnose 1nal anse direcily trom g opcrations: trade and otaer
receivanles. rade and other pavaoles and cash and cash equivaien:s The Group's oiher principal financia’ haoilities are pang
porrowings. e main purooge of wnicn 1s to tinance 1nc acquisiton and deve'opmen: of ihe Group's Investrent property
poritodo. and inicres: rate dervatives as delailed in notes 20 0 and 216,

Al financial Jablites are measared at amortised cost, cxcent interes: rate derivatives, waicn are measured ai fair value Al
financial insiruments were designated in their curren: categories Lpon initia. recogniion.

wartdre

Sctost oelow is a comparison by class of the carrying amouns and fair value of the Group's financia: instrumen
cartied 1n e tinanciai saemen s

Book value Fair value Book value Fau value

31 Marcli 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2022
£'000 ﬂ‘l)ﬂﬂ_ o £oon L_(lﬂ

Financial assets S -
Ineres: rate derivanves 8.129 8,129 2131 2131
Trade and other raceivaoies' 34,949 34,949 34580 34580
Casa and casn eqquivalen:s 35588 35,588 53,337 53337

Financial liabilities
Trade and olner payan.es’ 7.599 7.599 8.532 8.637
361,915 350179 352.05C 349405

1 Excludes prepayments
2 Excludes delerred moome and dividend withholding tax payable

THe Groso nag five nang .oans as detaled innote 200 The fair va.wo of e liked rate oan is determinaed oy comparing (ne
discounted furure casn t'ows

The Crowp 1S eéxposed to marde: risk, in:eres: rate ris<, credi nse and nguidily ris< in e current and futire years The Board of
Dirceiors oversees the manageman’ of hcse ris<s. Tne Board of Direclors reviews and agrecs poicles for managing eacn of
inese risks 1nad are suirmariscd below.

The Group's activinies Wil exoosa i primrarl.y 1o Tae marse: ns<s associaled witnh cnanges in oroperiy va'.es and ¢hanges in
inierss: raes.

[nvestmen: 1IN proverty i1s sLb cct o varying degrees of risk, Some [aciors tnat affect tne va se of e invesimen: in propery
inciude:

® changcsin :ne genera. ccononic c.nta.e:

e conpeldion for aval ap.e properics:

®  OD080.0SCOnger and

s goveINMen: raguiattons. inc..ding planning, snvirenmenia. and .ax aws,

Varnations in e aoove laciors can affect the va.wauon of asscis ne.d oy 1ne Gro.p and as a resat can infaence e financia.
cerformance of 1ne Grouo.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

The Group noids postions in two AAA rated .iquidity {.nds (hal inves: in a diversificd range of governmen: ancd
NON-GOVOINMEN: Money rarget securiies, whlch are supect (o varying degrees of ns<. Somoe laciors tha: alicc: e vaone of
10¢ dqaidity funds incuude:

e iie pertormance of e dnderying governnen: and non-governmer: Money mar<ct secarivies: and

e Iniorestrales.

financial

Variations in hic aocove factors can affec 1ae va wauon of asses neld oy e Growp and as a res.a. can influence -
verdormandce of the Crouo.

IR
Tnieres: rate rig< 13 he risg “at (e tair vaae or [ature cash Dows of a financia insirumeont will toctiate becacse of changes in
mar<et interes: rales.

A7 31 Maraen 72025 a.. 'ong-term oorrowings are eliiner o fixed rate or nave an inferest ralc cap or INeres? rale swap in pace
wnich has mrngaed (he rsg ol rising ineres: rate. Inierest rate denvaiive INSITLIMents are 1N 0.ace 10 11e oan ma:  rity dae on
e vardaoie rae oans

8

Thc lan.e nelow shows tne oan< .oanhs, derivative insirumen:s and in.cres: rates:
Maximwm
Lean Prinaipal Doervanve INSIrument Nerest rake
SumMary of Borrowigs oo . _ o _ foog _ ExpuyPate Inferestrate o nplace  payable
ish Widows Limied 10-year faciity 52,500 S2MENZT 2.99358% tixed 2.99%
Deasche Bang AG 70,875  CZ/C2/2028 5.59% fixed 550
HSBC Bank p.c 100,000 2BA12025  SONIA + 215%  Inerasitae cap 4757
Natona. Wes munster Bans Pic B-year taciity 60,000 14/08/2024  BONIA + 2.00%  Tnereg: 1aic swap 250
MEC Investmen: Managenen: Limred 7-yoar faciiizy 84,550 Z4/C2/2028 314
267,925
P Mo ihterest 1ate jeduces W 4 6% lrom 18 Apnl 2023
The expoture of e GroLd to vanaon e racs of inferes? (s considercd Spon drawing of any new odn lact ey, 10 gnsars dl e
Gro.p's axoosWwre 1o interes: rae £1.Cl.alions s wiinin accep: aq 8 1ove s
The nvesinten: Adviser moniors D1 Croun's SXpos.re [0 any cadandges in aureres rald on al angoing oasis, wil: ¢ Board
.odaled on a g.arery nasts of ;ne curren; exposure of e Gro.o's oan faciines
As ar 3l Maro .t 2522 inceres: rates had oeen 100 sasis points Algasr/ owery witn a. omher vafao @8 ne.d consian e impas:
on orotizs alier :axation for tie year woo d e as oc.ow. The [nvesimen: Adviscr anicing:es 11ose .eve's are reasonan.y
oossio.c oased on t1e onscryaion of carrent mwarke: condiflons tna nteresiraies woo.d not f Leiiae more tnan 1%
31 March 2023 31 March 2822
_ . ~ : _ ~ o . R _ R _ _ Eﬂ!ﬁ o L‘UU()V
Increase/{decrease} in profits due to interest rales
108 nasis poinis mygnaer
1CT nasIs POINS owaer

O OWSED

. - - M March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
- . _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ — _ _ _ B _ %
Ban< 0airae fixcd rac 2.65
Ban< oorrowings  /arnan € rac &6.07

Casn and cas) q.17a

TVanable tas holtowWIngs are Subject 164 maximuam nierest rate f 4 75% clue 1o an ntersst ate cap Thi MAXIMmun N8 test 1dre teduees 1o 4 6% trom 18 Aprd 2043



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

Credi. sk is w1 Lise Nid. a Coanierpary wi' nol meet s opligations under a financial instrumen: or cusiomer conrat
eading ¢ a Iinanciai .oss The Group is exposed o credi: risks from oot its ‘easing activities and financing activites,
inc.uding deposiis witn oanks and financial insurations.

Deniors and acorded income regresent rent d.c or accried. These amounis dae are diversified petween a numper of differen:
Approved Providers of differing financial sireng:n, sce note 28.0 for detals of tne dillerent counterpariics. None of 1ne
Aporoved Providers have a credii rating. however, tae diversificd nature of this assct suppor:s tne credil quality.

Txe Group has po.icies in p.ace io cnsure (1ad rental coniracis are enterad no only wiin ‘essees with an appropriate credi
and operational nistory. and limis exposure (© any one ienan: The credit risk s considered (o be turther reduced as the
souree of the rents roceived by the Group is aiiimately providad by 7ic Government. oy way of nousing benefit and care
provision, via a diverse range of loca. aathoriues.

For details of provisiong for impairmen: p.case refer :o note 17 G

One of the onnaipa. credis risks of tie Groun will arise witn the bang<s and financial insiic:tions. 7 he Board of Dircaiors oeaeves
that e credii risk on short-erm deposics and curran: account cash ba ances s linited pecause e Counlerparies are oanx<s
considered o be of good credit qua'ity. In 1o casc of cash deposits ae.d wiia .awyers. tne credit risg 18 Amited Decause nc

casnis he d by e .awyers witiin c.ien: aceoun:s a pangs with ugn credit glaiy

The credi: ratings for pan<s whore baiances are ae.d oy the Group are asg fol.ows:

L.oyds Banx o.c Ar/EY
HSBC Bans< o AA-/Flt+
EBS Inzernaticnal Limired A/FI

MNazional Wesiminsier Ban<plc A/F

Razings advised ny Filca

N balances are held with Deulsche Bank AG

The Crouo managcs I's liq.idity and funding riscs py considering ¢ash Low lorecasss and ensuring sofficien: cash na.ances
are me.d within the Group o meel fuiare needs. Pruden:t iguidlly nsk management intplics maintaining s.tficlent casa and
markctan' o secLrities. \ne aval.abiiy ol hnancing throagn appropriate and adequate credit anes, and the abiny of casiomers
10 seille ooligations wiinin norman ierms of eredi Tiie Grodp ensurcs. tnrowgn forecasting ol capital requlreImenis. al
adeqguaate cash is availab.e

The fo.lowing ab.c detai s e Group's ma.nty probee M respect of its financia. instrumroent 'labiiies vased on contraciua:

Lndigcownied paymen's

On demand <lyear 1-?_yl-ats: - § years Total

o Lo [ _guen RGO Eogo  Eue0
3-1 March 2023
Trade and omcr payables 7.599 - - - 7.599
Bang< oorrowimgs - 14,482 407,770 - 422,252
S I © 7599 14482 407770 - 429,851
31 March 2022
Trade and ooer payan.os 85352 - - 8.032
Bank vorrowings 9.335 245974 111.5607 359917
- S T T gssm u9mEs 0 243974 144502 40B.544
The e a: 31 Mareh 2623 and inc. aded wiinin the contraciad payments is F54.327.000
(2022, F42.8532.000) of .oan interes: payaa.e Lp 10 e pont of maturivy
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

A3 Maran 2023, ine Coempany nad fands commitied towa ing ENil (2022 £92 000 concerning cavita. expendiiare for a property
m S.rrey)

On 9 May 2023, 1ne Company anno.nced a dividend of 1425 pence per snare in respes of the period | lan.aary 2023 o
31 Maren 2023 totaling £8.841.00C The dividend payment was made on 9 June 2023 (o snareno.ders on thea regisier as
a1 19 May 2023, Tne financla. s:atements do not retiect tus dividend. Tae dividend was paid as a REI™ oroperty inaome
distrib..cion CPIDY

On 1 December 2022, tne Company signed a facllity wiiy an ingtit.uonal .ender Supseq.enl 10 tis, on 21 June 2023 the
Company received credit approved erms for an addiiona £516 milion hixed faciily pased on a 3-year SONIA ¢ at e
date ot draw down +1950ps margin with a matarity date of 3 Aug.st 2028, The eventia. drawdown on the [aciliiy s subh oot
ceriain shandard ¢.osing conditions

On 9 May 2023 an anno.nceran: was made (0 e marke: for an a -casi offer of Civitas Social Housing PLC (Civicas) from
Welness Unity Limted. a wholly owned indirec: s.osidiary of CKA Asse: Ho dings Limired (CKAL T oller of 80 pence

per snare recelved va.wes o enire iss.ed share capiia. fexe ding reas.ry saaresi of CSH at approximao.y F485 milion.
TS represen:s a 44 4% SIemium o 110 saarre nrice of 554 pence per saarc on 3 May 2023 (1ae las: rading day pnor o
announcamen: of e offen, and 26 7% discoun: (o 31 Marca 2023 NAV of 109.16p Tals orovides sharendidaers the opoor  nity 1o
cxivin fL ' and in cash at a significant pIemrLam 1o e curten. share urnce Tac ofter wio oo iro.enenied oy way of a ta<eaver
offer witivin 1ac nreaning of Par: 28 ol 1ac Companies Act

On 274 May 2623, e Offer Document was made avar an.e Tac ofter oecame wncondiiona. on 23 lune 2023 Paymen: of
consideratiion dae 10 snarenouders who nave seonritied vaad acceplances wi.. oc madae no azer nan 4 calendar days

afer the dare the Ofter occomes or1s declared sncondiziona. orn relatuon 0 vadd aceeniances received afier suon dase.
witiin 14 ca.ondar days of recein: ot 1nat acoeplance. According o tne Olfer Documrend it is intended tha: Civiias Invesimen:
Managemen: Limited { CIM ) is mamiained as ne Invesimen: Adviser 1o Clvitas so tha: the day-io-day managemren: of

e Cwvitas porifodo wi. conan.e aninerrogied, and Civras oe re-rogisierad 4s a privaie Imited company as soon as
vraclican o lo.owing 1ne cance.azion of the usting and rading of Civitas snarcs At tne na.ance shee: dats, CKA. as an indirac.
inves:orin CIM. was not a re.ated pary 1o e Group as oor [AS 24 On 23 Tune 2023 waen tne offer occame necondiiiona..

CKA sLbseq.ent y oocame e wlimate conTo ang pary of 7ie Company. and & re:aed gary .nder [AS 74




Company Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2023

S Marthi2ued dl March 2022

o . _ _ o e _ 7‘_____N_0[(-' . i:}lﬂ _ [ [lUVEl
Assels T B

Fixed assets

[nvestmen: in s.osidiarics - o 794,733 77293.28747
Current assets

Trade and oraer receivabies 9.0 2,599 4,315
Casn and cash equiva.en:s 100 26,193 23438
o S T T - 792 27748

'];oLal assets

823525 821032

Liabilities
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year
Trade and other pavan.es 1.0 (318.41)  (274.020)

| (318414)  (274.020)

Total liabilities B (318,414)  (274.020)
Totalmetassets T ___sesat o sa7o
Equity

Share capia. 12.C 6,225 5225
Share premium reserve 130 292,626 292.625
Canra. red JCUon reserve 14.0 317.714 522355
Accumulated losses 154G (111,454) {74,204
To{ai'éiﬁtf o S S S T T T 505111 547012

Thac Company nas taken advantags ol e provisions of Com panies Aat 2060 5408 and does not disc.ose the Company’s
individia: proflt and .o4s accoun: loss [or the year was £2.79L.0C0 2022, prol £21.352.000)

Tae Company financial slalements on pages 111 10 120 ware approved oy “he Board of Direciors of Civilas Socia. Housing PLC
and gainorised for issue and signed on 118 pena.f oy:

[\\‘\[L”Lf’mt.k |

Michael Wrobel

Cndirman and Independen: Non-Executive Direcior
28 Tune 2623

Conpany No: 16402578

SVLIALD
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Shate Capyat

Share premium reduetion  Accumulated Total
) T R toxses s
Balance atlAprilzo2t 77 T 7T T 7 s28  28p4s2 33140 (51473) 568354
Protit and tnla comorehensive income for e year - - 21362, 21302
Snares reissued Irom reas.ry 130 184 481 - 548
Snares pougnil 0ack N0 reas.ry 46 - : {2.259) {9.259
Dividencs paid 5.0 - (34.093} (3-1.093)
Balance msi March2023 T T T T U7 Ugni T Gaias | Waghs gaioa | sareln
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year - - - 2.791) (2.791)
Shares reissued trom reas.ry 13.0 - - - - -
Snares DO Batd N0 TreasLIry 14.0 - - (4.651) - (4,651)
Dividends paid 15.0 - - - (34,459) (34.459)

Balance at 31 March 2023 6225 292626 317,714 (454 50511

The Company's distriburable regerves compnse retamed earnings/iaccumalated losses) and the capizal reduciaon
reserve These in aggregate had sufficien: realised diginbutable reserves 1o suppor: dividends paid 1o dae,

The notes on agages 1 0 T are aa itcegrad gar ot iose Hnandcia Saimaens,



Notes to the Company Financial Statements
As at 31 March 2023

i - . ER .

Civiias 3ocia, Honsing PLO  he Campany™ waod inewnpotd.ed 1n england and Waies ander the Companies Ac: 2005 as a puoilc
company Jdmried by snares on 29 Sepiember 2016 with company nuamber 10402528 under :he name Civizas REIT PL.C. whnich was
sunsedaenty changed (0 e oxisiing name on 3 Ocioner 2015,

The address of (he regislered office is 611 Floor, 65 Gresham Sireet London RC2V 7INQ. The Company Is registered as

an invesimen: company under scction 833 of The Campanies Act 2006 in England and Wales and is domiciled in tne

United Kingdom.

“he Company did not begin sTading unti! 18 November 2015 when (ne snares were admited to rading on tae London Stock
Exchange ("LSE™).

The Company's Ordinary shareg nave pecn admited 1o ine Cificia. List of the Financia! Cond o Authorizy (‘'FCA'). and are
“raded on the L.5E.

Tae principa’ acuvity of the Company is 1o act as ine L' imate parent company of 1s subsidiaries ({he "Grouo’} and 1o provide
snarcha. ders witn an atraciive jeve! of income, logeer with (ne poennua. for capial growiin from investng in a porilolio of
socia. homes.

The fingneial staiemrenis nave been orepared on a hisiorica: ©ost pasis and in accordance wiia Financial Reporung Standard
101 Rediced nsclosure Framewors {"FRS 101" and ine Companies Act 2006 as appucaple (o compantes asing FRS 181

In preparing these tinancial s1a:emen's. e Company apoiies 1ae recogniion. measuremeni and disC.osure requiremeants ot
In:ernanona. Finanaia. Reporiing 3:andards (Adopted TFRSET, bul mages amendments waere necessary in order (o comp y
wii e Companics Acl 2006 and has se: oul ne.ow where advaniage of tie FRS IC1 disclosure exempuons has been laxen.
In preparing these financial s:a:ements the Company nas ta<en advaniage of all discios.ire exemptions conferred oy FRS 161
Tnerefare, these financia. sTaements do not include:

¢ cCeriain comparative informanon ag otherwise reg.aired oy [FRS:

e ceramn discosares regarding (e Company's capilal managenment

3IQIMLrs:

e certain disciossres inre.ation (o [FRS 15 Revenwe Contracis wit Co
& dslaement of casa tows:

e nC cifect of fuiare accouniing standards no: ye: adoptod:

& ne discoosare of 1ae remaneration of <ey managemaon: personnes and

e discosurc of raiated party ransacuons with otaer whnoy owned mempers of Civiias Social Housing PLC

In addirion. and in accordance wita FR3 101 fariner discosure cxemplions nave oeen adopicd pecause equivaien: digc.osures
are inc.aded in the Company's conso.idated financial siaiements, These linancial siatemen:s do not inciude certain
disciosures in respect of:

e linancial insiromrenis; and

e fair va..e meas.remoent oiher tnan corain disc osures reqaired as a resull of regording financia. insiramenss at fair valie,

The Comrpany nas ja<en advan:age of 1he exemption 1n scotion 4C8 of tae Com ganics Act 2006 nOL 10 Presen: i18 OWn mmeome
slalemoen: or g:atement of comprenensive incomea
Alizra review ol new accouning standards wnich are now eflective. none are relevani (o oe adoplied in tne oreparalion ol e

Company's [inancia’ statemen:s for e yedar ended 31 Maron 2023,

The financia, s:@iemen:s Aave boen prepared on a going CONCCIn 0asis

Asgdiscugsed in cne Croun financia, s.a.cments anova e Lnderying assess of e Company oenctl [rom a secure Income sircant.
The Company linancia! stalemean’s show an aco.muiaed 088, 10wWever (s 1s dowe 10 a ame- ag on profiss from subsidiary
coirpdnic: peing moved Lo Ve sirecate in the form of dividends.

The Company nas net curren! dabianes of $289.622.000 (2022: £246.272.0C0). This ma.ance ariscs due L0 e inicreompany
oa.ances toaning C315128.000 2G22: £271.532.000) with the Com oany's subsidiary conipanics 7e amosLnis prncipa y relate o
nan< .oans drawn in the Comopany's suosidiary comopanies in order 'o inancc e purcnase of new acquisiiions in accordance
wih ne Group's ousiness mode  The direciors of the suosidiary companios nave provided a atar ol comfor: inat iney wil no:
seed repaymen: of (1ese ba ancey wiinin 12 monins from the daie ot approva. of inc Comoany's inancia: siazemen's
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
Continued

The Company’s darieics of association include a requiremen: tor i1c Bodrd 0 propose an ordinary resolulion a@ e annua.
general meeting fol owing e tifi 1 anniversary from D¢ inma. p.olic offering of the Coroany for ine Company o conunue
ins current form (the Continuation Reso.aiion). This vote was passed in Septembper 2022 so e Company wil. continae its
oasiness as presently consiitued and wi.. propose the sare resotllion at the AGM in Scplemper 2027 and every it annua.
genarda. mesing Joereater

On 9 May 2023, an anno.unoenen: wad made ;

ne marke: (or an d..-cas offer of Clviias Socia) Hausig PLC {CSHY froim
Welness Jniy Limited, a wnoly owned indirect saosidiary of CK Assers Ho.dings Turiied (CKA)Y. The ofter cocane
unconditiona. on 23 Tune 2023 Tne Cro.p's existiing commil:ed deo? taci liies contaln a s:andard ¢cnange of control clawse nas
now heen iriggerad duc 1o e offer becoming incondinonal. This could resucin the existing commited deb: facilizies heing
witdrawn. Furinernrore. the Direciors do not have visibilizy of ;e uost caompletion funding for the Group and Conmipany at
s ime The Directors nose the defated intentions ssaenen:inel.ded witnin ine announcemen: on 3 May 2025, whicn siates
c1at CKA does not envisage maxing any caanges 1o the managemrens: .eam nor any disrandilon 1o any coun.erparies or o

the under.ying tenants. However e condizions oatined above indicate a material uncerainty walcen may «as: significan:
docpr unon the Growo's and Company's anliy © conlinge as a going concerm. T1e (ndependent ALdiors Repors inclided
wiin ive Annwsal Repor: and Aceoun:s for e yvear endcod 31 Mare 2023 a.50 highidga:s this mamena. wneertainmy. Therefore
notwithstanding e ma‘eria, wnceram:y arising from e ofter trom CKA the Direciors are satisfied “ha- 'ne going congern
Qasis remraing anpropriae for tae oregaration of e financial statements. The financia: statements do not inc.ade ine

ad ssurenis thatwosd resulline Crowp and (e Company were Lnanie o coniinae as a going coneern

0 e Company's invasiman. in Growp comrpanies. and 18 slaied nne

5 arc delermimed witn
retérence (o e invesimonds fair va Lo 0ss osilinreied cosis of disposal Inves mon: properies ne'd by e s.osidiary
comrpanics are suonored oy independen: va.eaion, ludgentonis and assaroions dassociaiod with 1ac oropery va..es of tne
investmon:s 1eld oy tne suosidhary companies are delaied i e Growp financia. stateme

The ey sodree of estimation Lhoeerainty
Comoany’s

The Iinanaa. statemen:s of e Company [o_ow ne acco.niandg polices axd ouin e Gro,o's consoidated tinanoa:
sialements a ong with the oLhowing acco.ning 0o 1IC1es whlcn nave neen congs ent.y apoiied:

The Invesimen's in swosidiary comoanias arg ine Lded inae Comeany's Sacmen: of Flnancia Positlon at cos? s
for impainmen: Imoairmen: osses are dearmimed wimn reference 1o e invesimen's lair va we ess esumraad seoing cosis On
digoosa.. e diffarence neiween ne ne: digoosa. proceeds and S carrying amo.an: s inoraded 1n e mneoma siaienent

Tae invasiren:mn a suosidiary comrpany may o ode 0ot e ourdiase of stards and an nercSn 9dny  oan Wit is
S.0SQfLENT ¥ CaDia jsed N rer.m tor $71ar68 1 1 swosidlary commoany T g Inercompany oan capragsed 18 dise osed in

nowe 7.0 as a rransler peiwesn LAc gnares and Loan coidmrns,

Loans made .o supsidiary conpanies wilcn ansa as par: af @

: rransaciions for e acguisivion of invesimen:s and are
S.oseguenly/ camia ised oy lne 18s.c ol snares are recognised as imvesirenst in saosidiarcs ak ¢ost AlChe ooint 1ag loan is
capliased, 10s ransacion s recognisad as a ransfer witain ac an.c n neie 7 4

arising wiia suosidiary comoanias ot a
cd at arrorased cos:

T oorary naL.re are intla vy recogniscd a. fair va Le and s .osedaenty

Dividends are inc_dad in e tinancia. slaiemonis in e yoarin wouoa ey arc oaikd Detans of dividends oard and propased
arznc daed i nee 1138 of e Crnup's conso idated tinancla s1aemon:s

ors rom .

Dciars of Direg:

narguon are inc.aded in note 26 ol e conscadaiod hnanola. siaoniens Tae Company aad no

emo oyees d ring tn 24T (20 T

w
)
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
Continued

Sraresin Lrans e Ve

aubs ciar es aubsnaney 21 March 200 T

Year ended 31 March 2023 o o . . _ . o [ANARE enns S
Ba.ance at'he peginning of the year 768,075 25,209 793.284
Inerease in invesiren.s 1,090 600 1,690
Loans iransterred 7,727 (7.727) -
Impairment (24D - (241
Atthe end of the year o o _ 776,651 18,082 794,733
- - T T B T Fo the year

Shares in lLoans to ended

subsididnies subsidiares 31 March 2022

Year ended 33 March 2022 . o o o L o o _Roow - Rai _E0dd

Baiance ar e peginning of tne year 703435 17.483 720.918
Increase in invesurents AL712 .05 72725

T.oans ransferrcd 23.287 (23.287)

Impairrren: (359) {339}
Atthe end of the year ) 768.073 25209 797284

Foliowing a review comparing cos! of invesimen's (o tne wnderying ne. asses of s.nsidiary companies, an impairman;i
orovision has been made of £241.000 (2022: £359.000)

i . . L o
Tae Comrpany has vrovided a guaraniee undar $479C of the Companies Act 2006 in respec: of the financia. vear ended
31 Marcn 2023 for a numoer ol ts subsidiary comoanies (as indicated mn e tabie on the fol.owing vages) The guaraniec is

over a’ gutstanding '1abLiies 1o waen e suosidiary companies are sub oot at 31 Marcn 2023 wnii taey arc satisfied intu

The Growp consists of a paren: company. Civitas Socia. Houasing PLC. incorporated in Eng.and and Wales (company nunber
10432528) and a numper of ssosidiaries ne.d directvy by Civizas Soma. Housing PLC, wnich oocrale and arc incorporated in
Eng.and and Wa'es or Jerscy.

The Group owns 100% equaiy shares of a’) scbsidiaries lisied nelow and has ‘ne power 1o anpoint and remrove 1ne majorny ol
e poard ot directors of 1aose supsidlaries. The rewevan activitias of tne below suogidiancs are deterimined by ine Board of
Directors based on the pLIoose of sach company.

Therctare, e Directors concladed thar (e Grown Nas Consrol over al taese entiles and an Lhese enalics nave been
consolidaied wiinin the conso.idated financia: siatemenss.

A st ol allrelaed Lndertazings ing aded within tnese conseoadated financial statemen:s are noied oeiow. Indircet’y ned
suosidlary companies are marzed oy an indeniation in 1h¢ tan.e neiow:

Name _ Registered number _Principal

- — e —— slere:d mim L Y Countty of INCot paration _

Civiras %:)71.;;1:\:\; Finance (‘?;)ja riy 1 Lentedt Jelelevaivid Finance cot pany FEngland & Wa es
Covtas 3oca, Howsing Jersev 1 Lomied 12129 Ho.ding comipany _ersey

Civdas STV Lrited” 10518729 Property investmeant Lag.and & 'Vaes

Cvitas SPVZ Linntedt 10114251 Property nvestnent Ergland & Wa.es

Covitas SFYI Lerted™ 10346749 Property investmeant Exgland & Wa.es

Cistas 5TVI15 Lomoted® G477280 Froperty iavestment Lng . and & Wa.es

v tas 5PV23 Liited 10791473 Property investnient Eng.and & ‘Wales

Crvitas SFY27 Lirned® 10583112 Property vestrent Engiand & Wa,es

Dortas SEVESS Lemated” 10346407 Proverty mvestment Eng and & Wales

Civilag SPV3S Bimated® 10588530 FProperty mvestment Lhg.and & Wales

5 5MV38 Lintited” 10733518 Froperty .nvestment Lngland & Waies

5PV33 Lo ted® 105473555 Prope-ty ivestmeant FEnag.and & Wales

SPVAC Lrited® 10758510 Property nvestmeant Engrand & Wa.ss

Cvaas SPYl Lo ted” 1G7385317 Propperty vestrant Loig.and & Wales

Contas 5PYI0 Limoted® 10775418 Proverty mvestment Eng.and &% Wa.es

Covtas Soua Housing oaanee Contpany 2 Loy ted® 10397698 I'nance company kgrand & Waies
Crwitas Soc.a. Hous vy Jersey 2 Lmied 124875 Ha'ld ng corpany lersey

Courtas 3PV Lorated® 10156229 Proverty onvestent Fagland & '"Wa.es
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
Continued

Name

A

CL\J!(ﬂsTSfﬁﬂ i."t:led'
Crviras SPVE Lomoted:
Cvilas SPVe Limited®
Coviltas SPVI Lorited®
C.vitas SPVI0 Limitsd™
Crvitas SPVIZ Limited”
Covitas SPVI7 Limtted™
Civ tas SPVI3 Lomitted”
Civitas SPVIY
Civitas SPVZ0 I
Clvitas SF
Covtas SFVZ4 1 muoted ™
Civ tas SEVI6 Limoted®
Cvitas 3PV29 [ nted™
Clyvotas SPVSG L
Coviteas SPV3TLL:
C vitas S5PV3S2 L liteds
O wvtas SPVEA Lo deds
Crrtas 3Fvie Lo tedr

as 5Fva2 Loy ied
5 SPV43 L ted”
Covtas SEVES Tmaed*

f22 Limr.ted®

Crntas SPv4s Lo e
Cov tas SPYAY L 1ted”
Covitas SPWAB L. mited”
Crvtas STV31 L e ds
Coitas 5Fv32 Laavted™
Crvitas SEVES i ted®
Crvitas 3FYed Lamteds
Civ.tas SPY/C Lo ted”

s SPY72 Lovsred®
5 STV74 Lor ted”

sitas SEVBE Lo ted-
Cootas SEVIEE Lo ted™

tas Soca Howsg F e

asslva L
a5 SPVEZA Loy tend*

(DRG]

A% SFVET Lonted”

cAas SPLTT Lo
CAtas SPUYE s
Crvtas SEV M L
SR L -

a2 SPVR2 Lo e 1t

SEPVES Lo reds
5 3FVAS Lomored®
E ragr
Flas 597 Lo dsds

s GPGR Lormoeds

anse Do peny 3L ted

Registered number

104327441
16473104

10674433
10536388

10335243

10545735
18479056
10340651

16751512
1G3643%6
15911565
109560235
10974889
Heewrs
10738381
15388732
10;/38536
0534877
0871854
1871910
1GE73270
IDEE293
826633
10877806
10337805
1693841

1070201

10B8AA%]
10338022
NGB
NCC1E%

10561998

1621523

11056453
o3
nnica

WA%7Hal

10957838
116549
I RINAE]

1300742
oChEt

1453535

Puncipal activity

Propeny ,n'\.fesmte;
Prooerty nvestivsit
Fronpe-ty :mvesinient
Proverty nvestnient
Fronerty iInvesiment
Fropery investment

Froperty investment

Froperty nvastrent
Prooerty investirent
Frogerty nvesthent
Property nwvesinent

Frooer-ty investypenl
Praperty wvestrenl
Fronerty cwvesiment
Propernty wvestment
Fraons

restrent

vastment
Proverty nvestment

Fronerty avestmmeant

Proverty wvesinent
Prooe-ty imvesthent
Prope-ty nvestment
Property mvestnient
Troperty mvestmant
Fro;

Proyerty avesiment

rhyonvestment

Fronerty nvestyent

vestrent

Property nvestrenl
[roperty resiment

WwEstTent

nyestTient

DSty vesin

Pros SrsestTan

Frooeety rresin em

et

rAest et

__country of mecrporatis
Lngiand & Wa.es
Lrgand & Wa.es
Erg.and & Wa.es
Eng.and & Wa.es

England & ‘Wa.es
Lng.and & Wales
Lngland S W
England & Wales
England & wales
Eng and & Waiss
Fngland & ‘NVaes

a.es

Fag.and & Wa.es
Eng.and % Wa es
Lag.and &% Wa es
Lng.and & ‘WVales
Lagland & Va.es
Eng.and & NVales
Lngiand & Wa.es
Eng and & ‘Aaes
Eng and & 'Wa es
Eng and & Wa.es

Eng.and & Wa'es
fag.and & Wales

Lngland &
Lngand &
Eng.and &
Tngand &
Frg.and &0
frgend
Fag.and
Lnfand
Tngaand

W

W

Lagandd
Frg.and
Lagand
togand %
ftngand &7

oK

fag.anid &
Frgand %
Lngland %
g and

tng
Fr1g.and
Frgand
Engad

N3
<
e
=
%

K747

Fngand

<

Fagand

e

fgend

e

foag.and
Fagand
Engaad
vy and

W)

w1 oK

Lrag.and

T
-

o

)

”

Frg.and % faes



Notes to the Company Financial Statements
Continued

Nawe o o Rt‘_cL!,:Lprm‘l_nllmm‘r _ Pnincipal achwity L _Country of Incorporanon o
Covitas SPVIGS Line ted® 11532177 Fropeny rivestment g and S wvaes

[0

Aas SPVICH Lwlted”

Chritas SPVICY Linded®

Crvitas 3PVI1E Lanted®
Covlas SPVITY Limited®

Cuwvitas Sacial Hous g Finance Company 4 L ted™

Clv.tas SPV2S Linmited®
Civitas 3PV 34 Lmtedd®
Civitas SFV39 Limited®
Croitas STVH3 Lirated®
Crvitas SEV73 Limited”
Crvitas 5FV84 1. mited*
Cratas SPY856 Lim led®
Cratas STVaY L ted®
Centas ST 88 Lo ted®
Crvitas 5FVAG Loanited”
Crotas SEVIE Lo teds
Crrtas SEV92 Lo ted®
Crotas SPY 9% Lo led”
vy tas SEVYd Londied®

¢
Cootas SPVAS Limited®
Cryitas SPWVIG0 Linrtted®

@]

crtas SPVIOT Lo red®

Cryctas SPYIGZ Line rad”

Crtas SPVICA Loneded”

Oortas SPVIE Lo ed?
Covtas STV L e ted
Covotas SPVUE Lir1ad*

slas SPVIE Limaed”
Cootas SIVIZT Lorated®
- Asdt

o

Cortas S22 Lo

!

Cr7tas SEVI27 L 1 ted™
Cortas S¥

Covitas S 150 Lo deds

ts SPVIB) L ted”
Oy tas SPVIRZ Lo tads
Cortas SEVIAE L.

SPUVISE Linnted fprey

Clhvitas SPVI148 Lo ded”

CToas SPR M L e

Cosas SEV1S0 L =gt

PO %24 Lid®

Costas Socal tlovsng Fooance Covoatty 3 Lok

Cortas S0 Loated”
Coolas SO s L aeds
Ty tas SF
Creltas SPVEd oated”
Cowtas S L aited”
Jovoras SPVES L ited”

Lo ted”

Covdas SPVaZ Linited™

L dedt

Crwitas SEVEs
Covotas Ve Lonitedr
o tas GIVES Lo aed
VU tas SEVas L red®

Ttas SPVIZA L ted”

129 1 nited”

[
sty Preldoay Lo ted

11332182
11504339
115G4443
11966660
10746881
11639750
M3
M42572
10939675
HES155
1418172
0688903
10959044
1093913]
10341577
1419313
H10451M
11208105
11275786
N0a’763
0RI/8282
1321533
113352120

1411138
1CaaN7
114182545
N4:55871
10941403
116649944
M705074
NE73152
N475745
181423505
5212012
118526%3

11462691

10733430
10583783
1031540

11036465

Property investreant
Property investnie:t
Froperty mmvestnien!
Froperty rmvesiment
Finance Comzany

Froperty _nvesltnent
Froverty investmen!
Frouerty nvestment
Property nvestment
Property nvestirent
Propearty nvestnment
Proverty nvestment
Irogerty nvestnent
Prooerty nvestiment
Property Jwesinient
Froperty mvestiment
Froperty nvestmend
Froperty Mmvesument
Frope-ty mvesumant
Froverty nvestrent
Froperty nvesinent
Fronerty vesinent
Fronerty mvestiment
Fronerty nvestment
Frone-ty nvestTent
Fronerty nyvestr ent

tent

ent
bProverty nvestiient
Proverty nvestiient
Prooerty nvestrant
Prooerty nvestaent
Fronerty avestaent
Proverty nvestment
Pronerty avesintant
Pronerty nveslre
Hodd 1y comiuany

Prooerty mvestmeanit

Froperty nvestment

o

erty vestrent

DEcty rFestT ent

ey avestaient

ree Donaany
Property nrestaent
[-onertty vestnenl

avestmenl

Frovery nvastaient
ronerty nvestrenl
Froperty nyvestiient
Pros

Froverty yvestrent

aerty nvestment

Froverty rvestnie it

I'ronevry vestriie it

Froverty vwestment

taigland & Waiss
Eagland & Wawes
Erg.and & Wales
Ligiand & wales
Engiand & ‘Wales
Engiand & Wa.es
England & wa.es
Fagland & Ma.es
Lagland & Wa.es
England & Wa.es
Eagland & Wa.es
Eagland & "Wales
Eagland & Wwa.es
England & wa.es
Lngland & Wa.es
trgland & "Wa es
trg.and % Wa es
England & Wa.es
England & Wa.es
Lng and % 'Wa.es
Lirg.and & ‘Va.es
Lng.and & ‘Wa.es
Eg and & 'WVaes
lrgand & WVa.es
Lng.and & Waes
Lag and & Walss

Lagoand & 'Waiss
L and & Wa
Eagand & oAMaes

Eag.and & Waes
Eng and & Waies
Lag.and & Wa'es
Lag.and & Waes
Fag.and & Wa ey
Fag and & Wa.es
Frag and & Waes
Lag.ant & Wa es
Fagland & Wa es
Fagrand % Wa es
Eqg and & Vaes
Lagland & Wa ey
Lagiand & Waes
Eagiand % Wa es
Foacg e SoVaes
Lagiand & Naes
Eag.and & Wa.es
Fagand &% 'Wa
'fVa

Na es

Waes
WNa
Laguand & AMaes

Lrguand S 'Va es

Eag and & Wa.ss
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Continued

Neme
Civitas 5Pv99 Lom.ted*
Civitas $PV104 Limted®
Civitas SPVICS Lomited™
Cortas SEVNE Limlled®
Crvitas 3PV1235 Lovited®
Clvitas SFV133
Civitas SPVIZ4
Civitas SPVI3E3 T led™
Clvitas SFV136 Limited®
Clviras SPVILS Limited®
Crvtas SEV144 Lirited®
Clvitas SFWe Lnsted”

Bryn EAnin @09 Linited”
Ceotas SPYI147 Luyited”

Mrynaydd Maw: 20190 limited®
Cuvitas SPYV152 L. red”
Covnas SPVI3S Livited”

i~
(O

ifas 8PV156 Limred®
Cortas 5PVIS7 Lintaed®
Uiy tas §TVI15& Lorte dt
Clvias SPV1eC L e
Badiord SPV L ted®
Bridge Property Herts Loy t=d”

Br.dge Frooco Liatedr

I'FI Co 234 Lrd*

Civtas SFv14 L mued”
Covtas 5P HP Led >

las 5FVIS Lo tted”

tas SPVal Lo teg®

C.7 tas SFLV152 |

Cwitas Foaane

Registered numbet

N478767
15332174
N332133
153CC65
8255432
Nn&33372
1683461
N379880
N579760
11516808
1345690
HBS1568
11844898
861974
11844917
N9553719
12644281
120810935
12188010
12262074
12272306
12315313
12435985
12443439
11319226

10473041

Jnnc@ldc(iviry o
Prove-ty mvestment
Propeny investreant
Fronerty nvestment
Froverty investnent
Property nyvestnent
Troperty vestnent
Probpersty nvestment
Froperty Invastment
Property mvestment
Property nvestment
Properiy nvestmrent
tto.d. g Company
Troperty nvestment
Haowdng
Mroperty vestrent

2DANY

Froverty nvestn-ent
Mroperty nvestnent
Fropersty nvestirent

nerty wvastitent

nerly nvestment
roperty nvestaent
Provetty vestment
Provarty nvestment

Proy nvesiniant

Proverty mmvestnreant

Frooe-ty nwvastnpent
Nerty nveshrenl

perty vestrent

erty avestment

Frogerty -1/estrent

Ho.ding Company

CouNry of INCOrporatkon

gand & Wa.es
fngland & Wa.es
Eng.and & Wales
Eagland & Wa.es
Lrg and & wa.es
England & wWales
Fagland &% Wa.es
England & Wales
England & wWaies
England & Wales
Lng.and & Wales
Eng.and & Wa:es
Lngiand & Wales
Eagand & Va.es
Eng and & Wa es
Eng.and & ‘Wales
Lagland & Wa es
Fag.and S Vaes
England & Wales
Faguand & Waes
Lagaand & wales
Ly and & Waes
Logg.and & Wa.es
Eng and & Wa.es
FErig.and & Wa ey
fngaand & Ma.es
Frgiand & Wa.es
Fig.and % Waes
Lorgand & wares
Lagiand & Wa es
Lng and & Wa ss

* These annneas ate exempt (rom the requitements of the Companies At 2006 relating 1o ihe qudit of indy pdual (nancial $tatementis by viitue of Section 4794 of that
At These are all enlifies that nave a year end of 51 Mdrch 20235

Tho regugiercd addresses for tne sopsidiarics are consisien:

oased on ncr cowniry of incorooration and are as fo..ows:

» England & Wales entities: Lin< Comroany Ma:ers Limited. 61 F.oorn 85 Cresnan Sirest Jondon EC2V 717Q

e Jersey entities: 12 Cas: e Srea:

Tradeo racoivan s

Prepayments and oiier recelvan.cs

Accracd incame

Total

Frenaymens and 000 recevasc & amrauniy
inc.rrad i conneciion witl acdg.aasiions Yo
onae nropery norlo o

3. Heoer Jersey JR2 3RT

31 March 2023
£ 000

1544
420

cof Lneomrn.

31 MAtch 2022

£ 004

340000 al nava oecn
cad wors<s



Notes to the Company Financial Statements
Continued

A1 Mdrch 2023 31 March 2022
N £roan

Casn hcr:'iw‘n; saiciiors
Liquidity 1unds 15,636 10,489

EL I

240

Casn nead ai npanxg 10,239 12.258
Cash an:; T;E E&u-wafcn;; ______________ S - S 25.9;5 o 75‘37,1237
Regiricied cash 254 Z15
Total cash held atbank T T 193 onams

Liq.udry lunds refer o money macaed in money marke: funds. These are highly iqgudd fands with accessiollity witnin 24 nours
and suoect e insignifican: risk of caangoes in val.e.

Cash ned by solichors is meoney ac.d in escrow for exoenses expocicd (o ne incarred in re.aljon 10 inves ment properiics
vonding compertion These l.nds are avai.anie immedia:c.y on demand.

Rosmricned casn represen's amaodn:s na'd for spocitic commitmen:s, ienant deposiis and reicnidon money neld by awyers 1In

relanon o deforred payments suboct o acaleveomen: of ceriain conditions, olner reteniions and casn segregated o find repar,

mamenance and Imarovemen: wWorss 1o oring e propariles .o 1o satisfaciory standards lor the Grodp and Ine enants

31 Mareh 2022
31 March 2023 Restated
_oEO0D R 00O

20 50
745 685

Accr.d 8

Dividend withho ding ax payan'e 940 057
Deferred maonie
Amrounis due 0 sunsidiary CoOmoancs 316,128 FT1ER2

Tenan: deposiis ae d*

S Comparaitves have been re-analysed (o correct the analysis of £2238 000 ol tenant deposits which had previously becen included in telentions

Snare capta represents e nomina va.oe of consideration received py Lae Comroany (or e issue of Grdinary shares

For rhe For the

year ended year ended
31March 2023 51 March 2022
o E0ng

5 ﬂ;;e_capitél

For the For the
year ended year ended
31 Marcn anat 31 March 2022

Ordinary shares of £0.01 each
A ceginning and end of year ) 622.46_1.58707

~
{

Doring e year, e Comrpany p.retased 20505000 Ordinary $14res 10 nc e inreasiry ata cost of MA51.000 (31 Maroa 20
16,025,000 Ordinary shares lor £9.3539.000)

Tl

ArevIo.8 year e Comrpany reiss.ed 565000 Crdinary shares ne.d in irecadary 1or fo47.007 7 e cosl of oaranasing
oy of FAB4.500 qas nean credited 1o e capta. reduciion rescrve wi e gain crodiiod o e sharo

D.rng -
- PTATEY INTG Toas.
aremiam reserve,

‘ne

DENArCs Wi Canin.ae

AL S Maren 2622, e Contpany ne d 18075000 (31 Mara:n 2022: 100250001 Oradinary $Nares im 'reds,
0 oe edin reasury anh o eraerrelstued or cance’led

A3l Maren
512 474 380) wrman oxo

5360380 (51 Marca 2027

Zoe numoer of Ordinary snares Lsod 10 ¢a o ate e NeElAssol VAL L0 00T S118HT0 18

e saares ac d i ireas by

=
3
=
z
b
2
=

JNISNOL




Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Continued

The gndre preMiaf: [E8erva represcnis e amoury sanscermed for Ordinary share capial in e

associated issue ¢osis of 1ne subscripions

.& &:5‘“515; '5{ ;:ar

GIT arising on shares reiss.

Rt;hd of year

For movemen:s in 11e year, please see deals in note 120

Tne capial reduciion raserve 13 a disinoL@oe raserve 10 which e value of ine cance led share

For the

year ended

31 March 2023
‘0o

292626

=T

gs of pomindg. vdl.e ess

Far the

year ended
31 March 2022
£000

nremiun! was ransterted.

Pursuant o Artcie 3 of The Companies (Reductan of Snare Caphia) Order 2008, the narance 1eld in "he caplla. reducion

eserve Is 1o pe irealed for the purposes of Pa

I of ine Companies Act 20086 as a realised orofll and therefore avallabp.e for

digiriouiion in accordance wii section 830 of 7ie Companies Act. Te Company has used this roserve for ine cosis of ouying

oack snares ‘0 De Neld In reas.ry

At neginning of year

Snares reiss.ed rom reasary
Snares poLghc pacs ing
At end of year

E:a;ug

For movaermen.s in (ne year p.ease soe delals in nowe 12.0

TS Tesarve rEProsenis

: profits anc 1z of Tne Company.

AT négimnzng Of-'y'&;ll"
(LossVorofit for t1e year
Dividends paid
Atend of year

Ag a3l Marc: 2023 11618 1S No L Imate contToling pnarsy

Fora . re.acd pary ransacions and ransacions wi

“ne Groue's consoddaled finangia. staiemrens and am

P.case reter .0 note

330 of ine Croup Conso dated hnancia. st

ror the
year ended
31 March 2023

322,365

(4,651)

317,714

tor the

year ended
31 March 2022
£oun

231140
184
(2.259)

for the

year ended
31 March 2023
£000

(74,204}
(2.791)
(34,459)

s

)

CMmase relerence to notes 30

e due o suosidiary companies in noe 110 above.

enrentg on page 114

fot the

year ended
31 March do22
£000

181473
21382
(34003
(72.264)

3ince e yoar end. Civizas Socia. Ho smg Jorsey 1 Lurred and Craas Soma Housing Jarsey 2 Lumited havoiss.ed dividends o

g Company (0la ng £10.245)
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Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the calculation of EPRA and other
alternative performance measures

Tne Crowp nas caosen o adont EPRA nest practice gide.ines for ca.cu.anng ey a.ernative perforirance measures. Nowes 10
(070 suppor: e EPRA meiries disciosed on pages 28 and 29 of e Repor: where the definiion and purposc of eacn me:nia

are oiuitlined

For the year For the yeag

ended ended
March 2023 31 March 2022
Earnings from operational activites T - 7
Profit afrer taxaion (£7000) 25,472 44,754
Caange i fair va..e of derivaive inanca. insr.menis £600) 2,826 (2.673)
Changesin va..e of inves:men: properics (FO00) {2.640) (12.269)
Cosis of ear vy repaymen: of doot (1000) 1,271 -
EPRA Eéfr]ings (F'OE’;O)M ' ) - o B - ' S - - 726,929 29810
‘Noj-gn‘.:zd_?er;ge n.neer ol ﬂnargs- N iss.e (aq;hsted for gnaros héxi tre :reas-.,ry) ) 533_55251_ 6718‘?97942
E-ijF!A Earl{lngs"pefr S.]a?rtil",PS)-: masi-; & difaed 77~7 7_ )__ )_ - _41_13);) - 4.8_.2-p
T ' - T - 7 T brave EER A Nt PRA et
R T asers o
SEfch 2023 o - S T __' i - - T
Ne: asse.5 7 000) 661,909 661,909 661,909
Fair va..e of deriva.ive linancia. ings.r.men:s (8300 (8,129) (8,129) -
Ad Lgment o l&air va..e for bany aorrowings (FOGe) - - 11,736
NAV (000) o o - o 653780 653780 673645
Kurmrocr of snares inassue (ad Lgied for snared e din reasury) 606386380 606,386,380 606386,380
NAYV per share o o o 107.82p 107.82p 111.09p
N o o T - - ' T brraNe PR A Nt TERA Nt
e s e
31 March 2022 - o o o o o o
Ne: asge:s (F00G6) 575,547 575,547 575547
Fair va .e of derivair/e financia. insir.aren:s (£000) 21310 (2131
2.0
- T T amza1s 572415 376,191
t.moer of siares iniss.o fad, wsied tor snarsd 1e.d in rcas .y S12A35380 5172432380
M AT Der siare 1093350 1S 710
4—_ - 4—. T o T o WF’Or the o For the
S0 Mareh 2025 31 baacch Sree
n -/:\s:rr%ni oro - T T T o .9_7_8,.147) _"%8.756
A owance for esumascd ouronasars cosis 00T 59.973 55417
Cross Itm';)',Cicdﬁiper:y _oor:frr) 103 SF0C T T T T 1&8.12? o 1525158
f-,r{;.ra,issd n:z?n:s TG0 _- - T - T . ?654 54.091
Add: nonona. rent exoration of ron. free oenods -
SO ne Afrl.a,lse:-i- ren: (Faony A 57,5 | ‘14 C@ii
LPRA DY ' T T o o  5.55% 5 28%
5.858% 528+

EPEA Tonoed- Lo WIY




Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the calculation of EPRA and other

alternative performance measures
Continued

Fs:imated Mar<et Renza. Va. .o (ERVY of vacant spaces (£'G00)

Famiimated Marget Renta Va we (ERV) of who.c pornitolio (7000)

LPRA Vacancy Raioe

Toial ‘-)(Vin"inisiriai.ive énd opcraling oxonensas

Direc: gropersy exponses

Lose oroporiy expenses recovered hrougn rents
EPRA Eos; (inclquTngﬁﬂirect vacaxféﬁ;o&éf S
Direc: vacancy cos:s

EPRA a)sg @céﬂgng direct vaca.nc-y costs_)

Romvalincome
Less rechargeab e costs received

Gross rental income

EPRA Cost Ratio (including direct vacancy costs)

EPRA Cost Eatijt (excluding direct vacancy cosls)

Tae Croan 1as notincarrad any direct vacancy osis

Net Debt
Borrowingg fron inancia. Insis.cons (TN

Hatatal

Cash and casn oquva.cnis (FDGC

Total Property Value
[nvesneont properies at fqair va. .o

Mel recavan.es (EG00)

Net receivables comprises
Cuaer recelvan os

Trade and omner recervames
T.ess rade and olaer 0ayao es
Total

For the
yedr ended
31 March 2023

10
57.654

For the
yexr ended
31 March 2023

0.02%

For the
year ended

31 March 222

51.091
COc%

For the
year endsd

31 March 2022

o £000 Euun
11,821 15,247

1.941 978

S (1,512) 993
12,250 10,236

- o 12250 10730
54,607 51,636

) - (1512) (995)
o 53,095  50.64)
23.07% 20.20%

23.07% 70 20%

31 March 2023
£'onn

367.925

953,364
26,743
980,107

33.91%

31 March 2023

£ 040

24,783
11,260

(9.300) _
26743

- (;5.588)
332357

i1 March 2022

£ 000

345,237
75,892
972.129

3124y

31 March 2022
£.000n

25319
12.8581

25.892

(9,495

NOLLVIEQIN] TYROLLIGOY

D0 VLA

&402 SLNDODDV ANV Laoddd
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Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the calculation of EPRA and other

alternative performance measures
Continued

Compoﬁents of Net Asset-s uséd in EPRA LTV calculation
Inves men: properics a: falrvalue
Nea: recejvab.gs
Casn and casn cquiva.en:s
Less oorrowings from financial insiiLiions o - o
Net assets used in the EPRA LTV calculation
Less amounis exciuded from ine ca culation

In-erest rate derlivatives

Jnamariised odan €8¢ 0088 _ . N
Net assets ) ' o . .
Acguisiions inc. .ding incidenia. ¢oss ol purenase

Developrean:
Investment properties
Incrementa. euao.c space
Ennancing enan e space
Tonant incentives
GCiner maona. non-atocaed ypes of exoendi ure

Capianscd inieres:

Total Capital Expenditure
Conversion iren: accr.a § (2 Cas 04asis

'Ijotaj Ca;ita.[ E:;Jendimre;n a cash basis

Thoe GroLp nas nos capliased any avericad or noeraling oxoenses.

Tre Gro.uo tas no Joind Ventores §o there s nd o ventae oroperly to digc.oso in e a

FtMarcl 2627

953,364
26,743
35,588

{367,925)

647,770

8.129
5,010
661,309

Forthe

year ended
31March 2023
£ 000

543

4.944
1,700

T 7187

DOVEe lEan

JtMacch 2022

£ oun

945237
25897
57337

1337.050)
653415

2131
5.000

575547

For the
year ended

31 March 7022

£ 000
33.456

3818
1o

10.898




Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the calculation of EPRA and other
alternative performance measures
Continued

This 15 11¢ annJa. growsa rate 0ased an qrowtlin ner Aasset vai, e per saare sinee o noaoand Aiadonde poid o
Ordinary gnarcho.dors

31 March 2023 31 Maich 2022

NAV per share o ' - i 1091600p 110.30G0p
31 May 2017 In:erim dividend 0.7500p 375000
31 Augus: 2017 Interim dividend 0.7500p .7500p
Z0 Novenmber 2017 Inzerim dividend 0.7500p G.75C0p
9 March 2018 In:etimr dividend 0.7300p 075000
5 june 2014 Interimm dividend 1.2500p 1.25C0p
7 Seotamrper 2018 In:crim dividend 1.2500p 1.250Cp
30 Novermper 2018 Interine dridend 12500p 125000
1 January 2519 Interime dividend 1.1100p L1IGOp
&8 Feoraary 2019 In:erin: dividend 0.1400p 21400p
7 June 2019 Incerim dividend 1.3250p 1.3250p
6 Sepiemper 2019 Interin: dividend 1.3250p 1.2250p
29 Novampar 2019 herim dividend 1.3250p L3258p
28 Feoraary 2070 [nerim dividend 13250p 1.32500
12 7.ne 2020 Interim drvidend 1.3250p 13250p
7 Sepicmper 2GR0 Tnierim drvidend 1.3500p 13500p
4 Decemoer 2020 [nterim dividend 1.3500p 135000
1 March 2021 Tnerim dividend 1.3500pn 135CCp
1 Jungc 2021 Inmerim dividend 1.3500p 135000
10 Seprermoer 2621 [nerim dividend 1.3875p 138750
13 Decemoer 20721 Ierine dividend 1.3875p 1.3873p
1 Margn 2027 Inzerim dividend 1.3875p 138750
28 1.ne 20722 Inerin dividend 13875p
9 3epiomoer 2002 Inenm dividend 1.4250p
9 Decemoer 2022 In-erin drsidend 1.4250p
11 Marca 2023 Inerim drvidend 1.4250p

139.0100p 134.48750
MAY DET $.14Te &l lanne 98.0000p 98C000o

leverad [RR 6.29% 5.53%,

:
< |
:
2
E
¥
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Five Year Financial Results

Revenue
Renia: income

Less direc: property cxpenses
Net rental income )

Direciors remoneraion
Invesirren: advisory fees

General and adminisiralve exnensces

Total expenses
Change in fair va. uc of invesiren: aroperaes

Operating Profit

Finance income

Finance expcnses o ainng 1o 0an< oorrowings

Finance cxoenscs  reanng o Csnare amoriisiaiion

Change in {air va.ae of Interes: ra:e denva:ives
Profit before tax
Taxaion

Profit being total comprehensive income

Earnings per share — basic
Earnings per share — diluted
Dividend declared (per share)

For the Fou the
yedr ended year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£noo £a00
54,607 51635
_ (Laap (978}
52666 50538
{211) (206)
(6.217) (5132}
(5393 (3909
_(i.s2n {10.247)
2.640 12269
43485 32880
148 7
(15,335) (12.008)
(2.826) 2,675
28,472 44754

25,472 44754

4.19p 7230
4.19p 7230
5.70p 5550

45,906

For the

year ended
31 March znzn

goan

15,165

1259)

1rn)
(6.183)
(3.501)

{9.850)

%]




Five Year Financial Results
Continued

B T T T ;M:lCh .2023 51 7M;:l1:[:§():)‘ 31 March 407271 ;I ;d t?h ?}IRF\ 31 MZHIZE‘T
_ _ 7}2 Oﬂll _ fi)(il o E‘(JIJ() _ 7@107 = £000
Assets T T T -
Non-current assets
[nvesunen: property 953,364 945237 893584 867988 820.094
Cher recevan.es 24,783 23519 21805 13,755 5.874
[lerest rawc derivalives 8,129 2131 -
) T S 986,276 970887 915589 878743 826918
Non-current assets
Trade and ouner recewables 11,260 128865 12.821 15838 3723
Casn and casa equivaants 353,588 33337 157097 58.374 534,347
T T o T aeBaR 83202 19918 59213 50070
Total assets - - 1033124 1037089 1035507 947955 835988
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Tradc and oiner pavanes (9,300} 9,492 [(3.245; 17 743} {15324
Ban<and .oan pormowings - (59.937) (597500
o T ' T (9300) (9497  (69282)  (5747R  (15324)
Noan-current liabilities
Ban< and .oan sorrowimngs {361,915) {352.050) (209440} (P05.155)
[_nicros: rae dernvalives - - A7 -
o T T o T(361918) (332650 GR9918) 1305135
Total liabilities T C T CGnam Gl C 277391 220.480)
EOEaJ net ass_et_s_ T T T 756505 5] 5,;]4: ) :7(;551 _
Assels g
Share capia. 6,225 253 2.223 5225 g
Share orent . raserve 292,626 782,520 292,403 292405 -1
Capia. reduction reserve 317,714 322363 331140 330,928 E
R‘:‘tein_cd_c\_ammgs o S o 45344 5433 1.558 ]
Total equity 661,909 375547 070.554 3
Net assets per share ~ basic 109.16p M2 300 108300 107.870 107080 s
Net assets per share — diluted 104.16p NC3Co 108 30p 137 870 107080 =
Share price 53.70p 87 400 107600 951400 95.000
Total shareholder return (on a NAV basis) 41.84% 4 29 55% 22 94% 17455
Leverage 35.61% 54.43% 3418% 25 9G¥, 22 cow

TE0E SENNOIY (INV LA Oddd
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Shareholder Information

Share Information

The Company's Qrdinary shares of .p each are quoted

on the Qffical Tiast of the 'CA and raded on the premium
segmen: of the Main Varket of the London Siock txchange
[T

SEDOL number 338:303

ISIN _ GaooRdeEsdsz
Ticker/TIDM _ Cs=
LEE  23800PGRGE418GMEN9Y

Frequency of NAV Publication

The Company's NAY 18 released o the "S- on a guarrerty
basis and published on the Company's webste:
www.Civizassocialhousirg com

Sources of Further Information

Camies of the Company's Annua! and Half-Yearly Reporse.
Brock Txchange annoancemenss and further informanon
on the Company can be obrained from s websiie:
WWWWLCIVITasEoC1alhodsing com.

Share Register Enquiries

The reqizter for the Company's Ordinary shares s
maim:amned by ank Group. nthe evens of queriles
regarding your holding, please contacs the Reqgistrar

on 88/ 6561 G500 (calls are charged a’ the standard
gaeographic rate and will vary by provider calls outside
‘he LXwill be charged at the apphcable mcernatnional
razel anes are open perween 9.00am and 5 .500m.
Vonday co Tniday, excluding pubhc hohdays in “ngland
and Waleg Yo can also emall engannes@hnkgroupoouk

Changes of name and/or address mus: be noufed n
writng to the Reqgisirar. Link Group, Central 3quare,
29 Welling:on Sireet, "=eds L5040,

Key Dates

]une_ _ Annaal results annoanezd . -
o ~ Paymen: of f_our:‘h m?enm er:{dehdﬁ

September B Ct’)mpail_l',f‘s haH;*,'e;ir end

B ‘_- Anrmaal general meewn?;

. i -zmept of irstinenm dividend

December  -alf-yaarly rexulis announced o
o Saymen: z)fsic'cmd INTETm d\}mdend\

E_'ehrua_r_y _ayment of “hird incenm chvidend

March Company's year end -

Association of Investment Companies

The Company is a member of the AXC which

pubhshes giatisucal informanon in respect of

member companias The A'C can be contacted on

020 7282 5845, endguunas@heaic.couk or visis The wabsite:
www.haalc cosak

Electronic Communications from
the Company

Shareholders now have the oppormaniy 0 e noufied by
amall when the Company's Annual Report, ~alf-Yearly
Repor and other formal communicanons are avallable
on the Company's website, instead of raceming prninted
copres by post. This has environmen:al benefits in the
racdtuction of paper printing, energy and water usage. as
well ag reducing cosis 10 the Company.

fyou have not already elecied "o receve eleciroma
comrmmamcatons from the Company and wish o do so,
please contac: the Regustrar.



Glossary

AIFM means the Alerhauve nvestmen: -und Manager

AIFMD means the Aliernative nvestmen: Mund Managers
rRequlanons 2015 {as amended by The Alternative
‘nvesiment Cund Managers (Amendmen: exc) (EL 507)
Regulanons 2019} and the nvestmen: M'unds Sourcebook
forming par: of the TCA Randbook.

ALMO means an army lengrh managemens: organisanan,
a no-for-profit company tha: provides housing services
on behalf of a local authoeny.

Alternative Performance Measures (A 2Ms! means a
financial measure of hiszorical financial performarnce,
financial position, or cash flows, other than a financial
measure defined ar specified in the applcable financial
reporaneg framework.

Annual contracted rent roll means “he annual
contracmual renzal income carrently recewvable on a
property as at the 3alance Shee: dae

Approved Provider mcans Approved 2roviders, local
authoriaes, ALMQOs, Communtiy ‘nreregr Companies,
Reqistered Chanues and other regulazed orgamsanons
directly or indirectly in receipt of paymen: from local or
central government including ~he N=5.

Care Provider means a provider of care services to the
oceuapants of Specahs: Supporied Jousing, regisrered
with the Care Quallly Commussion.

CIM means Civias ‘nves men: Yanagemen: imited or
CV formerly known as Civitas Jouasing Adwvisors amited
ancd 17s change of name on / May 20200

Community Interest Company or CIC means a
company approved by the Office of the Regulazor of
Communiy ‘nteres: Companies as & COmImunly interes:
company and registered as such wirth Companies —ousa.

Company means C1vitas Soclal Sousing 2LC, a company
incorporated i =ngiand and Wales with company
number 10402528,

CMA Order means the S:anrrory Audit Services Order
20 assued by the Compennon and Varkets Aahonty,

Current Leverage means ~he percentage aken as otal
jank borrowngs draven over toial assets

Dividend Yield m=sans the 1aa0 of ol annual dindends
declared for The finanaal yvear over marke: price per
share.

EPRA mezans the =uropean bl Real nstare Association.

EPRA EPS 15 “he =224 sarmings divided by “he weighted
average number of shares in1ssue in the perniod.

EPRA LTV 15 “he S7RA loan o value rano calculated as
debt net of cash balances divided by the market value
of property (including net recervables) as defined 1in the
FRA Best Practice Gindehnes.

EPRA Net Initial Yield (“EPRA NIY™) 15 calculated as
the annualised renrtal mcome based on the cash rents
1assing at the balance sheet date less non-recoverable
propery cperaing expenses, divided by the gross
market value of the propery.

EPRA Net Reinstatement Value (“EPRA NRV”) 15 an
EPRA NAV memnce which assumes that enuties never sell
asseis and aims to represent The values required o rebald
‘he entty

EPRA Net Tangible Assets (“EPRA NTA") 1s an SPRA
NAV me:nic which assumes that ensiities buy and sell
asses, therebhy cryszallising certain levels of unavordable
deferred ax.

EPRA Net Disposal Value (*EPRA NDV") |z an =2RA

NAV menc which renresents the shareholders' value
under a digposal scenario, where deferred tax, financial
s ramenss and cerramn other adiustmensts are calcualated
-0 the full exrent of their hability, net of any resuliing ~ax.

Gross Asset Value means 1omal assats.
Group means “he Company and 17s subsidianes

Housing Association or HA msans an independen:
soclety. body of rrastees or company established for
“he purpose of providing low-cost sogial housmng for
people n housing need generally on a non-profic
making basis Any rrading surplas 1s twypically used o
malntain existing homes and 2o help finance new ones.
~ousIng Associanons are reqgulated by the Regulator of
Social =ousing.

Investment Adviser means Civitas nves:men:
Managemen: Limited {(CIVTY g company incarporated in
~ngland and Wales with company number (0278444 111 128
capactty ag investmen: adviser o the Company.

g
d
g
=
£
g
:
2

IPO means nitlal Pablic Offening

IRR means mnternal raze of reram

Levered IRR means ~he inrermal rate of resarn mclading
che impac: of debt

=
=5
: <
Local Authority or LA means the administrative bodles § 3
. n g =
for the local governimen: in ~ngland compnising 326 z 2
awrhormes dneladimg 52 London boroughs) Bl
x>

=

7!

N




Glossary
Continued

Net Asset Value or NAV means “he net agse: value of the
Group on The relevan: date, prepared in accordance with
IURS avcounnng prninciples,

Net Initial Yield means the ratio of ne! renzal income
and gross purchase price of a propersy.

NHS means ‘he pubhcly funded healthcare system of
che United <imgdom comprising The National Yeaith
Service in angland, NRS Scotland, N=5 Wales and Health
and Social Care 1in Morthern (reland. including, for the
avordance of doubs NS Trasts.

NHS Trust means a legal enty, set up by arder of the
sSecreiary of Srate under section 25 of, and Schedule 4 o,
‘he Manonal mealth 3ervice Act 2006, 0 provide goods
and services for “he purposes of “he health service,

Ongoing Charges means the figure published annually
Iry the Company which shows the drag on performance
caused by operatuonal expenses. More specifically. itis
the annual percentage reduciion in shareholder returns
as a result of recurnng operational expenses assuiming
markets remain g7at1c and the portfoho g not sraded.
Alhough the Ongoing Charges figure 15 based on
hiszorncal imformanon, 1ir provides shareholders with an
indhicanon of the hikely level of costs that will e incurred
n managing “he Company in the fuare

Portfolio mesans *he Group's portfollo of asses

Portfolio Valuation means an mmdependsnt valuanion of
“he Porsfohio Ly Jones Lang ".aSalie amred or such other
propersy adwiser as the Mirectors may select from nme

o me. based upon the Jortfoho being held. directly or
indirectly. within a corporate vehicle or egaivalen: enty
which s a wholly owned subsidiary of ‘he Company and
otherwise prepared in accordance wih 3°CE “Red 3o0k”
qudelnes

REIT means a (uualfying real eg ate Inves mean: Tag in
accordance with “he U< 25T Regime inrroduced by the
U< Tmance A 2006 and subsequently re-wrisien inio

Pars L2 of the Corporanon Tax Aot 2000,

RICS me=ans *oval nshmuton of Tharered Surveyors

RSH rneans the Regulator of 3o¢ial Aousing. the
execunve non-deparrmeantal public body, sponsored
by the Mitusiry of Eousing, Commumnities and Local
Governmens, which 15 the regulator for 3ocial Somes
providers in Fngland and Wales,

Social homes or social housing means social rented
homes and other accommodation thas are offered a:
rens sabsidised below marke: level or are consiiuents
of other appropnate rent regimes such as exempr rents
ar are subject to bespoke agreement with entines such as
N=S Trusts and are provided by Approved Providers.

Specialist Supported Housing or 88H means social
housing which incotporates saome form of care or other
ancillary service on the premises,

SPV means special purpose vehicle, a corporate vehwcle
in which the Group's propernas are held.

Target Return means “he targe: reésurn on invesmen:

Total Return meang YMe: Total 2etarm, bemng the change
in NAY over the relevan: penod plus dividend pad

Total Shareholder Return means a measure of the
return kased upon share price rmovemeant over “he penod
plag dividend paid

Valuation means an independent valuaiion of the
Portfolio by jones Lang “aSalle amized or such other
property adviser as the Diractors may select from
ame o Time, preparaed in accordances with RICS "2ed
300k’ gudelnes and based upon a valuanion of each
wnderbang mvesimen: property rather than the value
agcnbed to the porifoho and on the assumpnon of

a theoreunal sale of each property rather than ~he
corporate enties inwhich all of the Company's
INVesTmen: properies are held.

WAULT or “Weighted Average Unexpired Lease Term”™
15 the product of annual contracted rens roll a7 penod end
and “he nime 1n years “o when the lease expires for each
given lease. summead across leases, and then diided by
-he total annaal contracied rent roll of “he porifolio The
result s expressed in years, WAL (T 15 a ¥ey measdre of
“he gualy of the Companys porfolio. ong leags jerms
anrerpm the securry of “he Company's income sirearn
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